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LONG-TERM FINANCIAL OBJECTIVES

Sales Growth

3-5% Organic Growth

8-12% Growth Including Acquisitions

Financial Performance

Mid-teens Percentage EPS Growth

Free Cash Flow Greater Than or Equal to Net Income

ROCE In 12-15% Range

Dividend

Continued Growth

Credit Ratings

“Upper Tier” Investment Grade 

(MILLIONS OF DOLLARS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS) 2006 2005 CHANGE

Closing market price per share $ 50.29 $ 48.04 5%
Total return (share price change plus dividends) 7% 1%

Net sales from continuing operations $ 4,019 $ 3,285 22%
Operating income

from continuing operations $ 503 $ 445 13%
Percent of sales 12.5% 13.5% (100bp)

Net earnings from continuing operations $ 291 $ 272 7%
Per share from continuing operations  $ 3.47 $ 3.18 9%

Net earnings $ 290 $ 270 7%
Per share $ 3.46 $ 3.16 9%

Return on capital employed 
from continuing operations 13.5% 14.8% (130bp)

Dividends per share $ 1.18 $ 1.14 4%

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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TO OUR SHAREOWNERS  Over the past few years, we have

stressed the importance of “moving forward” in an era of rapid

change and ever-intensifying global competition. We believe that

differentiated shareowner returns are achievable for companies

which adhere to several simple principles involving growth.

First, business leaders must be willing to perform
candid systematic evaluations of their portfolios
and future prospects in order to make dispassionate
and objective capital allocation decisions. Second,
the company and business units must have clear
roadmaps for intermediate and longer term growth,
taking into account not only absolute growth but
also expected returns on capital employed based on
sustainable competitive advantage. Finally, the re-
sulting programs must be executed in a disciplined
manner.

To facilitate growth, we concentrate our market
development activities in areas where we are able
to: 1) offer customers strong and innovative value
propositions that solve problems and exceed
expectations; 2) leverage and benefit from our
brand strength; and 3) achieve global cost competi-
tiveness through the Stanley Fulfillment System
(SFS). We are confident that we can sustain vitality

and earn above average financial returns by owning
businesses for which these factors are achievable
and encouraging our management teams to focus in
these areas.

Diligence and focus on these principles has pro-
duced excellent results in recent years. 2006 was
the fourth consecutive year in which sales increased
by a double-digit percentage and earnings per share
from continuing operations has grown on average
38% annually since 2002. Return on Capital Em-
ployed (ROCE) has improved 190bps during the
same period even as we have invested an additional
$2 billion of capital to grow the company.  Three-year
average total shareholder return was 14.4% versus
the S&P 500 at 10.5%.

2006: YEAR IN REVIEW:
2006 was a year characterized by financial results
consistent with our long-term objectives in spite of

164TH MANAGEMENT LETTER
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a challenging external environment. It was also a
year in which we made considerable progress mov-
ing our strategies forward. 

Revenues increased 22% to a record $4 billion.
Earnings per diluted share from continuing opera-
tions of $3.47 were up 9% and, excluding non-cash
inventory step-up charges related to acquisitions, up
14%*. Free cash flow** (operating cash flow less
capital investment) of $359 million was up 22%, rep-
resenting 124% of net income. ROCE was a solid
13.5% despite the acquisitions of Facom Tools and
National Hardware.

In 2006, we increased the dividend by 4% to $1.18,
the 130th consecutive year a cash dividend has been
paid and the 39th consecutive year in which it has
been increased. 2006 total return to shareowners
was 7%.

Our recent acquisitions of Facom Tools and National
Hardware required considerable integration work to
realize expected benefits. In Europe we developed
and launched a comprehensive plan designed to
ensure the competitiveness of our tool business.
At the same time, our combined Stanley-National
Hardware team pursued the transfer of production
to lower cost countries and the consolidation of
distribution activities in a common North American
location. These endeavors included the elimination
of redundant workforces and the closure of certain
facilities, which the teams accomplished on sched-
ule and on budget. We are pleased to say that acqui-
sition integration is evolving into a core competency
for The Stanley Works. 

Continued focus on strengthening our core franchis-
es led to the 2006 addition of Besco Corporation. In
addition, we announced and, in early 2007, complet-
ed the acquisition of HSM Electronic Protection
Services, Inc., consistent with our commitment to
the advancement of our Security growth platform. 

In our effort to move the Company forward, we have
capitalized on strong free cash flows and our acqui-
sition integration capabilities. Results have included:
diversification and strengthening of our business
portfolio; sustained growth in revenues, earnings,
cash flows and average invested capital; returns on
capital in excess of the cost of capital and, as a
result, value creation for our shareowners.

MOVING FORWARD:
Recent years have been energizing and rewarding
for our Company and its stakeholders, and the years
ahead offer much promise and opportunity. Our
portfolio is in excellent shape and, as we enter 2007,
the strategic roadmap for profitable growth is clear.

In order to clearly convey our prospective growth
strategies, as well as to communicate our progress
executing them, we have recently undertaken a
realignment of our business activities into three
separate and distinct segments:

Construction & DIY Segment

HAND TOOLS AND STORAGE;
FASTENING SYSTEMS;
LASER MEASURING AND LEVELING TOOLS

Industrial Segment

INDUSTRIAL AND AUTOMOTIVE REPAIR TOOLS:
Facom, Mac, Proto, Supply & Services

ENGINEERED SOLUTIONS:
Vidmar Storage, Hydraulics, Assembly

Security Segment

MECHANICAL ACCESS SOLUTIONS:
Best Mechanical, Automatic Doors, Hardware

CONVERGENT SECURITY SOLUTIONS:
Systems Integration, HSM Monitoring, Blick

The acquisition of HSM in January 2007 was the cat-
alyst for the new segments. While the body of this
annual report continues to be structured around the
previously existing segments (Consumer Products,
Industrial Tools and Security Solutions), we expect to
convert to the new reporting structure effective with

* REFER TO PAGE 5 FOR RECONCILIATION OF THE 9% AND 14% MEASURES.

**REFER TO PAGE 33 OF MD&A FOR THE RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING CASH FLOW TO FREE CASH FLOW.
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reporting first quarter 2007 results. In this regard,
we feel it is important to share some of the strate-
gic dialog based on this new way of looking at
Stanley. Each of these redefined segments has an
important role in the future of our Company.

Construction & DIY (CDIY) CDIY, our largest seg-
ment today, benefits from exceptional brand strength
in both the flagship Stanley brand (hand tools and
storage) and in Bostitch (pneumatic tools and fasten-
ers). Segment profitability should benefit over time
from healthy innovation and brand support levels,
increasing momentum in key markets outside the
U.S. and an extensive and carefully managed profit
improvement initiative at Bostitch. We continue to
broaden and deepen our retail partnerships by offer-
ing the most innovative branded products, along with
the highest value-added category management solu-
tions. Our goal is to captivate the end user and col-
laborate with channel partners to ensure that all
of our products are where they need to be, when
they need to be, and to ensure that end users are
totally satisfied with the Stanley retail experience
and, ultimately, product performance.

Industrial The “new look” Industrial segment com-
prises a major growth platform in industrial and auto-
motive tools and storage as well as a smaller group
of businesses offering highly engineered and often
customized tool and storage solutions. With the ad-
dition of Facom Tools, The Stanley Works now holds
a leading global position in the attractive industrial
and automotive repair tools and storage market.
This outstanding platform, with its three prominent
brands – Facom, Mac and Proto – serves as an excel-
lent base from which to expand into developing
markets such as China, India, Eastern Europe and
the Middle East.

Security Security has powered much of the compa-
ny’s growth since 2002 and today we operate one of
the most significant commercial security franchises
in North America. Our Mechanical Access Solutions
business enjoys excellent profitability and cash flow
characteristics. Up to this point, its geographic ori-

entation has been primarily North American. Over
the next several years, we expect to expand this
growth platform through acquisitions in Europe and
Asia. 

The other major element of security, Convergent
Security Solutions is an exciting growth engine for
the future. The recent acquisition of HSM Electronic
Protection Services, Inc. positions Stanley as the #1
commercial systems integrator in North America
combined with the #2 commercial security monitor-
ing company. Together, these franchises afford us the
size, scale and product breadth to provide customers
with a unique and powerful value proposition. We are
intent upon making the strategic moves necessary to
capitalize on the convergence of electronic security
and IT network platforms. This business has enor-
mous potential in the years ahead, as we have carved
out an excellent position in a large North American
market exhibiting near double-digit growth.

THE PORTFOLIO:
We remain committed to our strategy of methodical-
ly reducing dependence on the lower multiple, more
volatile North American CDIY market. Our vision is to
continue to win in this marketplace with our retail
customers while deploying our capital to expand our
growth platforms in industrial and automotive repair
tools, mechanical access solutions and convergent
security solutions. Our growth prospects are excel-
lent and we are focused on pursuing them while
remaining disciplined with respect to our acquisition
return criteria. 

To the extent we are unable to find and execute
acquisitions consistent with our strategy and return
requirements, we remain open to repurchasing
shares as opportunities arise. As an example, in
2006, we retired 4 million shares at an average cost
of $50 per share. We also remain committed to
the payment of a substantial cash dividend, and to
increasing that dividend periodically. All of these
considerations are made in the context of our intent
to maintain our upper tier investment grade credit
ratings.
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James M. Loree

Executive Vice President & CFO
John F. Lundgren

Chairman & CEO

CONCLUSION There has never been a more exciting time here at

The Stanley Works. Our recent accomplishments have transformed our

culture into one where profitable growth is a fundamental expectation

rather than simply a desirable objective. Growth has brought with it many

new opportunities for our people and they have stepped up to the chal-

lenge. In the end, it is our Stanley associates on the front line that make

our company great. They are delivering differentiated value propositions

on a daily basis and are satisfying our customers. They are stamping out

waste through Lean manufacturing and the Stanley Fulfillment System.

They are integrating our acquisitions effectively. Finally, they are doing

all of this with confidence and purpose that is energizing to behold. Our

strategies are clear and focused and our people have never been more

motivated and better prepared to elevate our company to new levels of

growth and success in the years ahead.    New Britain, CT  March 2007
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*FREE CASH FLOW = CASH FROM OPERATIONS – CAPITAL EXPENDITURES – CAPITALIZED SOFTWARE. REFER TO MD&A ON PAGE 33
FOR THE RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING CASH FLOW TO FREE CASH FLOW.

**WORKING CAPITAL TURNS ARE COMPUTED USING ANNUALIZED SALES OF SIGNIFICANT ACQUIRED COMPANIES.
***ROCE IS COMPUTED AS NET EARNINGS FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS PLUS AFTER-TAX INTEREST EXPENSE,

DIVIDED BY THE 13-POINT AVERAGE OF DEBT AND EQUITY. 

AS DISCUSSED ON PAGE 2, THE NET CHARGE IN CONTINUING OPERATIONS IN 2006 ATTRIBUTABLE TO INVENTORY STEP-UP AMORTIZATION
WAS $.17 PER DILUTED SHARE, WHICH REPRESENTS 5% OF THE RELATED $3.18 EARNINGS PER DILUTED SHARE IN 2005. DILUTED EPS GREW 9%

OVER 2005 AND AFTER ADDING 5% TO REMOVE THE 2006 INVENTORY STEP-UP IMPACT, GREW 14%. THIS PERTAINS TO THE LOWER MARGINS
ON THE SALE OF ACQUIRED INVENTORY (PRINCIPALLY FOR FACOM AND NATIONAL) IN THE INITIAL MONTHS AFTER THE ACQUISITION,

AND IS NOT INDICATIVE OF THE FUTURE MARGINS GENERATED BY THESE BUSINESSES AFTER THE FIRST TURNOVER OF INVENTORY.
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FATMAX XL  Often referred to as the badge of the professional, the Stanley® tape rule is
found on professional job sites globally. Here the Stanley® FatMax® XL™ 8m tape rule is
used by a professional end user on the construction site of a Flemish Seniorenresidentie
“Hof van Eden”, a state-of-the-art senior assisted living and wellness center being built
with the most advanced building techniques, in St. Niklaas, the capital town of the East
Flanders province in Belgium. 
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CONSUMER PRODUCTS: HIGHLIGHTS
INNOVATION DRIVING GROWTH

The Stanley® MaxLife2™ 369™ titanium finish
tripod flashlight is a bright 1.25 watt LED light.
It offers hands-free use, a multi-position head, a
shatter-resistant lens, a simple 3-position switch
and it runs on 3, 6 or 9 AA batteries. This state-of-
the-art illumination tool was designed to meet
the needs of the professional contractor.  
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The Strategic Business Units (SBU’s) introduced in 2005 were
instrumental during 2006 in: (1) the North America successes
of the new FatMax® Xtreme™ family of tools and the FatMax®

line; and (2) the launch of the FatMax® XL™ line in Europe. 

The 35 new FatMax® Xtreme™ products were highly success-
ful – led by the popular FuBar™ utility bar. Popular Science
named the FuBar™ utility bar a 2006 recipient of its
“Best of What’s New” Award. With features that include
two-tiered jaws, a beveled nail slot, a textured grip and
tempered steel, it is the perfect demolition tool for profes-
sional contractors.

With 30 new products, the FatMax® family continued to grow.
And 100 new Stanley® tools introduced in 2006, led by the
MaxLife™ flashlight family, drove growth in that line. Addi-
tionally, a complete line of over 65 clamps and vices spanning
all of these professional sub-brands was introduced. Best-
in-class innovation, merchandising and fill rates led to a very
positive year. 

Innovation reached international scale in 2006, as recent
new products from the FatMax® Xtreme™ and FatMax® lines
were introduced to professional end users in Europe as
FatMax® XL™ products. Supported by new advertising and
innovative merchandising, the initial FatMax® XL™ offering
included tape rules, chalk reels, knives and blades, hammers,
clamps and tool storage. These high end products, designed
for professionals’ needs, are available through professional
distribution channel outlets. 

Additional waves of innovative new FatMax® Xtreme,™ FatMax,®

FatMax® XL™ and Stanley® products are planned for 2007, as
professional end users have demonstrated strong support
for this innovation.

Strong customer relationships, vibrant innovation geared to the
professional, the Stanley® brand and world-class marketing,
merchandising and customer service position Stanley Tools
advantageously to gain market share globally with solutions
that bring efficiency and productivity to end user processes.

MAXLIFE2™

369™ TITANIUM
FINISH TRIPOD
FLASHLIGHT
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FATMAX XTREME At a Spec Rescue International training site

in Virginia, rescue workers participate in exercises during a Structural

Collapse training class taught by FEMA rescue professionals. With

features of four tools built into one, the Stanley® FatMax® Xtreme™

FuBar™ utility bar is gaining popularity among rescue workers around

the world, who are finding its durability and versatility compelling

for their critical work. The needs of rescue workers are important

considerations in planning new product introductions for 2007

and beyond. 
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FATMAX  Latham Stairs & Millwork, Inc. located in Sanger, Texas,

designs, manufactures and installs custom wood and iron architectural

millwork products – stair parts, balusters, mantelpieces, large Santa Fe

style cedar columns – for commercial customers including hotels. Stanley®

FatMax® heavy duty trigger clamps facilitate production and help Latham

meet their high quality standards. The simultaneous introduction of a

full line of over 65 clamping tools demonstrates Stanley Tools’ ability

to solve the needs of customers with value-enhancing solutions.
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OVER 200 NEW PRODUCTS INTRODUCED IN 2006:

FatMax® Xtreme™

Hammer Tacker with
Built-in Blade

FatMax® Xtreme™ Large
Open Mouth Tool Bag

FatMax® XL™

Snap-Off Retractable
Utility Knife

FatMax® XL™

FuBar™ Utility Bar

FatMax®

AntiVibe® Ball Pein
Hammer

Stanley® FatMax® 28"
Structural Foam Tool Box

Stanley® PowerLock®

Tape Rule with BladeArmor™

Coating

Stanley® IntelliLaser™

Pro Stud Sensor and
Laser Line Level
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FatMax® Xtreme™ AntiVibe®

Nailing Hammer
FatMax® Xtreme™

Tape Rule with BladeArmor™

Coating

FatMax® Xtreme™

Auto Trigger Clamp

FatMax® XL™

Magnetic Torpedo
Level

FatMax® XL™

Demolition Driver

FatMax® XL™ AntiVibe®

Framing Hammer

FatMax® Chalk Reel

FatMax® Wood Chisel Set

FatMax® Heavy Duty 
Trigger Clamp

Stanley® Black
Chrome & Laser
Etched Socket
Set

Stanley® Bailey™

Clutch Lock “F” Clamp
Stanley® Electric
Brad Nailer



MAC TOOLS  Mac Card financing, world-class distribution, district manager

leadership and dedicated headquarters personnel in Columbus, Ohio constantly

support the Mac Tools distributors in the field. Demand-creating events, such as

some 900 Macstravaganza events hosted by distributors in their designated loca-

tions, delivered $11 million in revenues from 94,000 attendee customers during

2004-2006. Each was a fully-loaded tool expo complete with an extensive line of

Mac Tools products including some not typically found on a distributor’s truck.

MAC TOOLS SPECIAL EDITION
DROP FRONT TOOLBOX
FEATURING CHIP FOOSE'S
GRAND MASTER 
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The 2006 combination of Stanley and Facom Tools set the stage
for future global growth in the industrial and automotive repair
tool markets. While cost and organizational synergy measures
were necessary and implemented, a number of Stanley® prod-
ucts were added to the Facom offering and preparations were
made for introducing an innovative line of professional plumbing
tools in the U.S. leveraging Facom Tools’ Virax® line. 

The resurgence of Mac Tools – an international business with
over 1,800 mobile distributors serving professional automotive
repair technicians – was a 2006 highlight. With over 8,000 items
and new products added regularly, there are Mac Tools products
for every technician. In addition to NASCAR and NHRA sponsor-
ships, Mac Tools maintains relationships with reality television
programs such as Overhaulin’ starring Chip Foose on TLC,
Pimp My Ride on MTV and Rides on TLC.  

Among the company’s most highly engineered industrial prod-
ucts are Stanley® LaBounty® hydraulic tools. These mounted and
hand-held shears, grapples and breakers serve global industrial
markets such as railroad construction and steel structure demo-
lition. Recent environmental regulations have led to the removal
of over 200 dormant oil drilling rigs annually. Eliminating a cost-
ly 45-minute process of cutting large pipes at depths over 200
feet below the sea surface by divers using underwater torches,
Stanley® LaBounty® OCC shears perform such cuts in less than 3
minutes without human intervention, providing significant pro-
ductivity, enhanced safety and reliability.

Emerging economies in China and India are driving further
growth in industrial and auto repair tool markets. Leveraging the
resources of Stanley, Proto and Facom, the Company is unique-
ly positioned to benefit from this growth. In 2006 Stanley Tools,
through its Shanghai Trading Company in China, doubled its
sales and marketing team, boosted its distribution network from
45 to 300 outlets, added a larger distribution center in Shanghai
and increased its product line from 50 to 550 items and sales in
China doubled. In India, Stanley is working with a Mumbai hand
tools distributor and a Chennai hydraulics distributor to market
and sell Stanley® products. Over 600 hand tool items were
included in the initial product offering and the Ministry of India
Railways approved 10 Stanley® hydraulic tools for national use.

The Stanley® Bostitch® HurriQuake™ disaster-
resistant nail meets an undeniable need: it
provides up to double the normal resistance
to hurricane force winds of up to 170 miles per
hour, and it offers up to 50% resistance to
earthquake forces. As such, its performance
exceeds the stringent requirements of the
Dade County (Florida) code, and it has received
its own exclusive code report (ESR-2020).

Popular Science magazine celebrated this
innovation in 2006 by awarding it their first-ever
Innovation of the Year award.

STANLEY® BOSTITCH®

HURRIQUAKE™ DISASTER-
RESISTANT NAIL

INDUSTRIAL TOOLS: HIGHLIGHTS
EMERGING MARKETS DRIVING GROWTH
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STANLEY LABOUNTY  Gulfstream Services in Houma, Louisiana,

is under contract from its oil and gas exploration customers to

decommission, operate “Rigs-to-Reef”, deconstruct, and relocate oil

wells and well platforms. Using Stanley® LaBounty® OCC, OSS, and

OSG Shear and Grapple Technology, Gulfstream experienced nearly

100% productivity improvement while generating a much safer working

environment. After initial cuts below the surface are performed,

pipe sections are cut on barges at the water’s surface in preparation

for their removal.
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FACOM In 1918 in Paris, Facom Tools’ only product was a bur-

nishing wrench referred to as the “Madame 101”, sold exclu-

sively to the French railroad. Today, professional mechanics at

the train maintenance site in Hellemes, near Lille in northern

France, rely upon the accuracy and capabilities of Facom® tools

and tool storage items, including new socket sets and ratchet-

ing wrenches, for maintenance of the TGV high-speed train

operated by France’s national railway company, SNCF (Société

Nationale des Chemins de fer Français). 
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EMERGING MARKETS Through 300

Stanley outlets in China, end user profes-

sionals have ready access to over 550

Stanley®, Facom®, CST/Berger®, Stanley®

FatMax®, Proto®, Bostitch® and Mac® tools. 

In India, The Stanley Works India’s hand

tools distributor, T. M. Mohamedally, has

many years experience providing automo-

tive tools, precision tools, woodworking

tools and related products to professional

end users. Utilizing mobile distribution

and a fixed storefront in Mumbai, this key

distributor has partnered with Stanley to

advance its business development.
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SCOTIABANK Scotiabank, one of North America’s leading financial institutions
and Canada’s most international bank, utilizes Stanley Security Solutions for many of
their branch and ATM security camera needs. Stanley’s proprietary Intivid™ digital video
recording technology facilitates the reliable and efficient recording of branch and ATM
activity through these cameras. Financial institutions, including banks, represent an
important market for Stanley Security Solutions’ integration and service capabilities,
automatic doors, commercial hardware items and numerous locking solutions.

THE S&G® TOUCHVAULT™

SELF SERVICE SAFE DEPOSIT
BOX SYSTEM
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SECURITY SOLUTIONS: HIGHLIGHTS
A GLOBAL VISION

The Stanley Works’ vision – to become a global leader in
commercial security – was advanced considerably again in
2006, as sales climbed to nearly $900 million, or 22% of
consolidated sales, from approximately $200 million, or 9%
of consolidated sales, in 2002. Operating margins of 15%
in 2006 and 2005 mean that Security is performing consid-
erably above Company average.

Stanley Security Solutions (SSS) completed three small
strategic acquisitions that added approximately $25 million
of annual revenues, established leading shares in local
markets and are moving SSS closer to being uniquely posi-
tioned to offer customers integrated security solutions,
via direct sales and service forces, globally:

• Automatic Entrances of Colorado, Inc., a distributor 
and installer of automatic door solutions in western
states.

• Automatic Door Systems, Inc., a Louisiana-based
distributor and installer of automatic door solutions in 
Southeastern states.

• GDX Technologies, Ltd., a U.K. access control provider
with strong new product development capabilities.

Successful integrations of these and previously-acquired
companies enabled the business to serve customers effec-
tively. Meanwhile, considerable progress on systems and
management development positioned SSS to take the next
major growth step – the addition of HSM Electronic
Protection Services, Inc. to the portfolio in early January
of 2007. 

HSM will continue its focus on delivering the high quality of
customer service that earned it Security Distributing &
Marketing (SDM) Magazine’s 2005 Dealer of the Year
Award. HSM was the first national security company to
receive that industry award in its 26-year history. In addition
to allowing HSM to maintain that high level of customer
service, joining Stanley will facilitate expansion of the
basket of services HSM was previously delivering.

As IT and access security technologies and platforms
converge, Stanley Convergent Security Solutions (Stanley
Systems Integration + HSM Commercial Monitoring) is
uniquely positioned to benefit from that convergence in
the electronic access/monitoring side of its portfolio. At
the same time, Stanley Mechanical Access (automatic
doors, locking and hardware) is well-positioned to grow
organically and via acquisitions.

Through its Sargent & Greenleaf subsidiary,
Stanley Security Solutions’ offering for banks
includes a variety of vault, ATM, night deposit
and safe deposit locking systems. 

The S&G® Touchvault™ system shown on the
page at the left is a secure self-access safe
deposit box system. This system utilizes secure
biometric fingerprint technology to authenticate
customers and control access. This solution
eliminates the need for safe deposit keys,
allowing customers secure, unescorted access
to the vault and safe deposit boxes.

2006 ANNUAL REPORT
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COPPIN STATE UNIVERSITY A comprehensive access security

system will accommodate aggressive growth plans for several new

facilities of the Facilities Master Plan, developed by the Office of Capital

Planning at Coppin State University in Baltimore, MD. Stanley Security

Solutions is integrating the system, which includes Stanley’s Data Link

database integration and B.A.S.I.S.® access control software, turnkey

systems for identification management, intrusion and fire detection,

CCTV, network video encoders and recorders, Code Blue emergency

phones, a new security ethernet network and an extended warranty

service contract for maintenance.
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YORK HOSPITAL The York Hospital in York, PA became a customer

in 2005 when Stanley Security Solutions was called upon to resolve

interfacing issues left by a prior general security contractor. Stanley

service technicians completed the installation of card readers and

magnetic locks, and successfully resolved the interface issues. Stanley

was subsequently awarded a complete security integration project

including Magic Force™ swing door operators and card readers, and

is currently bidding on a more comprehensive service contract. 
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TJX COMPANIES, INC. Stanley Security Solutions is a leader in providing access
security systems and service to North American retailers. A recent addition to the
Stanley customer family is Marshalls, the second largest off-price retailer in the U.S.
and a division of The TJX Companies, Inc. since 1995. The Marshalls chain operates over
700 stores across the U.S. Shown here are Stanley® Dura-Glide™ 3000 automatic single
slide doors with our SU-100 motion sensors in operation at Marshalls’ Enfield,
Connecticut store location.
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HSM HSM Electronic Protection Services, Inc., the latest addition to the
Stanley Security family, designs and integrates security alarm monitoring solutions
for commercial customers across North America. Utilizing the most modern video
surveillance equipment and a new state-of-the-art alarm monitoring central
station in Minneapolis, Minnesota that operates 24 hours daily, 7 days per week,
52 weeks per year, HSM offers professional and reliable monitoring services
that facilitate best-in-class rapid response to emergency situations.
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STANLEY FULFILLMENT SYSTEM (SFS)

The Stanley Fulfillment System is the way we bring
the highest levels of service, quality and value to
customers. SFS has several key deliverables: perfect
quality, service excellence, optimal cost and environ-
mental health and safety improvements. Integrated
into each business’ strategic plans are specific short-
and long-term SFS objectives designed to improve
asset velocity, ROCE (return on capital employed),
productivity and customer satisfaction.

SFS is an operating philosophy, a series of continuous im-
provement methods focused on our people, processes, and
technology, as well as deep, collaborative relationships with
customers and suppliers:  

People: At Stanley, our people are our most important
asset. No single measure that we can take is as important
as providing our people with the expertise that they need
to excel in their jobs. Through a comprehensive educational
program, we provide our associates with education in ana-
lytical and statistical methods, process improvement and
design, and the latest technology. Delivered on a just-in-time
basis and applied to real world problems, this combination
of pragmatic training and direct application of knowledge
brings superior results.

Processes: Stanley is in the midst of significantly trans-
forming the way we perform all our functions. We embrace
the concepts of Lean Production and we do not limit the
application of Lean Principles to manufacturing operations.
We extend them to our back office functions, pursuing goals
that include flawless execution, agility, efficiency and speed.
Introducing new ways of doing business into every part of
our organization facilitates standardization of functions
around best practices while maintaining the flexibility our
customers expect from a market leader. 

Information Technology: Our philosophy embraces the
use of leading-edge technology that enables our people
and our processes to deliver exceptional results. We are
renovating our entire technology platform, replacing old,
dissimilar systems with standardized, world-class technolo-
gy. Technology, in and of itself, will not bring a competitive
advantage, however using it to embed outstanding process-
es into our businesses will. We are proceeding at a steady
but rapid pace.  

Partnerships: Nothing more clearly defines our SFS philos-
ophy than the phrase, “it starts and ends with the cus-
tomer.” We believe in building lasting partnerships with our
customers based on mutual goals and trust. Every process
at Stanley is geared towards delivering superior value to
our customers. We also recognize the importance of trans-
parent, collaborative partnerships with our suppliers and
the opportunity to build upon and improve the strength of
our supplier network. 

SFS also represents a strategic advantage in the pursuit
of key acquisitions, since it provides the basis for successful
integration. The integration handbook we developed via our
own SFS implementation provides leverage in its ready
application to acquired companies. The result is often the
rapid implementation of operating improvements, yielding
expedited realization of synergy benefits. The Stanley
Fulfillment System contributed immensely to our recent
performance improvement and this is evident in the
Scorecard measurements. We expect continued EH&S
improvements, customer service performance, quality
enhancements, cost reductions and asset efficiency
in 2007 and beyond.
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summary of selected financial information
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(Millions of Dollars, except per share amounts)  2006**  2005  2004  2003  2002

Continuing Operations     
net sales $ 4,019 $ 3,285 $ 2,997 $ 2,485 $ 2,187
net earnings $ 291 $ 272 $ 237 $ 88 $ 155
Basic earnings per share:     
 Continuing operations $ 3.55 $ 3.26 $ 2.89 $ 1.05 $ 1.79
 Discontinued operations $ (0.01) $ (0.03) $ 1.58 $ 0.24 $ 0.35

total basic earnings per share $ 3.54 $ 3.23 $ 4.47 $ 1.28 $ 2.14

Diluted earnings per share:     
 Continuing operations $ 3.47 $ 3.18 $ 2.81 $ 1.04 $ 1.75
 Discontinued operations $ (0.01) $ (0.02) $ 1.54 $ 0.23 $ 0.34

total diluted earnings per share $ 3.46 $ 3.16 $ 4.36 $ 1.27 $ 2.10

percent of net sales:     
 Cost of sales  63.7%  64.0%  63.2%  65.8%  66.1%
 selling, general and administrative  23.8%  22.4%  23.1%  24.7%  22.9%
 Interest, net  1.6%  1.0%  1.1%  1.1%  1.1%
 other, net  1.4%  1.5%  1.5%  1.6%  (0.4)%
 earnings before income taxes  9.1%  10.9%  10.8%  4.8%  10.2%

net earnings  7.2%  8.3%  7.9%  3.5%  7.1%

Balance sheet data:     
 total assets* $ 3,935 $ 3,545 $ 2,851 $ 2,424 $ 2,418
 long-term debt $ 679 $ 895 $ 482 $ 514 $ 563
 shareowners’ equity $ 1,552 $ 1,445 $ 1,237 $ 885 $ 1,010
Ratios:     
 Current ratio  1.3  2.1  1.7  1.6  1.8
 total debt to total capital  39.2%  42.4%  32.1%  43.2%  41.4%
 Income tax rate –  
  continuing operations  20.8%  24.1%  26.9%  25.5%  30.8%
 Return on average equity –  
  continuing operations  19.4%  20.3%  22.3%  9.3%  16.6%
Common stock data:     
 Dividends per share $ 1.18 $ 1.14 $ 1.08 $ 1.03 $ 0.99
 equity per share at year-end $ 18.96 $ 17.24 $ 15.01 $ 10.88 $ 11.63
 Market price per share – high $ 54.59 $ 51.75 $ 49.33 $ 38.03 $ 52.00
 Market price per share – low $ 41.60 $ 41.51 $ 36.42 $ 20.84 $ 27.31
Average shares outstanding (in 000’s):     
 Basic  81,866  83,347  82,058  84,143  86,453
 Diluted  83,704  85,406  84,244  84,839  88,246
other information:     
Average number of employees  17,484  14,332  13,448  12,330  12,133
shareowners of record at end of year  12,755  13,137  13,238  13,915  14,053

*  Item includes discontinued operations.
**   Diluted earnings per share in 2006 reflects $0.07 of expense for stock options related to the adoption of sFAs 123R, “share Based payment”. shareowners’ equity as of December 

30, 2006 decreased $61 million from the adoption sFAs of 158, “employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit pension and other postretirement plans – an amendment of FAsB 
statements no. 87, 88, 106 an 132(R)”. Refer to note A significant Accounting policies of the notes to Consolidated Financial statements for further information.
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set forth below is a line graph comparing the yearly percentage change in the Company’s cumulative total shareholder return for the 
last five years to that of the standard & poor’s 500 stock Index (an index made up of 500 companies including the stanley works) and 
the peer Group. the peer Group is a group of 11 companies, including stanley, that serve the same markets stanley serves and many of 
which compete with one or more product lines of stanley. total return assumes reinvestment of dividends.

The STanley WOrkS COMpariSOn Of 5 year CuMulaTive TOTal reTurn

the points in the above table are as follows:

   2001  2002  2003  2004  2005  2006

Stanley $ 100.00 $ 76.16 $ 86.48 $ 114.73 $ 115.33 $ 123.65
s&p 500 $ 100.00 $ 77.90 $ 100.25 $ 111.15 $ 116.61 $ 135.03
peer Group $ 100.00 $ 103.35 $ 135.51 $ 172.89 $ 174.13 $ 202.26

Assumes $100 invested on December 28, 2001 in stanley’s common stock, s&p 500 Index, and the peer Group. the peer Group consists 
of the following 11 companies: American standard Companies Inc., the Black & Decker Corporation, Cooper Industries, Inc., Danaher 
Corporation, Illinois tool works Inc., Ingersoll-Rand Company, Masco Corporation, newell Rubbermaid, Inc. snap-on Incorporated, the 
sherwin-williams Company and the stanley works.

comParison of 5  year cumulatiVe total return 
amonG tHe stanley WorKs,  s&P 500  stocK indeX 
and Peer GrouP
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manaGement’s discussion and analysis of financial 
condition and results of oPerations

the financial and business analysis below provides information which the 
Company believes is relevant to an assessment and understanding of its 
consolidated financial position, results of operations and cash flows. this 
financial and business analysis should be read in conjunction with the con-
solidated financial statements and related notes.

the following discussion and certain other sections of this Annual Report 
on Form 10-k contain statements reflecting the Company’s views about its 
future performance and constitute ‘‘forward-looking statements’’ under 
the private securities litigation Reform Act of 1995. these forward-looking 
statements are based on current expectations, estimates, forecasts and 
projections about the industry and markets in which the Company operates 
and management’s beliefs and assumptions. Any statements contained 
herein (including without limitation statements to the effect that the 
stanley works or its management ‘‘believes’’, ‘‘expects’’, ‘‘anticipates’’, 
‘‘plans’’ and similar expressions) that are not statements of historical fact 
should be considered forward-looking statements. these statements are 
not guarantees of future performance and involve certain risks, uncertain-
ties and assumptions that are difficult to predict. there are a number of 
important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from 
those indicated by such forward-looking statements. these factors include, 
without limitation, those set forth, or incorporated by reference, on page 45 
under the heading ‘‘Cautionary statements’’. the Company does not intend 
to update publicly any forward-looking statements whether as a result of 
new information, future events or otherwise.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

the Company is a worldwide supplier of consumer products, industrial tools 
and security solutions for professional, commercial, industrial and consumer 
use. Its operations are classified into three business segments: Consumer 
products, Industrial tools and security solutions. the Consumer products 
segment manufactures and markets hand tools, consumer mechanics tools, 
storage units and hardware. these products are sold primarily to profes-
sional end users and distributed through retailers (including home centers, 
mass merchants, hardware stores, and retail lumber yards). the Industrial 
tools segment manufactures and markets professional mechanics and 
hand tools, pneumatic tools and fasteners, storage systems, plumbing, 
heating, air conditioning and roofing tools, hydraulic tools and accessories, 
assembly tools and systems, and electronic leveling and measuring tools. 
these products are sold to customers and distributed primarily through 
third party distributors as well as through direct sales forces. the security 
solutions segment is a provider of access and security solutions primarily 
for retailers, educational, financial and healthcare institutions, as well as 
commercial, governmental and industrial customers. the Company provides 

an extensive suite of mechanical and electronic security products and sys-
tems including automatic doors, door closers, access controls, exit devices, 
software and locking mechanisms, as well as a variety of security services, 
security integration, related installation and maintenance services.

For several years, the Company has focused on a profitable growth strategy 
and begun to transform itself from a mature 160 year old ‘‘American tool 
company’’, to an innovative, multi-national, diversified, industrial growth 
business. this strategy has included approximately $2 billion of acquisitions 
since the beginning of 2002, several key divestitures, the reduction of risk 
associated with certain large customer concentrations and increased brand 
investments. Additionally, the strategy reflects management’s vision to 
build a growth platform in security while expanding the valuable branded 
tools and hardware platforms. over the past several years, the Company 
has generated strong free cash flow and received substantial proceeds 
from divestitures that were utilized to invest in the transformation of the 
business portfolio.

Free cash flow, as defined in the following table, was $359 million in 2006, 
$294 million in 2005, and $317 million in 2004, considerably exceeding net 
earnings from continuing operations. the Company believes free cash flow 
is an important indicator of its liquidity, as well as its ability to fund future 
growth and provide a dividend to shareowners.

(Millions of Dollars)   2006  2005  2004

net cash provided by  
 operating activities $ 439 $ 362 $ 372
less: capital expenditures  (60)  (53)  (48)
less: capitalized software  (20)  (15)  (7)

Free cash flow $ 359 $ 294 $ 317

the Company strives to reinvest its free cash flow in high return businesses 
in order to generate strong return on assets and improve working capital 
efficiency. significant areas of tactical emphasis related to execution of 
this strategy and its ability to generate free cash flow, as well as events 
impacting the Company’s financial performance in 2006 and 2005, are 
discussed on page 40.

CONTINUED GROWTH OF SECURITY  
SOLUTIONS BUSINESS

the Company further advanced its strategy of becoming a global market 
leader in the commercial security industry. Annual revenues of the security 
solutions segment have grown to $887 million, or 22% of 2006 sales, up 
from $105 million, or 5% of 2001 sales. key events pertaining to the growth 
of this segment in the past two years include the following:



the stAnley woRks 

34

>  the Company completed the acquisition of hsM electronic protection 
services, Inc. (‘‘hsM’’) in January 2007 for approximately $545 million 
in cash. hsM, based near Chicago, Illinois, is a market leader in the 
security monitoring industry, and has annual revenues of approximately 
$200 million. hsM has a stable customer base, an extensive north 
American field network and the second largest market share in the u.s. 
commercial monitoring market. the acquisition will serve as a growth 
platform in the monitoring sector of the security industry. Management 
anticipates hsM will be neutral to 2007 earnings, increasing to 20 to 25 
cents per diluted share earnings in 2009, with approximately $38 mil-
lion of non-cash intangible asset amortization occurring in 2007 related 
to acquired contracts.

>   During 2006, the Company completed three bolt-on acquisitions for 
a combined purchase price of $22 million. Automatic entrances of 
Colorado, Inc. (‘‘Automatic entrances’’) is a distributor that sells, installs 
and services automatic doors and gates in several western states in 
the u.s., and Automatic Doors systems, Inc. (‘‘Automatic Doors”) is an 
automatic door distributor that operates in the southeastern u.s. Both 
of these acquisitions were integrated into the branch structure of the 
existing automatic doors business and increase its geographic scope. 
GDX technologies ltd. (‘‘GDX’’) is a leading access control supplier in 
the united kingdom that possesses strong technological product devel-
opment capabilities. GDX complements the existing european security 
integration business.

>  In January 2005, u.s.-based security Group, Inc. (‘‘security Group’’) was 
acquired for approximately $50 million. security Group is comprised of 
two primary operating companies: sargent & Greenleaf, Inc. and the 
safeMasters Co., Inc. sargent & Greenleaf, Inc. is a manufacturer of 
medium and high security locks and locking systems for the financial, 
government and retail markets. the safeMasters Co., Inc. is a north 
American access control provider offering a wide variety of physical 
security installation, maintenance and repair services, with emphasis 
on mechanical locking systems.

>  In May 2005, the Company completed the acquisitions of precision 
hardware, Inc. (‘‘precision’’) and sielox security systems pty. ltd. 
(‘‘sielox’’), for a combined purchase price of $48 million. precision 
manufactures and distributes exit devices, door closers and security 
hardware in the united states and provides a complementary prod-
uct offering to the Company’s existing mechanical access business. 
Australian-based sielox specializes in the installation and servicing of 
electronic security systems for new construction projects.

the above acquisitions complement the existing security solutions’ 
product offering, increase its scale and strengthen the value proposition 
offered to end user customers as industry dynamics favor multi-solution 
providers that offer ‘‘one-stop shopping’’ capabilities. the Company con-
tinues to focus on integrating the acquired businesses as it expands the 

suite of its security product and service offerings. In 2006 and 2005, vari-
ous process improvement initiatives were initiated including integration 
of overlapping field service organizations and implementation of certain 
common back office systems. these integration efforts will continue for 
the next two years.

DRIVE FURTHER PROFITABLE GROWTH IN BRANDED 
TOOLS AND HARDWARE

while diversifying the business portfolio through expansion into security 
solutions is important, management also recognizes that the branded 
consumer products and industrial tools businesses are the foundations on 
which the Company was established and provide strong growth and cash 
flow generation prospects. while these businesses are strong and profit-
able today, management is committed to growing these businesses through 
innovative product development, brand support and relentless focus on 
global cost competitiveness in order to maintain vitality over the long term. 
Acquisition-related growth will also be pursued where appropriate. the 
following matters affected these businesses:

>   the Company has rigorously focused on innovation in order to enhance its 
product development pipeline and reduce commercialization cycle time. In 
2005, 350 new skus were successfully launched including the AntiVibe® 
hammer, Quickslide™ knife and FatMax® hacksaw. Innovation continued 
in 2006 with the successful launch of the largest new hand tools product 
introduction in the Company’s history. the FatMax® Xtreme™ product line 
commenced shipping at the end of March 2006 and was supplemented by 
a second phase roll-out initiated in september 2006, which included the 
initial launch of FatMax® Xl™ in european markets.

>   In January 2006, the Company completed the acquisition of Facom s.A. 
(‘‘Facom’’) for 407 million euros ($480 million) which was financed with a 
combination of cash on hand and debt issuance. Facom, based in France, 
is a leading european manufacturer of hand and mechanics tools with 
annual revenues approximating $475 million. Facom designs, manufac-
tures and markets the majority of its tool product offerings to professional 
automotive and industrial end users with its well-known industrial tool 
brands: Facom®, Virax® and usAG®. Facom operates primarily within 
the premium industrial and automotive tools sector in europe, while the 
Company’s pre-existing european customer base is focused mainly on the 
construction and D-I-y (‘‘do-it-yourself’’) channels. As a result, the two 
businesses complement each other and benefit from joint efforts in areas 
such as product sourcing and procurement.

>   on november 30, 2005, national Manufacturing Co. (‘‘national’’) 
was acquired for $174 million. national is a leading north American 
manufacturer and supplier of builders’ hardware, marketing the major-
ity of its products through the two-step cooperative channel to the 
builder trade. national serves over 25,000 outlets with manufacturing 
operations in the u.s., Canada and Mexico and has annual revenues 
of approximately $175 million.
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>   During 2006, the Company continued to focus on the integration of 
the recent Facom and national acquisitions with dedicated integration 
teams. Cost reduction actions for national resulted in the severance of 
240 employees, rationalization of distribution processes and transitioning 
of certain manufacturing activities to Asia. the cost reduction actions 
and integration will continue throughout 2007. Facom is profitable and 
has experienced a long history of success in professional markets in 
europe, especially in France and Italy. nonetheless, many of its products 
are subject to competitive forces that will likely require a significant 
reformation of its cost structure and that of existing stanley europe. 
Management is committed to performing such a reformation in order to 
ensure the long-term competitiveness and preservation of the Facom and 
stanley tool franchises in europe. During 2006, the Company completed 
a consultation process with its european works Council regarding the 
reorganization of its Facom and stanley hand tools activities in europe 
(these ‘‘Initiatives’’). these Initiatives will, among other things, imple-
ment growth strategies and reduce costs by rationalizing manufacturing, 
logistics, sales and support organizations. It will result in the severance 
of approximately 580 employees, the closure of two legacy Facom fac-
tories in France and four legacy Facom distribution centers located in 
the united kingdom, Belgium, Germany and switzerland. the Company 
estimates approximately $75 million in cash expenditures will be incurred 
for these Initiatives, the majority of which has been recorded in the Facom 
purchase price allocation. these Initiatives commenced during the latter 
half of 2006 and implementation will continue throughout 2007.

>   In July 2006, the Company acquired approximately 67% of the out-
standing shares of Besco pneumatic Corporation (‘‘Besco’’), a leading 
manufacturer of pneumatic tools for $38 million in cash. over the next 
five years, the Company will have the option to increase its ownership 
by an additional 15% to an ultimate ownership of 82%. Besco, which is 
headquartered in taiwan and also has operations in China, possesses 
state-of-the-art research and development capabilities and efficient pro-
duction facilities. Besco was one of stanley fastening system’s significant 
suppliers and approximately half of its 2005 sales of $38 million were 
to the Company. the acquisition is a key step in reducing the fastening 
systems business’ existing cost structure and will facilitate the pursuit of 
business in emerging markets aided by Besco’s brand strength in Asia.

CONTINUE TO INVEST IN THE STANLEY BRAND

the stanley® brand is recognized as one of the world’s great brands and is 
one of the Company’s most valuable assets. Brand support was increased 
during 2006, 2005 and 2004, including television advertising campaigns asso-
ciated with new product roll-outs, continued nAsCAR racing sponsorships as 
well as more print and web-based advertising that generated approximately 
one billion brand impressions annually. these advertising and marketing 
campaigns yielded strong results as evidenced by various hand tools metrics 
during 2006: web traffic increase of 31%; sales lead increase of 9%; brand 
awareness increase of 30% and intent to buy increase of 30% versus 2005.

INSTITUTIONALIzE THE STANLEY  
FULFILLmENT SYSTEm

the Company continued to practice the operating disciplines specified by 
the stanley Fulfillment system (‘‘sFs’’), which is a continuous operational 
improvement process committed to increasing customer and shareowner 
value. sFs’s core disciplines consist of striving to achieve perfect quality, 
service excellence, optimal cost, and environmental health & safety. the 
Company applies sFs to many aspects of its business including procure-
ment, maximizing customer fill rates, acquisition integration, and other 
key business processes. the sFs program helped to mitigate the impact of 
material price inflation that was experienced in recent years. In 2007, the 
Company plans to expand its efforts to leverage sFs across the enterprise 
with the intent of increasing working capital turns, decreasing cycle times, 
and increasing customer satisfaction.

Aside from the strategic commentary above, four other matters having 
a significant impact on the Company’s results were inflation, currency 
exchange rate fluctuations, share repurchase and stock option expensing.

the Company has been negatively impacted by inflation, primarily 
commodity and freight, which has increased costs by approximately 
$85 million over the past two years. During this period, the Company 
has recovered approximately 68% of the cost increase through pricing 
actions, and largely offset the remainder through various cost reduction 
initiatives. the Company expects the negative impact of inflation during 
2007 will be in the range of $60 – $65 million, and plans to recover more 
than two-thirds of this impact through pricing, and offset the remainder 
through productivity actions.

In recent years, the strengthening of foreign currencies had a favorable 
impact on the translation of foreign currency-denominated operating 
results into u.s. dollars. It is estimated that the favorable impact of 
foreign currency translation, including acquired companies, contributed 
$0.04 and $0.12 of diluted earnings per share from continuing operations 
in 2005 and 2004, and had no effect on 2006 earnings per share. this 
impact was principally from the Canadian dollar and Asian currencies in 
2005 and european currencies in 2004. Fluctuations in foreign currency 
exchange rates relative to the u.s. dollar may have a significant impact 
on future earnings, either positive or negative.

During 2006, the Company repurchased 4 million outstanding shares of its 
common stock for $200 million. this stock repurchase program was accre-
tive to diluted earnings per share by approximately 13 cents in 2006. this 
was partially offset by the issuance of 2.1 million shares of common stock 
under various employee plans.



the stAnley woRks 

36

In 2006, the Company adopted Financial Accounting standards Board 
statement no. 123 (revised 2004), ‘‘share-Based payment’’ (‘‘sFAs 
123R’’), which requires all share-based payments, including grants of 
employee stock options, to be recognized as an expense in the Consolidated 
statement of operations based on their fair values as they are earned by 
the employees under the vesting terms. pursuant to the adoption of sFAs 
123R, the Company recognized $9 million of non-cash, pre-tax stock option 
compensation expense in 2006, which negatively impacted diluted earnings 
per share by 7 cents compared to the corresponding 2005 period. Refer 
to note A significant Accounting policies of the notes to Consolidated 
Financial statements for further discussion of the adoption of sFAs 123R.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Below is a summary of the Company’s operating results at the consolidated 
level, followed by an overview of business segment performance. the terms 
‘‘organic’’ and ‘‘core’’ are utilized to describe results aside from the signifi-
cant impact of acquisitions and do not include their results of operations 
until they have reached their respective one year anniversary dates. this 
ensures appropriate comparability to operating results of prior periods.

neT SaleS  net sales from continuing operations were $4.019 billion in 
2006, as compared to $3.285 billion in 2005, a 22% increase. Acquisitions 
contributed 21% or $689 million of the sales increase. organic sales 
increased 1% driven by relatively consistent volume, pricing levels and for-
eign currency impact compared to the prior year. the organic increase was 
generated by share gains achieved in the consumer hand tools and automat-
ic doors businesses offset by price and volume declines experienced in the 
fastening systems business. Favorable foreign currency translation in the 
Americas and europe was partially offset by a negative impact from Asia.

net sales from continuing operations were $3.285 billion in 2005, as 
compared to $2.997 billion in 2004, a 10% increase. Acquisitions contrib-
uted 6% or $167 million of the sales increase. organic sales increased 
4% driven by 2% volume growth, 1% favorable foreign currency and a 1% 
positive pricing impact. the organic volume growth was attributed to strong 
Consumer products demand based on successful consumer hand tool and 
garage storage new product introductions, as well as increases in several 
Industrial tools businesses, principally industrial mechanics tools, hydraulic 
tools, leveling / measuring tools and fastening systems. Favorable foreign 
currency translation in Canada and Asia increased net sales by 1%.

GrOSS prOfiT  the Company reported gross profit from continuing 
operations of $1.459 billion, or 36% of net sales, in 2006, compared to 
$1.181 billion, or 36% of net sales, in the prior year. the acquired busi-
nesses increased gross profit by $265 million. Included in the 2006 gross 
profit is the unfavorable impact of $22 million in non-cash inventory 
step-up charges related to the initial turnover of acquired inventory. Gross 
profit for 2006 was 37% of net sales excluding this non-recurring item, 
primarily due to the positive impact of the Facom acquisition. Core gross 
profit as a percentage of net sales was 36% in 2006, which was consis-

tent with the prior year. the benefits of prior cost reduction actions, pro-
ductivity improvements from the stanley Fulfillment system, and pricing 
actions offset continued margin pressure from commodity and other infla-
tion which resulted in approximately $48 million of additional costs, and a 
decline in fastening systems. the Company expects inflation to increase 
2007 costs by approximately $60 – $65 million, which management plans 
to mitigate through various customer pricing actions and continued cost 
reduction and productivity initiatives. the fastening systems’ gross profit 
decline reflected lower sales volumes, a result of weakening housing 
markets and price erosion, as well as a commitment to shed unprofitable 
business; gross profit in this business was further impacted by commod-
ity cost inflation. Management launched an extensive cost reduction 
initiative with the objective to return fastening systems’ to acceptable 
profitability over a two year period.

the Company reported gross profit from continuing operations of $1.181 
billion, or 36% of net sales, in 2005, compared to $1.104 billion, or 37% 
of net sales, in the prior year. Acquisitions increased gross profit by $52 
million. the remaining $25 million improvement was primarily attributed to 
the increase in organic sales volume and continued benefits of the stanley 
Fulfillment system. As a percentage of sales, the year over year gross 
margin rate decline primarily stems from unfavorable mix and cost absorp-
tion in the fastening business, and to a lesser extent the impact of recently 
acquired businesses which possess lower gross margin percentages until 
integration synergies are realized. During 2005, there was carryover of 
commodity inflation from 2004 which resulted in approximately $40 million 
of additional costs that were mostly recovered through favorable pricing 
actions and cost reduction initiatives.

SG&a expenSeS  selling, general and administrative expenses from 
continuing operations were $955 million, or 24% of net sales, in 2006, com-
pared to $737 million, or 22% of net sales, in the prior year. the increase of 
$218 million primarily relates to acquired businesses that increased costs 
by $192 million, $11 million of increased non-cash stock compensation 
expense principally associated with the adoption of stock option expensing 
during 2006, and $11 million of increased brand support. excluding acquisi-
tions, sG&A as a percentage of sales increased slightly to 23% of net sales 
compared with 22% in 2005 due to the items described above, partially 
offset by benefits received from prior restructuring actions.

selling, general and administrative expenses from continuing operations 
were $737 million, or 22% of net sales, in 2005, compared to $691 million, 
or 23% of net sales, in the prior year. the increase of $46 million mainly 
pertains to acquired businesses that increased costs by $34 million, and 
$14 million of increased brand support. excluding acquisitions, sG&A as a 
percentage of sales decreased 50 basis points compared with 2004 levels 
despite the higher brand support expense due to sales volume leverage, 
lower sarbanes-oxley compliance costs and effective cost controls.



2006 AnnuAl RepoRt 

37

inTereST anD OTher-neT  net interest expense from continuing 
operations in 2006 was $65 million, compared to $34 million in 2005. the 
increase was mainly due to the november 2005 issuance of $450 million 
in junior subordinated debt securities to fund acquisitions, and to a lesser 
extent increased commercial paper borrowings resulting primarily from the 
execution of the $200 million share repurchase program in the first half 
of 2006, along with higher applicable short-term interest rates. Interest 
expense will increase in 2007 due to borrowings associated with the 
January 2007 acquisition of hsM for $545 million; the earlier discussed net 
earnings expectations for hsM contemplate the interest costs related to 
financing the acquisition.

net interest expense from continuing operations in 2005 was $34 million, 
consistent with 2004 levels. Interest expense was held fairly constant in a 
period of rising interest rates through the maintenance of overall lower debt 
levels during most of 2005 and application of effective hedging strategies.

other-net from continuing operations represented $57 million of expense 
in 2006 compared to $48 million of expense in 2005. the increase was pri-
marily driven by $9 million of higher intangible asset amortization expense 
associated with acquisition activity, a $4 million pension plan curtailment 
charge in the u.k., and a $5 million increase in foreign currency losses, 
partially offset by lower environmental expense and decreased losses on 
the sale of fixed assets.

other-net from continuing operations represented $48 million of expense in 
2005, an increase of $2 million over 2004. the slight increase was primarily 
driven by $6 million of higher intangible asset amortization associated with 
acquisition activity partially offset by lower foreign currency losses.

inCOMe TaxeS  the Company’s effective income tax rate from continu-
ing operations for 2006 was 21% as compared to 24% for 2005 and 27% 
for 2004.

the lower effective tax rate in the current year compared to 2005 is 
driven by the realization of credits against u.s. taxes and the inclusion 
of the european-based Facom acquisition. Additionally, substantial costs 
were incurred in 2005 for the repatriation of foreign earnings under the 
American Jobs Creation Act and such costs were not incurred in 2006. It 
is anticipated the 2007 effective tax rate will increase to within a 25% to 
27% range, in part because certain credits affecting the 2006 and 2005 tax 
rate will not re-occur.

the decrease in the effective income tax rate in 2005 compared to 2004 
reflects a higher proportion of taxable income in countries with lower statu-
tory rates, as well as the recording of a $5 million tax benefit pertaining to 
the execution of tax planning strategies enabling the reduction of a previ-
ously provided valuation allowance on future utilization of certain prior year 
european net operating losses. Also, a $17 million tax benefit was recorded 
arising from the final settlement of various tax contingencies based on the 

resolution of income tax audits in 2005. In october 2004, the American 
Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (the ‘‘Act’’) was signed into law. the Act created 
a temporary incentive for u.s. corporations to repatriate foreign earnings 
by providing an 85 percent deduction for certain dividends received from 
controlled foreign corporations. During 2005, the Company repatriated 
$250 million in foreign earnings and recorded $16 million of tax expense 
pertaining to the repatriation.

DiSCOnTinueD OperaTiOnS  net loss from discontinued operations 
of $1 million in 2006 primarily relates to the previous operating results and 
loss from the sale of the u.k. paint decorator tool business in March 2006. 
In 2005, the Company announced the planned sale of two small businesses: 
the u.k. paint decorator tool business and a small appliance hinge busi-
ness. the operations of these two held for sale businesses, along with the 
resolution of tax and other matters associated with the 2004 divestitures, 
resulted in a net loss from discontinued operations of $2 million in 2005. 
net earnings from discontinued operations were $130 million in 2004, 
reflecting a $95 million net gain on the March 2004 sale of the residential 
entry door business, a $24 million net gain on the December 2004 divesti-
ture of the home décor business, a $4 million net loss on the sale of a small 
German paint roller business, as well as the operating results of these 
discontinued operations.

BUSINESS SEgmENT RESULTS

the Company’s reportable segments are an aggregation of businesses that 
have similar products and services, among other factors. the Company 
utilizes operating profit, which is defined as net sales minus cost of sales, 
sG&A and allocated corporate and common expenses; and operating profit 
as a percentage of net sales to assess the profitability of each segment. 
segment operating profit excludes interest income, interest expense, other-
net, intangible asset amortization expense, restructuring and asset impair-
ments, and income tax expense. Refer to note o Restructuring and Asset 
Impairments and note G Goodwill and other Intangible Assets of the notes 
to Consolidated Financial statements for the amount of restructuring charges 
and asset impairments, and intangibles amortization expense, respec-
tively, attributable to each segment. As discussed previously, the Company’s 
operations are classified into three business segments: Consumer products, 
Industrial tools, and security solutions.

COnSuMer prODuCTS
(Millions of Dollars)  2006  2005  2004

net sales from  
 continuing operations $ 1,329 $ 1,098 $ 1,043
operating profit from  
 continuing operations $ 210 $ 185 $ 171

% of net sales  15.8%  16.9%  16.4%



the stAnley woRks 

38

net sales from continuing operations of Consumer products increased 21% 
in 2006 compared to 2005. of this increase, acquisitions, predominantly 
national, accounted for 18%, while organic volume and price rose 2% and 
1%, respectively. Foreign currency did not significantly impact sales. the 
consumer hand tool business continued to achieve share gains from the 
strong performance of the new FatMax® Xtreme™ and FatMax® Xl™ product 
lines which launched in the u.s. and european markets, representing the 
largest new hand tools product introduction in the Company’s history. At 
the same time, the FatMax® range of product offerings delivered growth 
through continued premium innovation, distribution point expansion and 
related brand support. this favorable performance was partially offset by 
lower volumes in the consumer storage and mechanics tools businesses. 
the prior year sales in the consumer storage business reflected higher vol-
ume from the initial launch of garage storage products. the 110 basis point 
decline in segment operating margin is primarily due to $8 million of non-
cash inventory step-up amortization from acquisitions, the dilutive impact 
of national margins due to its legacy high-cost manufacturing structure 
which the Company continues to transition to low cost countries, increased 
brand support, and commodity cost inflation, partially offset by savings 
derived from price recovery initiatives and prior cost reduction actions.

Consumer products’ net sales from continuing operations in 2005 repre-
sented a 5% increase over 2004. of this 5% increase, the november 2005 
national acquisition contributed 1% while organic volume increased 3% 
driven by strength in the hand tools and consumer storage business associ-
ated with successful new product introductions. the effects of currency 
and pricing contributed equally to the remaining 1% increase. solid organic 
sales growth was achieved despite an unanticipated inventory correction by 
certain large north American customers in December 2005 which negatively 
impacted sales by approximately $30 million versus normal levels. operating 
margin improved 50 basis points primarily due to leverage associated with 
the increase in sales volume.

inDuSTrial TOOlS
(Millions of Dollars)  2006  2005  2004

net sales from  
 continuing operations  $ 1,803 $ 1,370 $ 1,293
operating profit from  
 continuing operations $ 159 $ 136 $ 133

% of net sales  8.8%  9.9%  10.3%

Industrial tools’ net sales increased 32% in 2006 compared to 2005, primar-
ily driven by the Facom and Besco acquisitions, which increased sales by 
$452 million or 33%. Favorable pricing actions and favorable foreign curren-
cy collectively contributed 1%, and were more than offset by a core volume 
decline of 2%. the majority of this decrease was due to fastening systems 
organic sales declining 7% compared to the prior year stemming from weak-
ness in the u.s. construction market and management’s commitment to turn 
down unprofitable business. this decline more than offset strong results in 
the Mac tools, Facom, hydraulic tools, industrial tools and storage business-
es, as organic sales aside from fastening systems increased 3% in 2006 

compared to the prior year. Mac tools continues to benefit from improved 
retention of its distributors based on management actions initiated early 
in the year. Industrial tools and storage and the hydraulic tools businesses 
obtained share gains from the success of new product introductions in the 
oil and mining industries as demand for such commodities remained strong 
during 2006. operating profit as a percentage of net sales decreased by 110 
basis points due to $13 million of non-cash inventory step-up amortization 
associated with the Facom acquisition, commodity inflation, supply chain 
inefficiencies in certain businesses due to increased backlog, and the sales 
volume decline and cost inefficiencies experienced by the u.s. fasten-
ing systems business, partially offset by the accretive impact of Facom. 
Management is committed to restoring the fastening systems business’ 
long-term cost competitiveness by continuing the migration of production 
to Asia, reducing the overall sG&A and manufacturing footprint, as well 
as sku rationalization. Additionally, the acquisition of Asian-based Besco 
and the opening of a new manufacturing facility in China during 2006 will 
strategically aid the fastening systems business’ long-term vitality.

Industrial tools’ net sales increased 6% in 2005 from 2004. the carryover 
effect from the 2004 Cst/Berger and related 2005 acquisitions contributed 
nearly 1% of the sales increase. the 5% organic sales increase was comprised 
of 3% volume and 2% price. sales volume rose on continued strong demand 
in the industrial mechanics tools, hydraulic tools, laser leveling tools, and stor-
age businesses, and to a lesser extent fastening systems. these volume gains 
were partially offset by declines in the Mac tools and assembly technologies 
businesses. Industrial mechanics tools’ increase in volume was driven by 
share gains achieved from new product introductions and improved customer 
service. hydraulic tools also benefited from new product introductions as well 
as higher product demand associated with the steel scrap market which was 
driven by the strong global demand for steel. laser leveling tools continued to 
increase its market share in the u.s. and european professional markets due 
to new product offerings. Although demand began to slow during the latter 
half of 2005, fastening systems achieved moderate sales growth during 2005 
based on demand from the u.s. construction and industrial channels along 
with the success of innovative nail products. the storage business increase 
in volume was driven by the successful launch of a vertical lift module auto-
mated storage and retrieval system as well as strong demand experienced 
in the industrial, heavy truck, and automotive dealership markets. Assembly 
technologies was affected by weakness in the u.s. auto industry, as the ‘‘Big 
3’’ automakers continued to reduce capital expenditures in conjunction with 
other cost reduction initiatives. Mac tools sales fell due to a decline in the 
number of distributors in 2005 compared to 2004 as dealer attrition outpaced 
recruiting efforts. however, the average sales per Mac tools’ distributor was 
up 4% versus 2004 and operating margin improved slightly. operating profit in 
2005 was $136 million, or 9.9% of net sales, up slightly compared to $133 mil-
lion, or 10.3% of net sales, in 2004. the 40 basis point decline in the operating 
margin rate, despite the sales volume increase, was primarily due to increased 
freight costs, as well as unfavorable mix and cost absorption in the fastening 
business where manufacturing volume was lower in 2005 compared to 2004 on 
improved inventory management.
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SeCuriTy SOluTiOnS
(Millions of Dollars)  2006  2005  2004

net sales from  
 continuing operations $ 887 $ 818 $ 662
operating profit from  
 continuing operations  $ 134 $ 124 $ 108

% of net sales  15.1%  15.1%  16.3%

During 2006, security solutions’ sales increased 8%. Acquisitions contrib-
uted 4%, organic sales volume 2%, pricing 1%, and currency 1%. the auto-
matic doors business continued to grow its service revenue and achieved 
strong national account share gains driven by the favorable impact of new 
product introductions, new store openings and increased modernization 
of pre-existing stores. the mechanical access business benefited from 
new product introductions and its expanded ability to provide customers 
with virtually all of their varied mechanical product needs. In addition, the 
security segment as a whole benefited from the growth and continued 
integration of its national service footprint. the 2006 operating margin as a 
percentage of net sales was consistent with 2005 as the favorable impact 
from prior cost reduction and integration actions were negated by commod-
ity cost inflation and the dilutive impact of recently acquired companies 
until integration initiatives unfold.

security solutions’ sales increased 24% in 2005. excluding acquisitions, 
organic sales increased 2%. sales volume and favorable foreign currency 
each represented 1% of the organic increase. the increase in organic vol-
ume was driven by the north American mechanical access and electronic 
security integration businesses, partially offset by declines in the north 
American automatic door and Blick u.k. security businesses. the strong 
sales volume achieved by the mechanical access business was driven by 
increased demand from its national accounts based on the continued abil-
ity to provide a diversified product offering to such customers, while the 
north American security integration business benefited from strong market 
conditions. the decline in Blick was attributable to overall softness in the 
u.k. economy, while the automatic doors business was negatively impacted 
by the non-recurrence of a major project upgrade at a large customer as 
compared with 2004. Acquisitions contributed $17 million of operating 
profit. the operating margin rate decrease is primarily attributed to unfa-
vorable mix as a result of a higher proportion of electronic access sales as 
compared to mechanical access, as well as the impact of recent acquisi-
tions as integration synergies were not yet fully achieved, and there was 
unfavorable impact from non-recurring inventory step-up costs in purchase 
accounting. however, the second half 2005 operating margin was 15.8% 
compared to 14.4% in the first half, reflecting the benefit of various cost 
reduction initiatives including headcount reductions at several of the busi-
nesses, progress in the integration of field service organizations and back 
office systems, and the continued roll-out of the stanley Fulfillment system 
to recently acquired businesses.

RESTRUCTURINg ACTIVITIES

At December 30, 2006, the restructuring and asset impairment reserve bal-
ance was $63.1 million, which the Company expects to be fully expended by 
the end of 2007. Restructuring charges in 2007 are expected to increase to 
approximately $.20 per diluted share. A summary of the Company’s restruc-
turing reserve activity from December 31, 2005 to December 30, 2006 is as 
follows (in millions):

    Acquisition net 
(Millions of Dollars) 12/31/05 Impact Additions usage Currency 12/30/06

acquisitions
severance $ 2.2 $ 68.5 $ 0.4 $ (16.4) $ – $ 54.7
Facility Closure  –  2.7  –  (0.3)  –  2.4
other   0.1  2.0  0.5  (1.1)  –  1.5
2006 actions  –  –  11.9  (9.3)  –  2.6
pre-2006 actions  2.6  –  1.0  (1.8)  0.1  1.9

   $ 4.9 $ 73.2 $ 13.8 $ (28.9) $ 0.1 $ 63.1

2006 aCTiOnS  During 2006, the Company initiated a cost reduction ini-
tiative in order to maintain its cost competitiveness and vitality. severance 
charges of $11.9 million were recorded during the year relating to a reduc-
tion of 728 employees. Approximately $3.0 million of this charge pertained 
to the Consumer products segment; $4.5 million to the Industrial tools 
segment; and $4.4 million to the security solutions segment. of these 
amounts, $9.3 million has been utilized to date, with $2.6 million of reserves 
remaining as of December 30, 2006. In addition to severance, $4.1 million 
for a u.k. pension plan curtailment was recorded in other-net and $1.3 mil-
lion of related consulting costs were recorded in sG&A.

pre-2006 aCTiOnS  During 2005, the Company initiated a $5.7 million 
cost reduction in various businesses, of which $4.6 million was recorded in 
2005 and $1.1 million was recorded during 2006. the action was comprised 
of the severance of 170 employees and the exit of a leased facility. of this 
amount, $5.0 million has been utilized to date with $0.7 million of accrual 
remaining as of December 30, 2006. Approximately $4.3 million of this 
charge pertained to the security solutions segment; $0.9 million to the 
Industrial tools segment; and $0.5 million to the Consumer products seg-
ment. In addition, as of December 30, 2006, $1.2 million of reserves remain 
relating to pre-2005 actions.

aCquiSiTiOn relaTeD  During 2006, the Company completed a 
consultation process with its european works Council regarding the reor-
ganization of its Facom and stanley hand tools activities in europe (these 
‘‘Initiatives’’). these Initiatives will, among other things, implement growth 
strategies and reduce costs by rationalizing manufacturing, logistics, sales 
and support organizations resulting in the severance of approximately 580 
employees, the closure of two legacy Facom factories in France, as well 
as four legacy Facom distribution centers located in the united kingdom, 
Belgium, Germany and switzerland. the facility rationalization commenced 
recently with the severance of approximately 440 employees, closure of 
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Free cash flow, as defined in the following table, was $359 million in 2006 and 
$294 million in 2005, considerably exceeding net earnings from continuing 
operations in a period of continued strong sales volume growth. the Company 
believes free cash flow is an important indicator of its liquidity, as well as its 
ability to fund future growth and provide a dividend to shareowners.

(Millions of Dollars)   2006  2005  2004

net cash provided by  
 operating activities  $ 439 $ 362 $ 372
less: capital expenditures  (60)  (53)  (48)
less: capitalized software  (20)  (15)  (7)

Free cash flow $ 359 $ 294 $ 317

Based on its demonstrated ability to generate cash flow from operations as 
well as its strong balance sheet and credit position at December 30, 2006, 
the Company believes it has the financial flexibility to deploy capital to its 
shareholders’ advantage through a combination of acquisitions, dividends, 
debt repayment, and potential future share repurchases.

In 2006, acquisition spending totaled $572 million, primarily related to 
Facom and Besco, and $20 million of debt repayments associated with the 
2004 acquisition of Blick. 2005 acquisition spending amounted to $287 
million principally for the national, security Group, sielox and precision 
acquisitions discussed previously. As part of its portfolio diversification 
shift, in 2004 the Company received $205 million in net proceeds from sales 
of the residential entry door and home décor businesses, and disbursed 
$301 million for business acquisitions. In 2005, the $21 million of remaining 
taxes due on the gain from these business sales were paid. pursuant to its 
profitable growth strategy, the Company will continue to assess its current 
business portfolio for disposition opportunities and make acquisitions in 
favored markets while minimizing the risk associated with large customer 
concentrations. the Company likely will complete additional 2007 acquisi-
tions requiring funding of approximately $50 – $75 million, aside from hsM 
which was acquired for $545 million in January 2007.

During 2006, the Company entered into a sale-leaseback transaction of its 
corporate headquarters building. under the terms of the transaction, the 
Company received $23 million in cash proceeds, reported in investing cash 
flows, and recorded a deferred gain of $11 million which will be amortized 
over the 15 year operating lease term. the cash proceeds were utilized to 
pay down short-term borrowings.

finanCinG aCTiviTieS  the Company financed the hsM acquisition 
with proceeds from existing short-term credit facilities and a new $500 mil-
lion 364-day bridge facility entered into on January 8, 2007. the Company 
remains committed to its current credit ratings and intends to refinance this 
transaction with a combination of available cash, debt and equity-linked 
securities, which it believes will be consistent with maintaining those ratings. 
Management does not anticipate the need to issue common equity in the 
short term in order to achieve this objective. however, the above refinancing 
is expected to entail the issuance of common stock in the medium term.

the two French factories and exit from the united kingdom distribution 
center. the Company expects to complete these Initiatives during 2007. 
Cash expenditures to be incurred for these Initiatives are estimated at 
approximately $75 million, of which $59.4 million has been recorded to 
the Facom purchase price allocation and $0.7 million was reported as a 
2006 restructuring charge. As of December 30, 2006, $6.6 million has been 
utilized to date, with $53.5 million accrual remaining. Also, $1.4 million of 
asset impairments were recorded to Cost of sales relating to inventory 
rationalization associated with the plant shutdowns.

In connection with its acquisition of national, the Company recorded $8.0 
million in severance costs for 243 employees and $0.3 million for facility clo-
sure costs to the purchase price allocation, and $0.2 million was recorded 
as a restructuring charge. As of December 30, 2006, $5.8 million has been 
utilized with $2.7 million accrual remaining.

FINANCIAL CONDITION

liquiDiTy, SOurCeS anD uSeS Of CapiTal  the Company’s 
primary sources of liquidity are cash flows generated from operations and 
borrowings under various credit facilities.

OperaTinG anD inveSTinG aCTiviTieS  the Company has histori-
cally generated strong cash flows from operations. In 2006, cash flow from 
operations was $439 million compared to $362 million in 2005. the $77 mil-
lion improvement in 2006 versus 2005 is mainly attributable to higher cash 
earnings on the strength of acquisitions, reflecting the removal of increased 
non-cash expenses in 2006 (particularly inventory step-up amortization 
associated with acquisitions, intangible asset amortization expense and 
stock-based compensation expense). Receivables, inventories and accounts 
payable generated $11 million higher cash inflows in 2006 compared with 
2005 due to increased receivable sales. these favorable impacts were par-
tially offset by cash outflows for restructuring activities which amounted to 
$29 million in 2006, an increase of $20 million over 2005. In 2005, operating 
cash flow totaled $362 million, down slightly from 2004.

Capital expenditures were $80 million in 2006, $68 million in 2005, and 
$55 million in 2004. the higher capital expenditures in 2006 were driven 
by upgrades of information systems, the incremental impact of normal 
capital spending incurred by recent acquisitions, and equipment pur-
chases related to new product introductions. the increase in 2005 capital 
expenditures versus 2004 was due to new product introductions, informa-
tion system upgrades and plant investments in China and thailand. the 
Company expects future capital expenditures to increase approximately 
in proportion to its sales growth.
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payments on long-term debt amounted to $4 million in 2006, $72 million 
in 2005 and $154 million in 2004. payments in 2004 reflect the maturity 
of $120 million of debt on March 1, 2004. net repayments of short-term 
borrowings in 2006 amounted to a cash outflow of $66 million as the 
Company paid down commercial paper utilizing a portion of the strong 
operating cash flows. net short-term borrowings provided cash inflows 
of $103 million in 2005 and $20 million in 2004. the increase in 2005 was 
primarily attributed to commercial paper issued to fund the 2005 acquisi-
tions aside from national.

In november 2005, the Company consummated a section 144A offer-
ing, with registration rights, of $450 million of enhanced trust preferred 
securities (‘‘etps’’) through its unconsolidated trust subsidiary, the 
stanley works Capital trust I (the “trust’’). Contemporaneously, the 
Company borrowed the proceeds of the etps offering from the trust by 
issuing $450 million of junior subordinated debt securities payable to the 
trust. the net proceeds were used to partially fund the acquisitions of 
national and Facom which closed on november 30, 2005 and January 1, 
2006, respectively. these securities and underlying junior subordinated 
debt securities (collectively, the ‘‘securities’’) feature a 5 year fixed rate 
period ending December 1, 2010 and a floating rate period ending December 
1, 2045. the fixed coupon was set at 5.902%. the obligations, tenor and 
terms of the etps mirror those of the junior subordinated debt securities. 
the securities can be redeemed by the Company on or after December 1, 
2010 without penalty for early payment.

In 2005, the Company amended its long-term (multi-year) $400 million 
committed credit facility by increasing the facility size to $550 million 
and adding a multi currency sub-limit of $250 million available in euros 
or pound sterling. this long-term credit facility matures in october 2009. 
In addition, the Company has short-term lines of credit with numerous 
foreign banks aggregating $251 million, of which $191 million was available 
at December 30, 2006. short-term arrangements are reviewed annually 
for renewal. Aggregate credit lines amounted to $801 million. the $550 
million committed credit facility is designated as a liquidity back-stop for 
the Company’s commercial paper program. As of December 30, 2006 there 
were no outstanding loans under this facility and the Company had $31 
million of commercial paper outstanding. In addition to these lines of credit, 
the Company maintains a committed facility designed for the securitization 
of certain trade accounts receivable for purposes of additional liquidity. As 
of December 30, 2006, the Company’s maximum available funds under this 
arrangement were $87 million, of which $60 million was utilized.

In 2003, the Company filed a shelf Registration in the amount of $900 
million. At December 30, 2006, the shelf Registration was unutilized. this 
filing represents a prospectus which, if accompanied by a prospectus 
supplement, would allow the Company to offer, issue and sell, together or 
separately, debt, equity and other securities.

the Company increased its cash dividend per common share to $1.18 in 
2006. Dividends per common share increased 3.5% in 2006, 5.5% in 2005 
and 4.9% in 2004.

In 2006, the Company completed a stock repurchase program whereby it 
repurchased 4 million outstanding shares of its common stock for $200 
million. the Company will continue to assess the possibility of repurchas-
ing more of its outstanding common stock, based on a number of factors 
including the level of acquisition activity, the market price of the Company’s 
common stock and the current financial condition of the Company.

the Company’s debt to capital ratio was 39% at the end of 2006, 42% at 
the end of 2005 and 32% at the end of 2004. Reflecting the credit protec-
tion measures that are incorporated into the terms of the $450 million 
etps, the debt to capital ratio of the Company is more fairly represented by 
apportioning 50% of the etps issuance to equity when making the calcula-
tion. the resulting debt to capital ratio from this apportionment is 30% as 
of December 30, 2006. this adjustment is consistent with the treatment 
accorded these securities by the nationally recognized statistical ratings 
organizations that rate the Company’s debt securities.

COnTraCTual ObliGaTiOnS  the following summarizes the 
Company’s significant contractual obligations and commitments that 
impact its liquidity:

  payments Due by period

     2008 - 2010 - 
(Millions of Dollars) Total 2007 2009 2011 thereafter

long-term debt $  910 $  230 $   20 $    8 $  652

operating leases 111 29 38 21 23

Deferred compensation 40 5 10 12 13

pension funding  
 obligations(a) 17 17 – – –

Material purchase  
 commitments 36 9 18 9 –

outsourcing and  
 other obligations 32 19 13 – –

Total contractual  
 cash obligations $ 1,146 $  309 $   99 $   50 $  688

(a)  the Company anticipates that funding of its pension and postretirement benefit plans 
in 2007 will approximate $17 million. that amount principally represents contributions 
either required by regulations or laws or, with respect to unfunded plans, necessary to 
fund current benefits. the Company has not presented estimated pension and postretire-
ment funding in the table above beyond 2007 as funding can vary significantly from year 
to year based upon changes in the fair value of the plan assets, actuarial assumptions, or 
curtailment/settlement actions.

Aside from debt payments, for which there is no tax benefit associated with 
repayment of principal, payment of the above contractual obligations will 
typically generate a cash tax benefit such that the net cash outflow will be 
lower than the gross amounts indicated.
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OTher COMMerCial COMMiTMenTS
  amounts of Commitments expiration per period

     2008 - 2010- 
(Millions of Dollars) Total 2007 2009 2011 thereafter

u.s. lines of credit $ 550 $    – $ 550 $    – $   –

u.s. receivables  
 securitization facility 87 87 – – –

International lines of credit 251 251 – – –

Total commercial  
 commitments $ 888 $ 338 $ 550 $    – $   –

short-term borrowings, long-term debt and lines of credit are explained in 
detail within note I long-term Debt and Financing Arrangements of the 
notes to Consolidated Financial statements. operating leases and other 
commercial commitments are further detailed in note R Commitments and 
Guarantees of the notes to Consolidated Financial statements.

mARKET RISK

Market risk is the potential economic loss that may result from adverse 
changes in the fair value of financial instruments, currencies, commodi-
ties and other items traded in global markets. the Company is exposed 
to market risk from changes in foreign currency exchange rates, interest 
rates, stock prices, and commodity prices. exposure to foreign currency risk 
results because the Company, through its global businesses, enters into 
transactions and makes investments denominated in multiple currencies. 
the Company’s predominant exposures are in european, Canadian and 
Asian currencies, including the Chinese Renminbi (‘‘RMB’’) and the taiwan 
Dollar. Certain cross-currency trade flows arising from sales and procure-
ment activities as well as affiliate cross-border activity are consolidated 
and netted prior to obtaining risk protection, primarily purchased basket 
options. the Company is thus able to capitalize on its global positioning by 
taking advantage of naturally offsetting exposures and portfolio efficien-
cies to reduce the cost of purchasing protection. At times, the Company also 
enters into forward exchange contracts and purchased options to reduce 
the earnings and cash flow impact of non-functional currency denominated 
receivables and payables, predominantly for affiliate transactions. Gains 
and losses from these hedging instruments offset the gains or losses on the 
underlying net exposures, assets and liabilities being hedged. Management 
determines the nature and extent of currency hedging activities, and in 
certain cases, may elect to allow certain currency exposures to remain 
unhedged. the Company has also entered into several cross-currency 
interest rate swaps, to provide a partial hedge of the net investments in 
certain subsidiaries and better match the cash flows of operations to debt 
service requirements. sensitivity to foreign currency exposure risk from 
these financial instruments at the end of 2006 would have been immaterial 
based on the potential loss in fair value from a hypothetical 10% adverse 
movement in all currencies. the Company follows risk management policies 
in executing derivative financial instrument transactions, and does not use 
such instruments for speculative purposes.

on July 21, 2005, China announced it will allow the RMB to fluctuate within 
a very tight band (+/− .3% around the weighted average prior day close) 
thereby effectively adopting a managed float and ending its decade-old 
valuation de facto peg to the u.s. Dollar (‘‘usD’’). the initial appreciation 
was 2%. Besides the initial move, the effect of that policy shift during 
2006 was negligible as total appreciation of the RMB versus the usD at 
year end amounted to only 3%. the Company sources significant products 
from China and other Asian low cost countries for resale in other regions. 
to the extent the RMB or these other currencies appreciate with respect to 
the usD, the Company may experience cost increases on such purchases. 
while the present 3% appreciation of the RMB should not generate mate-
rial cost increases for RMB denominated purchases, further appreciation 
of this or other currencies utilized for procurement could adversely affect 
profitability. In the event significant RMB or other currency appreciation 
occurs, the Company would initiate customer pricing or other actions in an 
effort to mitigate the related cost increases, but it is possible such actions 
would not fully offset the potential unfavorable impact.

the Company’s exposure to interest rate risk results from its outstanding 
debt obligations, short-term investments, and derivative financial instru-
ments employed in the management of its debt portfolio. the debt portfolio 
is managed to achieve capital structure targets and reduce the overall cost 
of borrowing by using a combination of fixed and floating rate debt as well 
as interest rate swaps, and cross-currency swaps. the Company’s primary 
exposure to interest rate risk comes from its floating rate debt in the u.s. 
and europe and is fairly represented by changes in lIBoR and euRIBoR 
rates. At December 30, 2006, the result of a hypothetical two percentage 
point increase in short-term lIBoR and euRIBoR rates would not have 
resulted in a material impact on the pre-tax profit of the Company.

the Company has exposure to commodity prices in many businesses, partic-
ularly brass, nickel, resin, aluminum, copper, zinc, steel, and energy used in 
the production of finished goods. Generally, commodity price exposures are 
not hedged with derivative financial instruments, but instead are actively 
managed through customer pricing actions, procurement-driven cost reduc-
tion initiatives and other productivity improvement projects. In 2005, the 
Company experienced approximately $40 million of commodity and energy 
inflation, most of which was recovered through favorable pricing actions. 
such inflation increased costs by approximately $45 million in 2006, which 
management mitigated through various customer pricing actions and cost 
reduction initiatives. If commodity prices fluctuated to reach new historical 
high levels, similar to those experienced in 2004, the Company’s exposure 
could increase from the expected levels for 2007 as previously discussed. 

Fluctuations in the fair value of the Company’s common stock affect 
domestic retirement plan expense as discussed in the esop section of 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis.
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the assets held by the Company’s defined benefit plans are exposed 
to fluctuations in the market value of securities, primarily global stocks 
and fixed-income securities. the funding obligations for these plans 
would increase in the event of adverse changes in the plan asset val-
ues. the Company employs a conservative asset allocation as well as 
investment consultants to mitigate this risk. Management has worked 
to minimize this exposure by freezing and terminating defined benefit 
plans where appropriate.

sales to the home Depot amounted to 10% of 2006 consolidated net sales 
from continuing operations. the Company has other significant customers, 
particularly home centers and major retailers, though individually there are 
none that exceed 10% of consolidated sales. the loss or material reduc-
tion of business from any such significant customers could have a material 
adverse impact on the Company’s results of operations and cash flows, until 
either such customers were replaced or the Company made the necessary 
adjustments to compensate for the loss of business.

the Company has access to financial resources and borrowing capabili-
ties around the world. there are no material instruments within the debt 
structure that would accelerate payment requirements due to a change in 
credit rating. the Company has the flexibility to elect deferral of interest 
payments on its etps obligation for up to five years. the Company believes 
that its strong financial position, operating cash flows, committed long-
term credit facilities and borrowing capacity, and ready access to equity 
markets provide the financial flexibility necessary to continue its record of 
annual dividend payments, to invest in the routine needs of its businesses, 
to make strategic acquisitions and to fund other initiatives encompassed by 
its growth strategy.

OTHER mATTERS

envirOnMenTal  the Company incurs costs related to environmen-
tal issues as a result of various laws and regulations governing current 
operations as well as the remediation of previously contaminated sites. 
Future laws and regulations are expected to be increasingly stringent 
and will likely increase the Company’s expenditures related to routine 
environmental matters.

the Company accrues for anticipated costs associated with investiga-
tory and remediation efforts in accordance with appropriate accounting 
guidelines which address probability and the ability to reasonably esti-
mate future costs. the liabilities are reassessed whenever circumstances 
become better defined or remediation efforts and their costs can be better 
estimated. subject to the imprecision in estimating future environmental 
costs, the Company believes that any sum it may pay in connection with 
environmental matters in excess of the amounts recorded will not have 
a materially adverse effect on its financial position, results of operations 

or liquidity. Refer to note s Contingencies of the notes to Consolidated 
Financial statements for further information on environmental liabilities 
and related cash flows.

eMplOyee STOCk OWnerShip plan  As detailed in note M 
employee Benefit plans of the notes to Consolidated Financial statements, 
the Company has an employee stock ownership plan (‘‘esop’’) under 
which the ongoing u.s. defined contribution and 401(k) plans are funded. 
overall esop expense is affected by the market value of stanley stock on 
the monthly dates when shares are released, among other factors. net 
esop expense amounted to $2 million in each of the years 2006, 2005 
and 2004. while the average market value of shares released increased 
from $43.20 in 2004 to $49.28 in 2006, other elements of esop expense, 
including a gradual reduction in the number of shares released annually 
from the trust, offset the favorable impact of the higher share price. esop 
expense could increase in the future if the market value of the Company’s 
common stock declines.

neW aCCOunTinG STanDarDS  Refer to note A significant 
Accounting policies of the notes to Consolidated Financial statements for 
a discussion of new accounting pronouncements and the potential impact to 
the Company’s consolidated results of operations and financial position.

CriTiCal aCCOunTinG eSTiMaTeS  preparation of the Company’s 
Consolidated Financial statements requires management to make esti-
mates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabili-
ties, revenues and expenses. significant accounting policies used in the 
preparation of the Consolidated Financial statements are described in note 
A significant Accounting policies. Management believes the most complex 
and sensitive judgments, because of their significance to the Consolidated 
Financial statements, result primarily from the need to make estimates 
about the effects of matters with inherent uncertainty. the most significant 
areas involving management estimates are described below. Actual results 
in these areas could differ from management’s estimates.

alloWance for douBtful accounts  the Company’s estimate for 
its allowance for doubtful accounts related to trade receivables is based 
on two methods. the amounts calculated from each of these methods are 
combined to determine the total amount reserved. First, the Company evalu-
ates specific accounts where information indicates the customers may have 
an inability to meet financial obligations, such as bankruptcy. In these cases, 
the Company uses its judgment, based on the best available facts and circum-
stances, to record a specific reserve for those customers against amounts 
due to reduce the receivable to the amount expected to be collected. these 
specific reserves are reevaluated and adjusted as additional information is 
received. second, a reserve is established for all customers based on a range 
of percentages applied to receivables aging categories. these percentages 
are based on historical collection and write-off experience.
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If circumstances change, for example, the occurrence of higher than expect-
ed defaults or a material adverse change in a major customer’s ability to 
meet its financial obligation to the Company, estimates of the recoverability 
of receivable amounts due could be reduced.

inVentories – loWer of cost or marKet, sloW moVinG and 
oBsolete  u.s. inventories are predominantly valued at the lower of 
lIFo cost or market. the calculation of lIFo reserves, and therefore the 
net inventory valuation, is affected by inflation and deflation in inven-
tory components. the Company ensures all inventory is valued at the 
lower of cost or market, and continually reviews the carrying value of 
discontinued product lines and stock-keeping-units (‘‘skus’’) to deter-
mine that these items are properly valued. the Company also continually 
evaluates the composition of its inventory and identifies obsolete and/or 
slow-moving inventories. Inventory items identified as obsolete and/or 
slow-moving are evaluated to determine if reserves are required. the 
Company identifies these inventories and assesses the ability to dispose 
of them at a price greater than cost. If it is determined that cost is less 
than market value, cost is used for inventory valuation. If market value 
is less than cost, the Company writes down the related inventory to 
that value. If a write down to the current market value is necessary, the 
market value cannot be greater than the net realizable value, or ceiling 
(defined as selling price less costs to sell and dispose), and cannot be 
lower than the net realizable value less a normal profit margin, also 
called the floor. If the Company is not able to achieve its expectations 
regarding net realizable value of inventory at its current value, reserves 
would have to be adjusted accordingly.

GoodWill and intanGiBle assets  the Company completed acqui-
sitions in 2006 and 2005 valued at $552 million and $289 million, respec-
tively. the assets and liabilities of acquired businesses are recorded at their 
fair values at the date of acquisition. Goodwill represents costs in excess 
of fair values assigned to the underlying net assets of acquired businesses. 
the Company reported $1.1 billion of goodwill and $298 million of indefi-
nite-lived trade names at December 30, 2006.

In accordance with sFAs no. 142, goodwill and intangible assets deemed 
to have indefinite lives are not amortized, but are subject to annual 
impairment testing. the identification and measurement of goodwill 
and unamortized intangible asset impairment involves the estimation 
of fair value. the valuation of goodwill also requires the identification 
and valuation of reporting units. the estimates of fair value of goodwill, 
indefinite-lived intangible assets and related reporting units are based 
on the best information available at the date of assessment, which pri-
marily incorporate management assumptions about future cash flows. 

Future cash flows can be affected by changes in industry or market 
conditions or the rate and extent to which anticipated synergies or cost 
savings are realized with newly acquired entities. while the Company 
has not recorded goodwill or other intangible asset impairment losses 
in many years, it is possible impairments may occur in the future in the 
event expected profitability, cash flows or trade name usage change 
significantly from current estimates.

ProPerty, Plant and eQuiPment  the Company generally values 
property, plant and equipment (‘‘pp&e’’) at historical cost less accumu-
lated depreciation. Impairment losses are recorded when indicators of 
impairment, such as plant closures, are present and the undiscounted cash 
flows estimated to be generated by those assets are less than the carry-
ing amount. the impairment loss is quantified by comparing the carrying 
amount of the assets to the weighted average discounted cash flows, 
which consider various possible outcomes for the disposition of the assets 
(i.e. sale, leasing, etc.). primarily as a result of plant rationalization, certain 
facilities and equipment are not currently used in operations. the Company 
has previously recorded impairment losses related to unused and under-
utilized assets, and such losses may occur in the future.

risK insurance  to some extent, the Company self insures for various 
business exposures. For domestic workers’ compensation and product 
liability, the Company generally purchases outside insurance coverage 
only for severe losses (‘‘stop loss’’ insurance). the two risk areas involv-
ing the most significant accounting estimates are workers’ compensation 
and product liability (liability for alleged injuries associated with the 
Company’s products). Actuarial valuations performed by an outside risk 
insurance expert form the basis for workers’ compensation and product 
liability loss reserves recorded. the actuary contemplates the Company’s 
specific loss history, actual claims reported, and industry trends among 
statistical and other factors to estimate the range of reserves required. 
Risk insurance reserves are comprised of specific reserves for individual 
claims and additional amounts expected for development of these claims, 
as well as for incurred but not yet reported claims. the specific reserves 
for individual known claims are quantified by third party administrator spe-
cialists (insurance companies) for workers’ compensation and by in-house 
legal counsel in consultation with outside attorneys for product liability. 
the cash outflows related to risk insurance claims are expected to occur 
over approximately 8 to 10 years, and the present value of expected future 
claim payments is reserved. the Company believes the liability recorded 
for such risk insurance reserves as of December 30, 2006 is adequate, but 
due to judgments inherent in the reserve estimation process it is possible 
the ultimate costs will differ from this estimate.
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Warranty  the Company provides product and service warranties which 
vary across its businesses. the types of warranties offered generally range 
from one year to limited lifetime, while certain products carry no warranty. 
Further, the Company sometimes incurs discretionary costs to service its 
products in connection with product performance issues. historical war-
ranty and service claim experience forms the basis for warranty obligations 
recognized. Adjustments are recorded to the warranty liability as new infor-
mation becomes available. the Company believes the liability recorded for 
expected warranty claims as of December 30, 2006 is adequate, but due to 
judgments inherent in the reserve estimation process, including forecasting 
future product reliability levels and costs of repair as well as the estimated 
age of certain items submitted for claims, the ultimate claim costs may dif-
fer from the recorded warranty liability.

income taXes  the future tax benefit arising from net deductible tempo-
rary differences and tax loss carry-forwards is $126 million at December 30, 
2006 and $97 million at December 31, 2005. the Company believes earn-
ings during the periods when the temporary differences become deductible 
will be sufficient to realize the related future income tax benefits. For those 
jurisdictions where the expiration date of tax loss carry-forwards or the 
projected operating results indicate that realization is not likely, a valuation 
allowance is provided. the valuation allowance as of December 30, 2006 
amounted to $27 million.

In assessing the need for a valuation allowance, the Company estimates 
future taxable income, considering the feasibility of ongoing tax planning 
strategies and the realizability of tax loss carry-forwards. Valuation allow-
ances related to deferred tax assets can be impacted by changes to tax 
laws, changes to statutory tax rates and future taxable income levels. In the 
event the Company were to determine that it would not be able to realize all 
or a portion of its deferred tax assets in the future, the unrealizable amount 
would be charged to earnings in the period in which that determination is 
made. By contrast, if the Company were to determine that it would be able 
to realize deferred tax assets in the future in excess of the net carrying 
amounts, it would decrease the recorded valuation allowance through a 
favorable earnings adjustment in the period in which that determination is 
made. the Company periodically assesses its liabilities and contingencies 
for all tax years still under audit based on the most current available infor-
mation. when it is deemed probable that an adjustment will be asserted, 
the Company accrues its best estimate of the tax liability, inclusive of relat-
ed interest charges. see note Q Income taxes of the notes to Consolidated 
Financial statements for further discussion.

Off-balanCe SheeT arranGeMenTS  the Company’s off-balance 
sheet arrangements include the following:

receiVaBle securitiZations  the Company has agreements to sell, 
on a revolving basis, pools of accounts and notes receivables to a Qualified 
special purpose entity (‘‘Qspe’’), which qualifies to be accounted for 
as an unconsolidated subsidiary. the entity is designed to facilitate the 

securitization of certain trade accounts receivable. Assets and related debt  
off-balance sheet were both $60 million at December 30, 2006, compared 
to $16 million as of December 31, 2005. the Company is responsible for 
servicing these accounts while the Qspe bears the risk of non-collection. 
sales of eligible receivables in 2006 amounted to $44 million compared to 
$5 million in the prior year. there were no gains or losses on these sales.

syntHetic leases  the Company is a party to synthetic leasing pro-
grams for two of its major distribution centers and certain personal 
property, predominantly vehicles and equipment. the programs qualify 
as operating leases for accounting purposes, such that only the monthly 
rent expense is recorded in the statement of operations and the liability 
and value of the underlying assets are off-balance sheet. these lease 
programs are utilized primarily to reduce overall cost and to retain flex-
ibility. As of December 30, 2006, the estimated fair value of assets and 
remaining obligations for these properties were $95 million and $72 
million, respectively.

trust  the Company owns 100% of the common stock ($0.1 million) 
of the stanley works Capital trust I (the “trust”) which was formed in 
2005 to initiate the offering of the $450 million enhanced trust preferred 
securities (‘‘etps’’). however, in accordance with Financial Accounting 
standards Board Interpretation no. 46R, ‘‘Consolidation of Variable 
Interest entities, an interpretation of ARB no. 51’’ (‘‘FIn 46R’’), the 
trust is not consolidated. since the $450 million of junior subordinated 
debt issued by the Company to the trust is reflected on the Company’s 
Consolidated Balance sheet as of December 30, 2006, consolidation of 
the trust would have virtually no impact to the Company’s results of 
operations or financial position.

CAUTIONARY STATEmENTS UNDER THE PRIVATE 
SECURITIES LITIGATION REFORm ACT OF 1995

Certain statements contained in this Annual Report, including, but not 
limited to, the statements regarding the Company’s ability to: (i) expand its 
Mechanical Access security business through acquisitions in europe and 
Asia; (ii) maintain its upper tier investment grade rating; (iii) over the long 
term, achieve 3-5% organic sales growth, 8-12% sales growth including 
acquisitions, mid-teens percentage eps growth, free cash flow greater than 
or equal to net income, RoCe in the 12-15% range and continued dividend 
growth; (iv) have the hsM acquisition be neutral to 2007 earnings, increas-
ing to 20-25 cents per diluted share in 2009, together with approximately 
$38 million of non-cash intangible asset amortization in 2007 relating to 
acquired contracts; (v) limit the total cash expenditures in connection with 
the reorganization of Facom and stanley hand tools activities in europe to $75 
million; (vi) reduce the stanley Fastening systems cost structure and restore 
that business’s long-term cost competitiveness; (vii) limit the negative impact 
of inflation to $60-65 million in 2007; (viii) recover more than two-thirds of 
the negative impact of inflation through price increases and the remainder 
through productivity actions; (ix) and complete additional acquisitions in 
2007 requiring funding of $50-75 million, are forward looking statements and 
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are based on current expectations. these statements are not guarantees of 
future performance and involve certain risks, uncertainties and assumptions 
that are difficult to predict. there are a number of risks, uncertainties and 
important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from 
those indicated by such forward-looking statements. In addition to any such 
risks, uncertainties and other factors discussed elsewhere herein, the risks, 
uncertainties and other factors that could cause or contribute to actual results 
differing materially from those expressed or implied in the forward-looking 
statements include, without limitation, those set forth under Item 1A Risk 
Factors in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-k and any material 
changes thereto set forth in any subsequent Quarterly Reports on Form 
10-Q, those contained in the Company’s other filings with the securities and 
exchange Commission and those set forth below.

the Company’s ability to achieve the results described above is dependent 
on the success of the Company’s efforts and ability to: (i) continue to 
identify and complete strategic acquisitions; (ii) reinvest free cash flow 
and improve working capital efficiency; (iii) successfully implement various 
process improvements; (iv) successfully integrate the Facom, national, 
hsM and other recent acquisitions, as well as future acquisitions, while 
limiting associated costs; (v) negotiate severance arrangements and lease 
terminations related to its european reorganization within established 
parameters; (vi) minimize the costs to relocate equipment and inventory; (vii) 
complete reorganizations of the Facom and stanley hand tools businesses 
in europe within anticipated time frames; (viii) successfully implement 
cost reduction and profit improvement initiatives for the fastening systems 
business within anticipated time frames, including migration of production 
to Asia, reduction of overall sGA and manufacturing footprint, and sku 
rationalization; (ix) reduce large customer concentrations; (x) implement 
customer pricing actions and continue cost reduction and productivity 
initiatives to offset the expected inflation in 2007; (xi) generate free cash 
flow and maintain a strong debt to capital ratio; (xii) continue to implement 
its profitable growth strategy; (xiii) successfully complete a debt and equity-
linked securities refinancing; (xiv) successfully settle routine tax audits; (xv) 
generate earnings sufficient to realize future income tax benefits during 
periods when temporary differences become deductible; (xvi) access credit 
markets under satisfactory terms; (xvii) maintain satisfactory payment 
terms under which the Company buys and sells goods, materials and 
products; (xviii) develop and launch new products within anticipated time 
frames; and (xix) fulfill increasing demand for its products.  

the Company’s ability to achieve the results also is dependent upon: (i) 
the continued success of the Company’s marketing and sales efforts; 
(ii) the success of recruiting programs and other efforts to maintain or 
expand overall Mac tool truck count versus prior years; (iii) the ability of 
the Company to maintain or improve production rates in the Company’s 
manufacturing facilities, respond to significant changes in product demand, 
and fulfill demand for new and existing products; (iv) the ability to continue 
successfully managing and defending litigation; (v) the Company’s ability to 
continue improvements in working capital, including inventory reductions 
and payment terms; (vi) the success of the Company’s efforts to mitigate 
any cost increases generated by, for example, continued increase in the 
cost of energy or significant Chinese Renminbi or other currency apprecia-
tion and (vii) the geographic distribution of the Company’s earnings.  

the Company’s ability to achieve the results also will be affected by 
external factors. these factors include pricing pressure and other chang-
es within competitive markets, the continued consolidation of customers 
particularly in consumer channels, inventory management pressures on 
the Company’s customers, increasing competition, changes in trade, 
monetary, tax and fiscal policies and laws, inflation, currency exchange 
fluctuations, the impact of dollar/foreign currency exchange and interest 
rates on the competitiveness of product pricing and on the Company’s 
debt program, the strength of the u.s. economy; and the impact of events 
that cause or may cause disruption in the Company’s manufacturing, 
distribution and sales networks such as war, terrorist activities, politi-
cal unrest and recessionary or expansive trends in the economies of the 
countries in which the Company operates.

unless required by applicable federal securities laws, the Company 
undertakes no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward looking 
statements to reflect events or circumstances that may arise after the date 
hereof. Investors are advised, however, to consult any further disclosures 
made on related subjects in the Company’s reports filed with the securities 
and exchange Commission.
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manaGement’s rePort on internal control  
oVer financial rePortinG

The management of The Stanley Works is responsible 
for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over 
financial reporting. Internal control over financial reporting is a 
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding 
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of finan-
cial statements for external reporting purposes in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America. Because of its inherent limitations, internal 
control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect mis-
statements. Management has assessed the effectiveness of 
The Stanley Works’ internal control over financial reporting 
as of December 30, 2006. In making its assessment, man-
agement has utilized the criteria set forth by the Committee 
of Sponsoring Organizations (‘‘COSO’’) of the Treadway 
Commission in Internal Control – Integrated Framework. 
Management concluded that based on its assessment, The 
Stanley Works’ internal control over financial reporting was 
effective as of December 30, 2006. Management’s assess-

ment of and conclusion on the effectiveness of internal control 
over financial reporting did not include the internal controls of 
Facom S.A. and Besco Pneumatic Corporation, companies 
acquired in January and July of 2006, respectively, which are 
included in the 2006 Consolidated Financial Statements of The 
Stanley Works and constituted total assets of approximately 
$915 million at December 30, 2006 and approximately $480 
million of revenues for the year then ended. Ernst & Young 
LLP, the auditor of the financial statements included in this 
annual report, has issued an attestation report on manage-
ment’s assessment of internal controls, a copy of which 
appears on page 49.

ANNUAL CEO CERTIFICATION 
(SECTION 303A.12(A))

As the Chief Executive Officer of The Stanley Works, and as required by Section 303A.12(a) of the New York 
Stock Exchange Listed Company Manual, I hereby certify that as of the date hereof I am not aware of any violation by 
the Company of NYSE’s Corporate Governance listing standards, other than has been notified to the Exchange pursuant 
to Section 303A.12(b) and disclosed as an attachment hereto. 

neW yorK stocK eXcHanGe certification

John F. Lundgren 
Chairman & CEO

May 16, 2006

The Company has filed the certifications required by Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 as Exhibits 31(i)(a) and 
31(ii)(a) to its Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 27, 2007.

John F. Lundgren 
Chairman & CEO

James m. Loree
Executive Vice President & CFO
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rePort of indePendent reGistered  
PuBlic accountinG firm

The bOarD Of DireCTOrS anD ShareOWnerS Of The 
STanley WOrkS

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated 
Balance Sheets of The Stanley Works and subsidiaries as of 
December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005, and the related 
Consolidated Statements of Operations, changes in shareown-
ers’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three fiscal years in 
the period ended December 30, 2006. These financial state-
ments are the responsibility of the Company’s management. 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the 
standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board 
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and per-
form the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An 
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting 
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An 
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and 
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluat-
ing the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that 
our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to 
above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated 
financial position of The Stanley Works and subsidiaries at 
December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005, and the consoli-
dated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of 
the three fiscal years in the period ended December 30, 2006, in 
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards 
of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United 
States), the effectiveness of The Stanley Works’ internal con-
trol over financial reporting as of December 30, 2006, based on 
criteria established in Internal Control – Integrated Framework 
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the 
Treadway Commission and our report dated February 20, 2007 
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

As discussed in Note A to the Consolidated Financial 
Statements, in 2006 the Company adopted Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standards (‘‘SFAS’’) No. 123 (Revised 2004), ‘‘Share-
Based Payment’’ and SFAS No. 158, ‘‘Employers’ Accounting for 
Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans – An 
amendment to FASB Statement Nos. 87, 88, 106 and 132(R).’’

Hartford, Connecticut
February 20, 2007
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rePort of indePendent reGistered  
PuBlic accountinG firm

The bOarD Of DireCTOrS anD ShareOWnerS Of The 
STanley WOrkS

We have audited management’s assessment, includ-
ed in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal 
Control over Financial Reporting, that The Stanley Works 
maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as 
of December 30, 2006, based on criteria established in Internal 
Control – Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of 
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the 
COSO criteria). The Stanley Works’ management is respon-
sible for maintaining effective internal control over financial 
reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of 
internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is 
to express an opinion on management’s assessment and an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control 
over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stan-
dards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board 
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and per-
form the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
effective internal control over financial reporting was main-
tained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining 
an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, 
evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating 
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and 
performing such other procedures as we considered neces-
sary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides 
a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting 
is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regard-
ing the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation 
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s 
internal control over financial reporting includes those policies 
and procedures that: (1) pertain to the maintenance of records 
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the trans-
actions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) 
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded 
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and 
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made 
only in accordance with authorizations of management and 

directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assur-
ance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that 
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over 
financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. 
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future 
periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inad-
equate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

As indicated in the accompanying Management’s 
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting, manage-
ment’s assessment of and conclusion on the effectiveness of 
internal control over financial reporting did not include the inter-
nal controls of Facom S.A. and Besco Pneumatic Corporation, 
companies acquired in January and July of 2006, which are 
included in the 2006 Consolidated Financial Statements of The 
Stanley Works and constituted total assets of approximately 
$915 million at December 30, 2006 and revenues of approxi-
mately $480 million, respectively, for the year then ended.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that The 
Stanley Works maintained effective internal control over 
financial reporting as of December 30, 2006 is fairly stated, 
in all material respects, based on the COSO criteria. Also, 
in our opinion, The Stanley Works maintained, in all material 
respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as 
of December 30, 2006 based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stan-
dards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board 
(United States), the Consolidated Balance Sheets of The 
Stanley Works and subsidiaries as of December 30, 2006 and 
December 31, 2005, and the related Consolidated Statements 
of Operations, changes in shareowners’ equity, and cash 
flows for each of the three fiscal years in the period ended 
December 30, 2006 and our report dated February 20, 2007 
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

Hartford, Connecticut
February 20, 2007
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consolidated statements of oPerations

Fiscal years ended December 30, 2006, December 31, 2005 and January 1, 2005

(in Millions of Dollars, except per share amounts)  2006  2005  2004

net Sales $ 4,018.6 $ 3,285.3 $ 2,997.4
Costs and expenses
Cost of sales $ 2,560.1 $ 2,104.0 $ 1,893.8
selling, general and administrative  955.2  736.8  691.3
Interest income  (4.4)  (6.6)  (4.2)
Interest expense  69.3  40.4  38.6
other-net  57.5  47.9  46.0
Restructuring charges and asset impairments  13.8  4.6  7.7

   $ 3,651.5 $ 2,927.1 $ 2,673.2

earnings from continuing operations before income taxes   367.1  358.2  324.2
 Income taxes  76.4  86.5  87.3

net earnings from continuing operations $ 290.7 $ 271.7 $ 236.9

earnings (loss) from discontinued operations before income taxes  
 (including $1.5 million loss in 2006 and  
 $180.7 million gain in 2004 on divestitures)  (1.5)  (1.2)  200.8
Income taxes (benefit) on discontinued operations  (0.3)  0.9  70.8

net earnings (loss) from discontinued operations $ (1.2) $ (2.1) $ 130.0

net earnings $ 289.5 $ 269.6 $ 366.9

Basic earnings (loss) per share of common stock:
 Continuing operations $ 3.55 $ 3.26 $ 2.89
 Discontinued operations  (0.01)  (0.03)  1.58

  total basic earnings per share of common stock $ 3.54 $ 3.23 $ 4.47

Diluted earnings (loss) per share of common stock:
 Continuing operations  $ 3.47 $ 3.18 $ 2.81
 Discontinued operations   (0.01)  (0.02)  1.54

  total diluted earnings per share of common stock $ 3.46 $ 3.16 $ 4.36

see notes to Consolidated Financial statements.
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December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005

(Millions of Dollars)    2006  2005

assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents   $ 176.6 $ 657.8
Accounts and notes receivable, net    749.6  609.6
Inventories, net    598.9  460.7
Deferred taxes    24.2  16.5
Assets held for sale    28.2  13.3
other current assets    61.0  67.7

Total Current assets    1,638.5  1,825.6

property, plant and equipment, net    559.4  467.1
Goodwill    1,100.2  740.9
Customer relationships    163.3  157.6
Trademarks    310.6  119.2
Other intangible assets    47.4  42.7
Other assets    116.0  192.0

Total assets   $ 3,935.4 $ 3,545.1

liabilities and Shareowners’ equity
Current liabilities
short-term borrowings   $ 89.7 $ 148.1
Current maturities of long-term debt    230.3  22.1
Accounts payable    445.2  327.7
Accrued expenses    485.9  374.3
liabilities held for sale    –  3.1

Total Current liabilities    1,251.1  875.3

long-Term Debt    679.2  895.3
Deferred Taxes    67.2  83.4
Other liabilities    385.9  246.2
Commitments and Contingencies (notes r and S)
Shareowners’ equity
preferred stock, without par value:
 Authorized and unissued 10,000,000 shares    –  –
Common stock, par value $2.50 per share:
 Authorized 200,000,000 shares;
 Issued 92,343,410 shares in 2006 and 2005    233.9  237.7
Retained earnings    1,883.6  1,657.2
Accumulated other comprehensive loss    (81.8)  (91.3)
esop     (100.9)  (108.2)

      1,934.8  1,695.4

less: cost of common stock in treasury  
 (10,501,783 shares in 2006 and 8,552,281 shares in 2005)    382.8  250.5

Total Shareowners’ equity    1,552.0  1,444.9

Total liabilities and Shareowners’ equity   $ 3,935.4 $ 3,545.1

see notes to Consolidated Financial statements.

consolidated Balance sHeets
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Fiscal years ended December 30, 2006, December 31, 2005 and January 1, 2005

(Millions of Dollars)  2006  2005  2004

Operating activities
net earnings $ 289.5 $ 269.6 $ 366.9
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to cash  
 provided by operating activities:
  Depreciation and amortization  121.2  96.5  95.0
  Restructuring and asset impairments  13.8  4.6  7.7
  net (gain) loss on sale of businesses  1.5  2.9  (115.9)
  other non-cash items  47.5  42.7  64.6
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
 Accounts and notes receivable  49.9  23.4  (18.3)
 Inventories  (62.7)  (19.3)  (43.5)
 Accounts payable   40.5  12.7  54.8
 Accrued expenses  (63.4)  (35.9)  2.2
 Income taxes  (30.0)  (17.7)  13.6
 other  31.3  (17.2)  (55.6)

net cash provided by operating activities  439.1  362.3  371.5

investing activities
Capital expenditures  (59.6)  (53.3)  (47.6)
Capitalized software  (20.9)  (15.1)  (7.2)
proceeds from sales of assets  31.9  3.7  3.0
Business acquisitions  (571.8)  (286.6)  (301.2)
net proceeds from (taxes paid on) sales of businesses  0.9  (20.6)  204.9
other  (6.8)  (11.6)  11.2

net cash used in investing activities  (626.3)  (383.5)  (136.9)

financing activities
payments on long-term debt  (4.2)  (71.5)  (154.4)
proceeds from long-term borrowings  –  450.0  0.6
net (repayments) proceeds on short-term borrowings   (66.4)  102.6  20.4
Debt issuance costs and swap terminations  5.9  (7.6)  (1.3)
purchase of common stock for treasury  (201.6)  –  –
proceeds from issuance of common stock  64.4  38.7  27.7
Cash dividends on common stock  (96.1)  (94.9)  (89.4)

net cash (used in) provided by financing activities  (298.0)  417.3  (196.4)

effect of exchange rate changes on cash  4.0  11.7  7.4

(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents  (481.2)  407.8  45.6
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year  657.8  250.0  204.4

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 176.6 $ 657.8 $ 250.0

see notes to Consolidated Financial statements.

consolidated statements of casH floWs
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Fiscal years ended December 30, 2006, December 31, 2005 and January 1, 2005

    accumulated
    Other
  Common  retained Comprehensive  Treasury Shareowners’
(Millions of Dollars, except per share amounts) Stock earnings (loss) income eSOp Stock equity

balance January 3, 2004 $ 237.6 $ 1,177.8 $ (84.2) $ (123.6) $ (323.1) $ 884.5
Comprehensive income:
  net earnings    366.9        366.9
  Currency translation adjustment and other      37.9      37.9
  Cash flow hedge, net of tax      (8.8)      (8.8)
  Minimum pension liability, net of tax      (0.1)      (0.1)

 total comprehensive income            395.9

Cash dividends declared−$1.08 per share    (89.4)        (89.4)
Issuance of common stock    (3.0)      32.5  29.5
Minority interest common stock  0.1          0.1
tax benefit related to stock options exercised    5.9        5.9
esop and related tax benefit    2.4    7.8    10.2

balance January 1, 2005  237.7  1,460.6  (55.2)  (115.8)  (290.6)  1,236.7
Comprehensive income:
  net earnings    269.6        269.6
  Currency translation adjustment and other      (35.2)      (35.2)
  Cash flow hedge, net of tax      3.1      3.1
  Minimum pension liability, net of tax      (4.0)      (4.0)

 total comprehensive income            233.5

Cash dividends declared−$1.14 per share    (94.9)        (94.9)
Issuance of common stock    11.1      40.1  51.2
tax benefit related to stock options exercised    8.4        8.4
esop and related tax benefit    2.4    7.6        10.0

balance December 31, 2005  237.7  1,657.2  (91.3)  (108.2)  (250.5)  1,444.9
Comprehensive income:
  net earnings    289.5        289.5
  Currency translation adjustment and other      57.3      57.3
  Cash flow hedge, net of tax      8.0      8.0
  Minimum pension liability      5.3      5.3

 total comprehensive income            360.1

Cash dividends declared–$1.18 per share    (96.1)        (96.1)
Issuance of common stock    (6.8)      69.3  62.5
Repurchase of common stock (4,026,224 shares)          (201.6)  (201.6)
Minority interest common stock  (3.8)          (3.8)
other, stock-based compensation related     29.4        29.4
Adoption of sFAs no. 158 (net of taxes of $26.7 million)      (61.1)      (61.1)
tax benefit related to stock options exercised    8.1        8.1
esop and related tax benefit          2.3        7.3           9.6

balance December 30, 2006 $ 233.9 $ 1,883.6 $ (81.8) $ (100.9) $ (382.8) $ 1,552.0

see notes to Consolidated Financial statements.

consolidated statements of cHanGes  
in sHareoWners’  eQuity
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notes to consolidated financial statements

A. SIgNIFICANT ACCOUNTINg POLICIES

baSiS Of preSenTaTiOn  the Consolidated Financial statements 
include the accounts of the Company and its majority-owned subsidiaries 
which require consolidation, after the elimination of intercompany accounts 
and transactions. the Company’s fiscal year ends on the saturday nearest to 
December 31. there were 52 weeks in fiscal years 2006, 2005 and 2004.

the preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the united states of America requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, as well as certain 
financial statement disclosures. while management believes that the esti-
mates and assumptions used in the preparation of the financial statements 
are appropriate, actual results could differ from these estimates.

fOreiGn CurrenCy TranSlaTiOn  For foreign operations with 
functional currencies other than the u.s. dollar, asset and liability accounts 
are translated at current exchange rates; income and expenses are trans-
lated using weighted-average exchange rates. Resulting translation adjust-
ments, as well as gains and losses from certain intercompany transactions, 
are reported in a separate component of shareowners’ equity. exchange 
gains and losses on transactions are included in earnings, and amounted 
to net losses/(gains) for 2006, 2005 and 2004 of $3.9 million, $(0.9) million 
and $4.5 million, respectively.

CaSh equivalenTS  highly liquid investments with original maturities 
of three months or less are considered cash equivalents.

aCCOunTS anD nOTeS reCeivable  trade receivables are stated 
at gross invoice amount less discounts, other allowances and provision for 
uncollectible accounts.

allOWanCe fOr DOubTful aCCOunTS  the Company estimates 
its allowance for doubtful accounts using two methods. First, a specific 
reserve is established for individual accounts where information is avail-
able that customers may have an inability to meet financial obligations. 
second, a reserve is determined for all customers based on a range of 
percentages applied to aging categories. these percentages are based on 
historical collection and write-off experience. Actual write offs are charged 
against the allowance when internal collection efforts have been unsuc-
cessful, generally when payments are more than 120 days past due.

invenTOrieS  u.s. inventories, aside from Best, precision, Cst/Berger 
and certain other small businesses, are valued at the lower of last-In, First-
out (‘‘lIFo’’) cost or market. other inventories are generally valued at the 
lower of First-In, First-out (‘‘FIFo’’) cost or market.

prOperTy, planT anD equipMenT  the Company generally values 
property, plant and equipment (‘‘pp&e’’), including capitalized software, on 
the basis of historical cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. 
Depreciation and amortization are provided using straight-line methods 
over the estimated useful lives of the assets. leasehold improvements are 
depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life or the term of the 
lease. Costs related to maintenance and repairs which do not prolong the 
assets useful lives are expensed as incurred. the Company assesses its 
long-lived assets for impairment when indicators that the carrying values 
may not be recoverable are present. In assessing long-lived assets for 
impairment, the Company groups its long-lived assets with other assets 
and liabilities at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are 
generated (‘‘asset group’’) and estimates the undiscounted future cash 
flows that are directly associated with and expected to be generated from 
the use of and eventual disposition of such asset group. the amount of the 
impairment loss, if any, is quantified by comparing the carrying amount 
of the asset group to the estimated fair value, which is determined using 
weighted average discounted cash flows that consider various possible 
outcomes for the disposition of the asset group. primarily as a result of 
plant rationalization, certain facilities and equipment are not currently used 
in operations, which has resulted in impairment losses. pp&e impairment 
charges, classified in Restructuring and Asset Impairments, amounted to 
$3.7 million in 2004 and were zero in both 2006 and 2005.

GOODWill anD OTher inTanGible aSSeTS  Goodwill represents 
costs in excess of fair values assigned to the underlying net assets of 
acquired businesses. Intangible assets acquired are recorded at estimated 
fair value. Goodwill and intangible assets deemed to have indefinite lives 
are not amortized, but are tested for impairment annually during the third 
quarter, and at any time when events suggest impairment may have 
occurred. to assess goodwill for impairment, the Company determines 
the fair value of its reporting units, which are primarily determined using 
management’s assumptions about future cash flows based on long-range 
strategic plans. this approach incorporates many assumptions including 
future growth rates, discount factors and tax rates. In the event the car-
rying value of a reporting unit exceeded its fair value, an impairment loss 
would be recognized to the extent the carrying amount of the reporting 
unit’s goodwill exceeded its implied fair value. Indefinite-lived intangible 
asset carrying amounts are tested for impairment by comparing to current 
fair market value, usually determined by what it would cost to lease the 
asset from third parties. Intangible assets with definite lives are amortized 
over their estimated useful lives. Definite-lived intangible assets are also 
evaluated for impairment when appropriate. If the carrying value exceeds 
the total undiscounted future cash flows, the asset is written down to fair 
value. no goodwill or other intangible asset impairments were recorded 
during 2006, 2005 and 2004.
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finanCial inSTruMenTS  Derivative financial instruments are 
employed to manage risks, including foreign currency and interest rate 
exposures, and are not used for trading or speculative purposes. the 
Company recognizes all derivative instruments, such as interest rate swap 
agreements, foreign currency options, and foreign exchange contracts, in 
the Consolidated Balance sheets at fair value. Changes in the fair value of 
derivatives are recognized periodically either in earnings or in shareowners’ 
equity as a component of other comprehensive income, depending on 
whether the derivative financial instrument qualifies for hedge accounting, 
and if so, whether it qualifies as a fair value hedge or a cash flow hedge. 
Changes in fair values of derivatives accounted for as fair value hedges are 
recorded in earnings along with the changes in the fair value of the hedged 
items that relate to the hedged risk. Gains and losses on derivatives desig-
nated as cash flow hedges, to the extent they are effective, are recorded 
in other comprehensive income, and subsequently reclassified to earnings 
to offset the impact of the hedged items when they occur. In the event it 
becomes probable the forecasted transaction to which a cash flow hedge 
relates will not occur, the amount in other comprehensive income would 
be recognized in earnings and the derivative terminated. Changes in the 
fair value of derivatives used as hedges of the net investment in foreign 
operations are reported in other comprehensive income. the fair value 
of derivatives involving foreign currencies is determined using the spot 
exchange rate at the reporting date. Changes in the fair value of derivatives 
not qualifying as hedges, and any portion of a hedge that is ineffective, are 
reported in earnings in other-net.

the net interest paid or received on interest rate swaps is recognized as 
interest expense. Gains resulting from the early termination of interest rate 
swap agreements are deferred and amortized as adjustments to interest 
expense over the remaining period of the debt originally covered by the 
terminated swap.

revenue reCOGniTiOn  Revenue is recognized when the earnings pro-
cess is complete and the risks and rewards of ownership have transferred to 
the customer, which generally occurs upon shipment of the finished product 
but sometimes is upon delivery to customer facilities. provisions for customer 
volume rebates, product returns, discounts and allowances are recorded as a 
reduction of revenue in the same period the related sales are recorded.

Certain security solutions segment revenues include multiple elements of 
products and services. Revenues from multiple element arrangements are 
recognized as each element is earned, consistent with the requirements of 
emerging Issues task Force Issue no. 00-21, “Revenue Arrangements with 
Multiple Deliverables”. Amounts allocated to each element are based on 
objectively determined fair value. Additionally, revenues related to the sale 
and installation of electronic access security systems are generally recorded 
on the percentage-of-completion basis. this method recognizes estimated 
contractual profits and revenues while projects are in process based on the 
ratio of actual costs incurred to date to total expected costs. Revenues from 
multiple element arrangements and percentage-of-completion contracts 
were each less than 10% of consolidated revenues in all years.

aDverTiSinG COSTS  television advertising is expensed the first time 
the advertisement airs, whereas other advertising is expensed as incurred. 
Advertising Costs are classified as sG&A expenses and amounted to $44.4 
million in 2006, $31.3 million in 2005 and $28.3 million in 2004. Cooperative 
advertising expense reported as a deduction in net sales was $26.3 million 
in 2006, $26.5 million in 2005 and $21.9 million in 2004.

inCOMe TaxeS  Income tax expense is based on reported earnings 
before income taxes. Interest and penalties related to income taxes are 
classified as Income taxes in the Consolidated statements of operations. 
Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of temporary differences between 
assets and liabilities recognized for financial reporting purposes and such 
amounts recognized for tax purposes, and are measured by applying 
enacted tax rates in effect in years in which the differences are expected 
to reverse. A valuation allowance is recorded to reduce deferred tax assets 
to the amount that is more likely than not to be realized.

earninGS per Share  Basic earnings per share equals net earnings 
divided by weighted average shares outstanding during the year. Diluted 
earnings per share include the impact of common stock equivalents using 
the treasury stock method when the effect is dilutive.

ShippinG anD hanDlinG COSTS  the Company generally does 
not bill customers for freight. shipping and handling costs associated with 
inbound freight are reported in cost of sales. shipping costs associated with 
outbound freight are reported as a reduction of net sales and amounted to 
$128.4 million, $99.9 million and $102.3 million in 2006, 2005 and 2004, 
respectively. Distribution costs are classified in sG&A expenses and 
amounted to $118.2 million, $77.0 million and $75.8 million in 2006, 2005 
and 2004, respectively.

STOCk-baSeD COMpenSaTiOn  effective January 1, 2006, the 
Company adopted statement of Financial Accounting standards no. 123 
(revised 2004), ‘‘share-Based payment’’, (‘‘sFAs 123R’’), using the modified 
prospective method whereby prior periods are not restated for comparability. 
sFAs 123R requires recognition of stock-based compensation expense in the 
statement of operations over the vesting period based on the fair value of 
the award at the grant date. previously, the Company used the intrinsic value 
method under Accounting principles Board opinion no. 25, ‘‘Accounting for 
stock Issued to employees’’ (‘‘ApB 25’’), as amended by related interpreta-
tions of the Financial Accounting standards Board (‘‘FAsB’’). under ApB 25, 
no compensation cost was recognized for stock options because the quoted 
market price of the stock at the grant date was equal to the amount per share 
the employee had to pay to acquire the stock after fulfilling the vesting period. 
sFAs 123R supersedes ApB 25 as well as statement of Financial Accounting 
standards no. 123, ‘‘Accounting for stock-Based Compensation’’, which 
permitted pro forma footnote disclosures to report the difference between 
the fair value method and the intrinsic value method. the Company recog-
nized expense for restricted share grants under the previous guidance, so 
the impact from adopting sFAs 123R pertains to the requirement to expense 
stock options (including employee stock purchase plan options).
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For share-based grants made in 2005 and earlier years, the Company used 
the ‘‘accelerated method’’ of expense attribution under FAsB Interpretation 
no. 28 (‘‘FIn 28’’). effective January 1, 2006 with the adoption of sFAs 
123R, the Company elected to change its policy to straight-line expense 
attribution for all grants made in 2006 and subsequent periods. Refer to 
note k, Capital stock, for additional information.

NEW ACCOUNTINg STANDARDS

In February 2007, the FAsB issued statement of Financial Accounting 
standard (“sFAs”) no. 159, ‘‘the Fair Value option for Financial Assets 
and liabilities, including an amendment of FAsB statement no. 115’’, 
(‘‘sFAs 159’’). this statement permits entities to choose to measure 
many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value that are 
not currently required to be measured at fair value. sFAs 159 is effec-
tive as of the beginning of fiscal year 2008. the Company has not yet 
assessed the effect, if any, that adoption of sFAs 159 will have on its 
results of operations and financial position.

In september 2006, the FAsB issued sFAs no. 158 ‘‘employers’ Accounting 
for Defined Benefit pension and other postretirement plans, an amend-
ment of FAsB statements no. 87, 88, 106 and 132(R)’’, (‘‘sFAs 158’’). 
this statement requires recognition of the funded status of benefit plans 
measured as the difference between plan assets at fair value and the pro-
jected benefit obligations. Related to this recognition of the funded status 
in the benefit plan asset or liability account, sFAs 158 requires reporting 
as a component of other comprehensive income, net of tax, the gains and 
losses and prior service costs or credits that have not yet been recognized 
as components of net periodic benefit cost in earnings. sFAs 158 requires 
defined benefit plan assets and obligations to be measured as of the fis-
cal year-end date. new disclosures include the expected effects on net 
periodic benefit costs for the next fiscal year from amortization of the 
gains or losses, prior service costs or credits, and the transition asset or 
obligation. the Company adopted the provisions of sFAs 158 and initially 
applied them as of December 30, 2006. the initial recognition of the fund-
ed status of defined benefit postretirement plans resulted in a decrease 
to shareowners’ equity of $61.1 million, net of taxes of $26.7 million. the 
adoption of the measurement provisions of sFAs 158 will have no impact 
on the Company because it already measures its benefit plan obligations 
as of the fiscal year end. sFAs 158 does not change the determination of 
net periodic benefit cost.

In september 2006, the FAsB issued sFAs no. 157, ‘‘Fair Value 
Measurements’’, (‘‘sFAs 157’’). this statement is effective for financial 
statements issued for fiscal years beginning after november 15, 2007. 
sFAs 157 provides a common fair value hierarchy for companies to follow 
in determining fair value measurements in the preparation of financial 

statements and expands disclosure requirements relating to how such fair 
value measurements were developed. sFAs 157 clarifies the principle that 
fair value should be based on the assumptions that the marketplace would 
use when pricing an asset or liability, rather than company specific data. 
the Company is currently assessing the impact that sFAs 157 will have on 
its results of operations and financial position.

In June 2006, the FAsB issued Interpretation no. 48, (‘‘FIn 48’’), ‘‘Accounting 
for uncertainty in Income taxes – an Interpretation of sFAs no. 109’’. this 
Interpretation clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes. 
FIn 48 prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for 
the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position 
taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. the disclosure provisions 
will provide more information about the uncertainty in income tax assets 
and liabilities. upon adoption, the Company will first assess whether it is 
more likely than not that a tax position will be sustained upon examination 
based on its technical merits. If the tax position is more likely than not to 
be sustained, under the presumption the taxing authority has all relevant 
information, it will be recognized. the recognized tax position is measured 
at the largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50 percent likely of 
being realized upon ultimate settlement. previously recognized tax posi-
tions that no longer meet the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold 
will be derecognized in the period in which that threshold is no longer met. 
FIn 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. the 
Company is currently assessing the impact the adoption of FIn 48 will have 
on its results of operations and financial position.

In March 2006, the FAsB issued sFAs no. 156, ‘‘Accounting for servicing 
of Financial Assets – an amendment of FAsB statement no. 140’’, (‘‘sFAs 
156’’). the provisions of sFAs 156 are effective for fiscal years begin-
ning after september 15, 2006. this statement was issued to simplify the 
accounting for servicing rights and to reduce the volatility that results from 
using different measurement attributes. the Company does not expect the 
adoption of sFAs 156 to have a material impact on its results of operations 
and financial position.

In February 2006, the FAsB issued sFAs no. 155 ‘‘Accounting for Certain 
hybrid Financial Instruments, an amendment of FAsB statements no. 133 
and 140’’, (‘‘sFAs 155’’). sFAs 155 clarifies certain issues relating to embed-
ded derivatives and beneficial interests in securitized financial assets. the 
provisions of sFAs 155 are effective for all financial instruments acquired or 
issued for fiscal years beginning after september 15, 2006. the Company is 
currently assessing the impact that the adoption of sFAs 155 will have on 
its results of operations and financial position.

reClaSSifiCaTiOnS  Certain prior years’ amounts have been reclassi-
fied to conform to the current year presentation.
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B. ACCOUNTS AND NOTES RECEIVABLE

(Millions of Dollars)    2006  2005

trade accounts and notes receivable   $ 736.0 $ 600.6
other    47.4  43.9

Gross accounts and notes receivable    783.4  644.5
Allowance for doubtful accounts    (33.8)  (34.9)

net accounts and notes receivable   $ 749.6 $ 609.6

trade receivables are dispersed among a large number of retailers, distribu-
tors and industrial accounts in many countries. Adequate reserves have 
been established to cover anticipated credit losses.

the Company has agreements to sell, on a revolving basis, undivided inter-
ests in defined pools of notes receivable to a Qualified special purpose 
entity (‘‘Qspe’’). the entity is designed to facilitate the securitization of 
certain trade accounts receivable and is used as an additional source of 
liquidity. At December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005, the defined pools 
of receivables amounted to $86.7 million and $125.1 million, respectively, 
while the agreement permits the Qspe to have a maximum of $150 mil-
lion of borrowings outstanding at any time. the proceeds from sales of 
such eligible receivables to the Qspe in revolving-period securitizations 
were $43.9 million in 2006 and $4.7 million in 2005. there were no gains 
or losses on these sales. the amounts deducted from receivables in the 
December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005 Consolidated Balance sheets 
under this arrangement were $60.3 million and $16.4 million, respectively. 
the Company is responsible for servicing and collecting the receivables sold 
and held in the Qspe. Any incremental costs related to such servicing and 
collection efforts are not significant. the Qspe bears the risk of non-collec-
tion on the receivables it has purchased.

C. INVENTORY

(Millions of Dollars)    2006  2005

Finished products   $ 456.5 $ 348.9
work in process    51.0  38.8
Raw materials    91.4  73.0

total    $ 598.9 $ 460.7

net inventories in the amount of $237.1 million at December 30, 2006 and 
$219.4 million at December 31, 2005 were valued at the lower of lIFo cost 
or market. If the lIFo method had not been used, inventories would have 
been $68.8 million higher than reported at December 30, 2006 and $65.5 
million higher than reported at December 31, 2005. the lIFo method is 
utilized in determining inventory value as it results in better matching of 
cost and revenues.

D. ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

Assets held for sale are reported at the lower of fair value less cost to sell 
or carrying value. At December 30, 2006, $28.2 million of financing lease 
receivables were classified as held for sale. these receivables, generated by 
the Blick business within the security solutions segment, will be sold in 2007 
for an amount expected to slightly exceed their aggregate carrying value.

At December 31, 2005, real property in the Consumer products segment, 
valued at $0.6 million was classified as held for sale; this property was 
sold during 2006 and a gain of approximately $1.9 million was recognized 
thereon. Also, $1.7 million of assets related to the Goldblatt® product line 
in this same segment were classified as held for sale at December 31, 2005 
and sold during 2006.

Additionally, the net assets of the American appliance hinge and the u.k. dec-
orator tools businesses, which were sold in 2006, were classified as held for 
sale at December 31, 2005, as detailed in note t Discontinued operations.

E. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPmENT

        useful 
        life 
(Millions of Dollars)  2006  2005  (years)

land  $ 43.5 $ 28.0  n/A
land improvements  16.3  18.0  10-20
Buildings  272.6  247.9  40
leasehold improvements  21.2  17.8 term of lease
Machinery and equipment  946.4  876.9  3-15
Computer software  129.2  108.4  3-5

Gross pp&e $ 1,429.2 $ 1,297.0
less: accumulated  
 depreciation and amortization  869.8  829.9

total  $ 559.4 $ 467.1

Depreciation and amortization expense associated with property, plant and 
equipment was as follows:

(Millions of Dollars)  2006  2005  2004

Depreciation $ 69.4 $ 53.5 $ 58.3
Amortization  12.2  12.7  13.0

Depreciation and  
 amortization expense $ 81.6 $ 66.2 $ 71.3

the amounts above are inclusive of discontinued operations depreciation 
and amortization expense of $0.1 million in 2006, $0.3 million in 2005 and 
$3.0 million in 2004.
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2006 aCquiSiTiOnS  on January 1, 2006, the Company completed the 
acquisition of Facom s.A. (‘‘Facom’’) for 407 million euros ($479.8 million) 
which was financed with a combination of cash on hand and debt issuance. 
Facom, based in France, is a leading european manufacturer of hand and 
mechanics tools with annual revenues approximating $475 million. Facom 
designs, manufactures and markets the majority of its tool product range to 
professional automotive and industrial end users with its well-known indus-
trial tool brands: Facom®, Virax® and usAG®. Facom operates primarily 
within the premium industrial and automotive tools sector in europe, while 
the Company’s pre-existing european customer base is focused mainly on 
the construction and D-I-y (‘‘do-it-yourself’’) channels. Facom is primarily 
included in the Company’s Industrial tools segment while its minor D-I-y 
business is included in the Consumer products segment.

As of July 31, 2006, the Company completed a tender offer to acquire approx-
imately 67% of the outstanding shares of Besco pneumatic Corporation 
(‘‘Besco’’), a leading manufacturer of pneumatic tools for $37.9 million in 
cash. over the next five years, the Company will have the option to increase 
its ownership by an additional 15% to an ultimate ownership of 82%. 
Besco, which is headquartered in taiwan and also has operations in China, 
possesses state-of-the-art research and development capabilities and 
efficient production facilities. Besco was one of stanley fastening systems’ 
largest suppliers and approximately half of its 2005 sales of $38 million 
were to the Company. the acquisition is a key step in reducing fastening 
system’s existing cost structure and will facilitate the pursuit of business in 
emerging markets aided by Besco’s brand strength in Asia.

the Company also made five bolt-on acquisitions and increased its invest-
ment in a previously consolidated joint venture during 2006 for a combined 
purchase price of $33.9 million. on January 23, 2006, Automatic entrances 
of Colorado, Inc. (‘‘Automatic entrances’’) was acquired. this is a distributor 
that sells, installs and services automatic doors and gates in several west-
ern states in the u.s. Another automatic door distributor, Automatic Doors 
systems, Inc. (‘‘Automatic Doors”), was acquired on July 31, 2006 and oper-
ates in the southeastern u.s. region. these two acquisitions increased the 
geographic scale of the automatic door business’ existing branch structure. 
on February 28, 2006, the Company completed the acquisition of Allan 
Brothers (pty) ltd. and affiliated companies (‘‘Allan Brothers’’), a south 
African producer of various nail and staple products that complements the 
Company’s existing fastening systems business. GDX technologies ltd. was 
acquired on July 26, 2006 and is a leading access control supplier in the 
united kingdom that possesses strong technological product development 
capabilities. this business complements the Company’s existing european 
security integration business. Another small bolt-on acquisition was made 
related to the Company’s mechanical access business, and an additional 20% 
interest was acquired in a previously consolidated Chinese joint-venture.

F. ACQUISITIONS

the Company completed 20 acquisitions during 2006, 2005 and 2004. 
these businesses were acquired pursuant to the Company’s growth 
and portfolio repositioning strategy. the acquisitions were accounted 
for by the purchase method in accordance with statement of Financial 
Accounting standards no. 141 (‘‘sFAs 141’’), ‘‘Business Combinations’’, 
and their results are included in the Company’s Consolidated operating 
Results from the respective acquisition dates. All of the acquisitions have 
resulted in the recognition of goodwill. Goodwill reflects the future earn-
ings and cash flow potential of the acquired business in excess of the fair 
values that are assigned to all other identifiable assets and liabilities. 
Goodwill arises because the purchase price paid reflects numerous fac-
tors including the strategic fit and expected synergies these targets bring 
to existing operations, the competitive nature of the bidding process and 
the prevailing market value for comparable companies. sFAs 141 requires 
all identifiable assets and liabilities acquired to be reported at fair value 
and the excess is recorded as goodwill. the Company obtains information 
during due diligence and from other sources which forms the basis for the 
initial allocation of purchase price to the estimated fair value of assets 
and liabilities acquired. In the months following an acquisition, indepen-
dent intangible asset valuation reports, asset appraisals and other data 
are obtained in order to finalize the fair values assigned to acquired 
assets and liabilities.

Integration of certain acquisitions requires reduction of redundant person-
nel, closure of facilities, and other restructuring actions related to the 
acquired businesses. In such cases, a restructuring accrual is recorded for 
actions identified in integration strategy plans initially developed by the 
Company as of the acquisition date, with a resulting increase to goodwill. 
As integration strategies are executed, the Company monitors the previ-
ously established restructuring accruals and makes adjustments to the 
extent actual expenditures differ from the estimated accruals. Adjustments 
recorded to previously established restructuring accruals until the time 
integration plans are fully executed, not to exceed one year from date of 
original acquisition, are reflected in the final goodwill amount included 
in the purchase price allocation. Adjustments made subsequent to the 
finalization of integration strategies, or after one year from the date of 
original acquisition, are reflected in earnings if increases to the originally 
established accruals are required, while accruals that are not fully utilized 
are appropriately reduced against goodwill.
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the total purchase price of $551.6 million (inclusive of $2.4 million of hold-
back note payables) for the 2006 acquisitions reflects transaction costs 
and is net of cash acquired. Amounts allocated to the assets acquired and 
liabilities assumed are based on estimates of fair value. the purchase price 
allocation of Besco includes 100% of the acquired assets and liabilities, of 
which $22.1 million is a non-controlling interest that is reflected in other 
liabilities in the Consolidated Balance sheet.

Adjustments to reflect the fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities 
assumed are complete for Facom, Automatic Doors, Automatic entrances, 
and Allan Brothers. however, the purchase price allocations for the 
Besco, GDX and other minor acquisitions are preliminary, mainly with 
respect to finalization of intangible asset valuations, related deferred 
taxes, and other minor items.

the following table summarizes the estimated fair values of major assets 
acquired and liabilities assumed for the 2006 acquisitions in the aggregate:

(Millions of Dollars)      2006

Current assets, primarily accounts  
 receivable and inventories     $ 267.8
property, plant, and equipment      104.6
Goodwill       292.6
trade names      175.4
Customer relationships      21.5
patents and technology      17.0
other intangible assets      1.8
other assets      8.3

total assets     $ 889.0

Current liabilities      213.5
Deferred tax liabilities      27.9
other liabilities      98.4

total liabilities     $ 339.8

other liabilities primarily consist of liabilities for warranty, environmental 
and employee benefit obligations associated with the Facom acquisition 
and the previously discussed $22.1 million Besco non-controlling interest.

the weighted average useful lives assigned to the amortizable assets iden-
tified above are trade names – 7 years; customer relationships – 13 years; 
patents and technology – 15 years; and other intangible assets – 9 years. 
the amount allocated to the trade names includes $171.6 million associated 
with the Facom acquisition (Facom®, Virax®, and usAG®) which have been 
determined to have indefinite lives. Goodwill associated with the 2006 
acquisitions that is deductible for tax purposes amounts to $0.6 million.

During 2006, the Company completed a consultation process with its 
european works Council regarding the reorganization of its Facom and 
stanley hand tools activities in europe (these ‘‘Initiatives’’). these Initiatives 
will, among other things, implement growth strategies and reduce costs by 
rationalizing manufacturing, logistics, sales and support organizations result-

ing in the severance of approximately 580 employees, the closure of two 
legacy Facom factories in France, as well as four legacy Facom distribution 
centers located in the united kingdom, Belgium, Germany and switzerland. 
the facility rationalization commenced recently with the severance of approx-
imately 440 employees, closure of the two French factories and exit from the 
united kingdom distribution center. the Company expects to complete these 
Initiatives during 2007. Cash expenditures to be incurred for these Initiatives 
are estimated at $75 million, of which $59.4 million has been recorded to the 
Facom purchase price allocation and $0.7 million was reported as a 2006 
restructuring charge. As of December 30, 2006, $6.6 million has been utilized 
to date, with $53.5 million accrual remaining. Also, $1.4 million of asset 
impairments were recorded to Cost of sales relating to inventory rationaliza-
tion associated with the plant shut downs.

2005 aCquiSiTiOnS  the Company completed the acquisition of security 
Group, Inc. (‘‘security Group’’) on January 4, 2005 and acquired certain 
assets and liabilities of Rolatape Corporation (‘‘Rolatape’’) as of March 11, 
2005 for a combined cost of $57.4 million. security Group manufactures 
and distributes locking devices, lock parts and safes in the united states 
and europe. Rolatape, a small-bolt on to the 2004 Cst/Berger acquisition, 
designs, manufactures and distributes measuring wheels in professional 
survey, construction and industrial channels. In January 2005, the Company 
acquired eastern Vault & security limited (‘‘eVs’’), a small distributor of 
electronic security products and services primarily to financial institutions 
in Canada for $1.3 million, which was immediately integrated into the Frisco 
Bay business. on May 12, 2005, the Company acquired sielox security 
systems pty ltd. (‘‘sielox’’) for $6.3 million. sielox is an Australian-based 
security integrator that provides security systems for new construction 
environments such as prisons, major apartment and office projects, and 
provides the Company a footprint in the Australian security markets. 
precision hardware, Inc. (‘‘precision’’) was acquired on May 24, 2005 for 
a purchase price of $41.5 million. precision manufactures and distributes 
exit devices, door closers and security hardware in the united states and 
provides a complementary product line to the Company’s existing mechani-
cal access business. the Company completed the acquisition of ABZ 
Verwaltungs, Beteiligungs and handels Gmbh along with a remaining 50% 
interest in Chicago steel tape Gmbh (collectively ‘‘ABZ’’) on september 
6, 2005 for $3.3 million. ABZ, based in Germany, develops and produces 
surveying technology and equipment. on september 30, 2005, pinnacle 
electronic systems, Inc. (‘‘pinnacle’’) was acquired for $5.1 million. pinnacle 
is a full-service electronic security integrator specializing in correctional 
facilities in the eastern and Midwestern united states. on november 30, 
2005, the Company completed the acquisition of national Manufacturing 
Co. (‘‘national’’) for $174.3 million. national is a leading north American 
manufacturer and supplier of builders’ hardware that markets the majority 
of its product range through the two-step cooperative channel to the builder 
trade and serves over 25,000 outlets with manufacturing operations in the 
u.s., Canada and Mexico.
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the total purchase price of $289.2 million for the 2005 acquisitions reflects 
transaction costs and is net of cash acquired. Amounts allocated to the 
assets acquired and liabilities assumed are based on estimates of fair 
value. Adjustments to reflect the fair value of the assets acquired and 
liabilities assumed are complete for the 2005 acquisitions.

the following table summarizes the estimated fair values of major assets 
acquired and liabilities assumed for the 2005 acquisitions in the aggregate:

(Millions of Dollars)      2005

Current assets, primarily accounts  
 receivable and inventories     $ 122.5
property, plant, and equipment      48.8
Goodwill       144.0
trade names      30.6
Customer relationships      41.0
patents and technology      3.3
other intangible assets      1.7
other assets      5.7

total assets     $ 397.6

Current liabilities      69.2
Deferred tax liabilities      19.0
other liabilities (primarily employee benefit related)    27.1

total liabilities     $ 115.3

the purchase price allocation above includes a $6.9 million hold-back note 
payable that was issued in conjunction with the security Group acquisition 
which was repaid in quarterly installments during 2005.

the weighted average useful lives assigned to the amortizable assets iden-
tified above are trade names – 8 years; customer relationships – 9 years; 
patents and technology – 8 years; and other intangible assets – 2 years. 
the amount allocated to trade names includes $17.9 million, $9.2 million 
and $0.9 million associated with the national, security Group and Rolatape 
acquisitions, respectively, which have been determined to have indefinite 
lives. Goodwill associated with the 2005 acquisitions that is deductible for 
tax purposes totals $25.8 million.

In connection with its acquisition of national, the Company recorded 
$8.0 million in severance costs for 243 employees and $0.3 million for 
facility closure costs to the purchase price allocation, and $0.2 million 
was recorded as a restructuring charge. As of December 30, 2006, $5.8 
million has been utilized with $2.7 million accrual remaining.

In connection with its acquisitions of security Group and precision hardware, 
the Company recorded $3.3 million of restructuring reserves in the purchase 
price allocation comprised of $2.5 million of severance and $0.8 million of 
lease and building exit costs. of this amount, $2.9 million has been utilized to 
date with $0.4 million accrual remaining as of December 30, 2006.

prO fOrMa earninGS fOr aCquiSiTiOnS  the information for 
2006, 2005 and 2004 set forth below reflects the pro forma consoli-
dated results as if the 2006, 2005, and 2004 acquisitions had occurred 
at the beginning of 2004. non-recurring expenses of the acquired 
companies have been eliminated, while the effects of the Company’s 
inventory step-up charges and increased intangible asset amortization 
expense have been added to the results below. operating results for 
the acquisitions during these pre-acquisition periods are not necessarily 
indicative of future results.

(Millions of Dollars) (unaudited)  2006  2005  2004

net sales $ 4,035.4 $ 3,986.9 $ 3,862.8
net earnings $ 309.0 $ 308.2 $ 390.7
Diluted earnings per share $ 3.69 $ 3.61 $ 4.64

g.  gOODWILL AND OTHER  
INTANgIBLE ASSETS

GOODWill  the changes in the carrying amount of goodwill by segment 
are as follows:

   Consumer industrial Security 
(Millions of Dollars) products Tools Solutions Total

Balance December 31, 2005 $ 159.3 $ 138.2 $ 443.4 $ 740.9
Acquisitions during the year  0.9  277.0  14.7  292.6
Final purchase  
 accounting allocations  22.3  0.1  4.4  26.8
Foreign currency  
 translation and other  (0.6)  29.9  10.6  39.9

balance December 30, 2006 $ 181.9 $ 445.2 $ 473.1 $ 1,100.2

OTher inTanGible aSSeTS  other intangible assets at December 30, 
2006 and December 31, 2005 were as follows:

(Millions of Dollars) 2006 2005

 Gross  Gross 
 Carrying accumulated Carrying Accumulated 
 amount amortization Amount Amortization

Amortized Intangible Assets
 – Definite lives
 patents and copyrights $ 57.0 $ (26.1) $ 35.7 $ (18.4)
 trade names  27.7  (15.5)  24.2  (12.4)
 Customer relationships  230.4  (67.1)  198.7  (41.1)
 other intangible assets  38.5  (22.0)  35.3  (16.8)

total  $ 353.6 $ (130.7) $ 293.9 $ (88.7)

unamortized Intangible Assets
 – Indefinite lives
 trademarks $ 298.4   $ 107.4
 Minimum pension liability  –    6.9

total  $ 298.4   $ 114.3
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Aggregate other intangible assets amortization expense by segment was 
as follows:

(Millions of Dollars)  2006  2005  2004

Consumer products $ 6.3 $ 3.0 $ 2.7
Industrial tools  8.5  3.9  3.7
security solutions  24.8  23.4  17.3

Consolidated $ 39.6 $ 30.3 $ 23.7

Future estimated amortization expense is $35.5 million for 2007, $31.1 
million for 2008, $25.3 million for 2009, $21.5 million for 2010 and $18.0 
million for 2011.

H. ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accrued expenses at December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005 were 
as follows:

(Millions of Dollars)    2006  2005

Income and other taxes   $ 72.7 $ 88.3
payroll and related taxes    94.5  53.0
trade allowances    65.4  52.7
Restructuring costs    63.1  4.9
Insurance and benefits    35.0  31.8
other    155.2  143.6

total    $ 485.9 $ 374.3

I .   LONg-TERm DEBT AND  
FINANCINg ARRANgEmENTS

long-term debt and financing arrangements at December 30, 2006 and 
December 31, 2005 follow:

(Millions of Dollars) interest rate  2006  2005

notes payable in 2007  4.5% $ 75.0 $ 75.0
notes payable in 2007  3.5%  150.0  150.0
notes payable in 2012  4.9%  200.0  200.0
Industrial Revenue  
 Bonds due in 2010  6.3-6.8%  5.6  5.6
esop loan guarantees,  
 payable in varying  
 monthly installments  
 through 2009  6.1%  4.8  5.3
u.k. loan notes,  
 payable on demand uk libor less 0.5%  1.5  20.4
other, payable in  
 varying amounts  
 through 2011  0.0-7.8%  22.5  11.0
notes payable in 2045  
 (subordinated)  5.9%  450.1  450.1

total debt   $ 909.5 $ 917.4
less: current maturities    230.3  22.1

long-term debt   $ 679.2 $ 895.3

In December 2005, the Company amended its committed 5 year revolv-
ing credit agreement, increasing the size from $400 million to $550 
million; this includes provisions that allow designated subsidiaries to 
borrow up to $250 million in euros and pounds sterling. the credit 
agreement maturity is october 2009. the Company pays a commitment 
fee of 0.08% per annum.

In addition, the Company has short-term lines of credit with numerous 
banks aggregating $251.4 million, of which $190.9 million was available 
at December 30, 2006. short-term arrangements are reviewed annually 
for renewal. the aggregate long-term and short-term lines amounted to 
$801.4 million. the Company’s $550 million committed credit facility is 
designated as a liquidity back-stop for its commercial paper program. 
the Company increased its commercial paper program from $400 million 
to $550 million in December 2006. the weighted average interest rates 
on short-term borrowings at December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005 
were 4.7% and 4.2%, respectively.

In november 2005, the Company issued $450.1 million of junior subordi-
nated debt securities to the stanley works Capital trust I (‘‘trust’’), with 
a 40-year term and a fixed initial coupon rate of 5.902% for the first five 
years. the trust, which is not consolidated in accordance with FIn 46R, 
obtained the funds it loaned to the Company through the capital market 
sale of $450 million of enhanced trust preferred securities (‘‘etps’’) 
and through the sale of $0.1 million in trust Common securities to the 
Company. the obligations, tenor and terms of the etps mirror those of 
the junior subordinated debt securities. the securities may be redeemed 
after five years without penalty. If not redeemed after 5 years, the coupon 
rate will reset quarterly to 1.4% plus the highest of 3-month lIBoR, the 
10-year us treasury CMt or the 30-year us treasury CMt, limited to a 
maximum rate of 13.25%. net proceeds of the issuance were used to 
partially finance the acquisitions of Facom (January 1, 2006) and national 
(november 30, 2005).

to manage interest costs and to better match financial obligations to 
sources of operating cash flows, the Company maintains a portfolio of swap 
agreements. see note J Financial Instruments for more information regard-
ing the Company’s interest rate and currency swap agreements.

Aggregate annual maturities of long-term debt for each of the years from 
2007 to 2011 are $230.3 million, $14.6 million, $5.0 million, $6.7 million 
and $0.9 million, respectively. Interest paid during 2006, 2005, and 2004 
amounted to $70.3 million, $38.9 million, and $39.0 million, respectively.

Included in short-term borrowings on the Consolidated Balance sheets as 
of December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005, is commercial paper of $31.1 
million and $105.7 million, respectively.
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interest rate sWaPs  the Company has executed interest rate swaps 
to exchange the floating rate rent associated with two of its major distribu-
tion centers to a fixed rent amount. At December 30, 2006, the aggregate 
fair value of the outstanding interest rate swaps is a net gain of $0.4 million 
as reflected in other Assets in the Consolidated Balance sheet.

In november 2005, the Company entered into interest rate swaps prior 
to the issuance of its enhanced trust preferred security (‘‘etps’’) with 
an aggregate notional value of $300 million. these swaps were used to 
mitigate interest rate volatility relative to the five year treasury rate by 
effectively fixing the etps five year rate. the interest rate swaps had 
original maturity dates of november 2010, which matched the end of the 
fixed rate etps term. As planned, the swaps were terminated at the time 
of the etps issuance resulting in a pre-tax loss of $1.3 million, which was 
reflected in Accumulated other Comprehensive loss in the Consolidated 
Balance sheet; this loss is being amortized to interest expense over a 
period of five years.

Additionally, in 2005 the Company entered into a 30 year floating to fixed 
interest rate swap with a notional value of $150 million. the swap hedged 
the interest rate exposure associated with the forecasted refinancing of 
the $150 million 3.5% bonds maturing november 2007. During 2006 the 
swap was terminated, resulting in a $5.9 million gain before tax. the 
termination of this financial instrument is consistent with the Company’s 
risk management objective to obtain the lowest cost source of funds within 
a targeted range of variable to fixed rate interest rate proportions. the 
gain arising from the swap termination is reflected in Accumulated other 
Comprehensive loss in the Consolidated Balance sheet, and will be amor-
tized to future earnings.

cross currency sWaPs  the Company and its subsidiaries have 
entered into various inter-company transactions whereby the notional 
values were denominated in currencies (united states Dollar, euro and 
Canadian Dollar) other than the functional currencies of the party executing 
the trade (united states Dollar and euro). In order to better match the cash 
flows of its inter-company obligations with cash flows from operations, the 
Company entered into cross currency swaps. the swaps have an aggregate 
united states Dollar notional value of $266.3 million and maturity dates 
ranging from December 2007 to november 2010. At December 30, 2006, 
the aggregate fair value of the Company’s cross currency swaps that were 
designated as cash flow hedges, was a net loss of $38.5 million as reflected 
in other liabilities in the Consolidated Balance sheet.

the Company assumed $29 million of debt in the Blick and Frisco Bay 
acquisitions. As of December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005, the remain-
ing balance of the u.k. loan notes related to the Blick acquisition was $1.5 
million and $20.4 million, respectively, which is reflected in the current 
portion of long-term debt.

In 2005, the Company paid $70.6 million to purchase 2.5 million shares of 
common stock, settling the remaining portion of the common stock equity 
hedge forward contracts that were amended in June 2003. the notional 
principal balance of $70.6 million as of January 1, 2005 had been recognized 
as debt on the Consolidated Balance sheets and the 2.5 million underlying 
shares were excluded from the number of shares used to calculate basic 
and diluted earnings per share. Refer to note k, Capital stock, for further 
details on the extinguished equity hedge contracts.

J. FINANCIAL INSTRUmENTS

the Company’s objectives in using debt and foreign currency related 
financial instruments are to obtain the lowest cost source of funds within 
a targeted range of variable to fixed-rate debt proportions, to better match 
financial obligations to sources of operating cash flows, and to minimize the 
foreign exchange risks arising from cross-border cash flows. to meet these 
risk management objectives, the Company enters into interest rate swap 
and currency swap agreements, purchased currency options and foreign 
exchange contracts. Derivative instruments are not employed for specu-
lative purposes. Derivatives are recognized in the Consolidated Balance 
sheets at fair value and hedge accounting is applied based on the criteria 
specified in sFAs no. 133, ‘‘Accounting for Derivative Instruments and 
hedging Activities’’, whereby management designates its derivative instru-
ments as cash flow hedges, fair value hedges or net investment hedges.

CaSh flOW heDGeS  purchased currency options and foreign exchange 
forward contracts are used to hedge multi-currency inter-company and 
trade cash flows expected to occur over the next one year period. the 
objective of these instruments is to minimize the impact of foreign cur-
rency fluctuations on operating results. In addition, interest rate swaps are 
utilized to create a fixed rate liability, to achieve the targeted mix of fixed 
versus floating rate debt.

forWard contracts  At December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005, 
forward contracts hedging inter-company transactions totaled $72.8 million 
and $84.3 million, respectively. these foreign exchange forward contracts 
are denominated in Australian Dollars, Canadian Dollars, Danish krone, 
euro, Japanese yen, Great Britain pound, new Zealand Dollars, south 
African Rand, swiss Franc, swedish krona, taiwanese Dollars and thai 
Baht. the aggregate fair value of these forward contracts as of December 
30, 2006 is a $0.9 million gain that is recorded in other Current Assets in 
the Consolidated Balance sheet.



2006 AnnuAl RepoRt 

63

For derivative instruments that are so designated at inception and qualify as 
cash flow hedges, the Company records the effective portions of the gain or 
loss on the derivative instrument in Accumulated other Comprehensive loss, 
a separate component of shareowners’ equity, and subsequently reclassifies 
these amounts into earnings in the period during which the hedged transac-
tion is recognized in earnings. the ineffective portion of the gain or loss, if 
any, is immediately recognized in the same caption where the hedged items 
are recognized in the Consolidated statements of operations, generally 
other-net. there is a $4.4 million after-tax gain reported for cash flow hedge 
effectiveness in Accumulated other Comprehensive loss as of December 30, 
2006. Any gain or loss on these instruments at maturity will be reclassified to 
earnings when the hedged transactions occur in the years 2007 through 2010. 
the ultimate amount recognized will vary based on fluctuations of the hedged 
currencies (united states Dollar, euro, Great Britain pound and Canadian 
Dollar) through the maturity dates. During 2006, 2005 and 2004, $25.7 million, 
($12.7) million and $14.3 million pertaining to cash flow hedges was reclas-
sified from Accumulated other Comprehensive loss into earnings during the 
periods in which the underlying hedged transactions affected earnings; due 
to the effectiveness of these instruments in matching the underlying on a net 
basis there was no significant earnings impact.

fair value heDGeS  For derivative instruments that are designated 
and qualify as fair value hedges, the Company recognizes the gain or loss on 
the derivative instrument in earnings in the same caption where the offset-
ting gain or loss on the hedged item is recognized in the current period.

cross currency sWaPs  the Company and its subsidiaries have 
entered into various inter-company transactions where the notional values 
are denominated in currencies (united states Dollar, Canadian Dollar, euro, 
Japanese yen and Great Britain pound) other than the functional currencies 
of the party executing the trade (united states Dollar, Great Britain pound 
and euro). In order to better match the cash flows of its inter-company obli-
gations with cash flows from operations, the Company entered into various 
cross currency swaps. the swaps have an aggregate united states Dollar 
notional value of $350 million with maturity dates ranging from December 
2007 to september 2010. At December 30, 2006 the aggregate fair value 
of the Company’s cross currency swaps that were designated as fair value 
hedges, was a net loss of $14.3 million as reflected in other liabilities in 
the Consolidated Balance sheet.

neT inveSTMenT heDGe  the Company utilizes net investment 
hedges to offset the translation adjustment arising from remeasuring its 
investment in the assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses of its foreign 
subsidiaries. For derivative instruments that are designated and qualify 
as net investment hedges, the Company records the effective portion 
of the gain or loss on the derivative instrument in Accumulated other 
Comprehensive loss, a component of shareowners’ equity.

In February 2004, the Company entered into a cross currency swap with a 
united states Dollar notional value of $45.4 million to hedge its net invest-
ment in Great Britain pound assets. the Company pays Great Britain pounds 
and receives united states Dollars using fixed interest rates, offsetting the 
translation adjustment of its net investment in Great Britain pound assets. 
this swap has a maturity date of February 2014. At December 30, 2006, the 
fair value of this currency swap was a loss of $5.2 million and is recorded 
in other liabilities in the Consolidated Balance sheet and the pre-tax loss 
on the net investment hedge included in Accumulated other Comprehensive 
loss is $5.5 million.

In February 2006, the Company entered into a cross currency swap matur-
ing December 2006, with a united states Dollar notional value of $100 
million to hedge its net investment in euro assets. the Company pays euros 
and receives united states Dollars using fixed interest rates, offsetting the 
translation adjustment of its net investment in euro assets. At maturity, the 
derivative contract was settled and a pre-tax loss of $10.1 million on this 
initial contract was recorded in Accumulated other Comprehensive loss. 
In December 2006, the Company entered into another cross currency swap 
with a notional value of $100 million and a maturity of December 2009 to 
continue to hedge its net investment of euro assets. the Company paid 
euros and received united states Dollars using fixed interest rates, offset-
ting the translation adjustment of its net investment in euro assets. At 
December 30, 2006, the fair value of this currency swap was a loss of $0.5 
million as reported in other liabilities in the Consolidated Balance sheet 
and the loss on the net investment hedge included in Accumulated other 
Comprehensive loss was $0.5 million before taxes.

unDeSiGnaTeD heDGeS  purchased currency options and foreign 
exchange forward contracts are used to reduce exchange risks arising from 
cross-border cash flows expected to occur over the next one year period. 
the objective of these practices is to minimize the impact of foreign cur-
rency fluctuations on operating results.

At December 30, 2006, forward contracts hedging intercompany transac-
tions totaled $139.2 million. these foreign exchange forward contracts are 
denominated in Australian Dollars, Canadian Dollars, Danish krone, euro, 
Japanese yen, Great Britain pound, new Zealand Dollars, polish Zloty, 
south African Rand, swiss Franc, swedish krona, taiwanese Dollars and 
thai Baht. the contracts mature in less than one year. the aggregate fair 
value of these forward contracts is a $0.2 million loss that is recorded in 
other Current liabilities in the Consolidated Balance sheet.

heDGe effeCTiveneSS  For forward contracts and cross currency 
swaps designated as cash flow, fair value or net investment hedges, the 
Company measures hedge effectiveness by comparing the cumulative 
change in the hedge contract with the cumulative change in the hedged 
item, both of which are based on forward rates. the ineffective portion, if 
any, of the hedge is recognized in earnings immediately. hedge ineffective-
ness was immaterial for 2006, 2005 and 2004.
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COMMOn STOCk Share aCTiviTy  Common stock share activity for 
2006, 2005 and 2004 was as follows:

   2006 2005 2004

outstanding, beginning of year 83,791,129 82,407,063 81,276,821
Issued from treasury 2,076,722 1,388,179 1,151,576
Returned to treasury (4,026,224) (4,113) (21,334)

outstanding, end of year 81,841,627 83,791,129 82,407,063

COMMOn STOCk reServeD  Common stock shares reserved for 
issuance under various employee and director stock plans at December 30, 
2006 and December 31, 2005 are as follows:

    2006 2005

employee stock purchase plan  3,347,740 3,412,330
stock-based compensation plans  5,312,881 6,696,171

total   8,660,621 10,108,501

preferreD STOCk purChaSe riGhTS  each outstanding share of 
common stock has one half of a share purchase right. each purchase right 
may be exercised to purchase one two-hundredth of a share of series A 
Junior participating preferred stock at an exercise price of $220.00, subject 
to adjustment. the rights, which do not have voting rights, expire on March 
10, 2016, and may be redeemed by the Company at a price of $0.01 per right 
at any time prior to the tenth day following the public announcement that a 
person has acquired beneficial ownership of 15% or more of the outstand-
ing shares of common stock. In the event that the Company is acquired in a 
merger or other business combination transaction, provision shall be made so 
that each holder of a right (other than a holder who is a 14.9%-or-more share-
owner) shall have the right to receive, upon exercise thereof, that number 
of shares of common stock of the surviving Company having a market value 
equal to two times the exercise price of the right. similarly, if anyone becomes 
the beneficial owner of more than 15% of the then outstanding shares of 
common stock (except pursuant to an offer for all outstanding shares of com-
mon stock which the independent directors have deemed to be fair and in the 
best interest of the Company), provision will be made so that each holder 
of a right (other than a holder who is a 14.9%-or-more shareowner) shall 
thereafter have the right to receive, upon exercise thereof, common stock (or, 
in certain circumstances, cash, property or other securities of the Company) 
having a market value equal to two times the exercise price of the right. At 
December 30, 2006 there were 40,920,814 outstanding rights. there are 
250,000 shares of series A Junior participating preferred stock reserved for 
issuance in connection with the rights.

For interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges, the Company mea-
sures the hedging effectiveness by offsetting the change in the variable 
portion of the interest rate swap with the change in the expected interest 
flows due to fluctuations in the lIBoR based interest rate.

the counterparties to all of the above mentioned financial instruments are 
major international financial institutions. the Company is exposed to credit 
risk for net exchanges under these agreements, but not for the notional 
amounts. the risk of default is considered remote.

the carrying values and fair values of the Company’s financial instruments at 
December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005 follow:

(Millions of Dollars, (asset) liability) 2006 2005

   Carrying  fair  Carrying  Fair 
   value  value  Value  Value

long-term Debt,  
 Including Current portion $ 909.5 $ 873.5 $ 917.4 $ 912.3
undesignated hedges:
 Forward Contracts  0.2  0.2  –  –
Cash Flow hedges:
 Forward contracts  (0.9)  (0.9)  (0.1)  (0.1)
 Interest rate swaps   (0.4)  (0.4)  0.2  0.2
 Cross currency swaps  38.5  38.5  17.4  17.4
Fair Value hedges:
 Cross currency swaps  14.3  14.3  (8.0)  (8.0)
net Investment hedges:
 Cross currency swaps  5.7  5.7  0.8  0.8

total Financial Instruments $ 966.9 $ 930.9 $ 927.7 $ 922.6

the fair values of long-term debt instruments are estimated using discount-
ed cash flow analysis, based on the Company’s marginal borrowing rates. 
the fair values of foreign currency and interest rate swap agreements are 
based on current settlement values. the carrying amount of cash equiva-
lents and short-term borrowings approximates fair value.

K. CAPITAL STOCK

WeiGhTeD-averaGe ShareS OuTSTanDinG  weighted-average 
shares outstanding used to calculate basic and diluted earnings per share 
for each year were as follows:

   2006 2005 2004

Basic earnings per share,  
 weighted-average  
 shares outstanding 81,866,241 83,346,898 82,057,863
Dilutive effect of stock  
 options and awards 1,838,131 2,058,820 2,185,949

Diluted earnings per share,  
 weighted-average  
 shares outstanding 83,704,372 85,405,718 84,243,812
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STOCk-baSeD COMpenSaTiOn planS  the Company has stock-
based compensation plans for salaried employees and non-employee mem-
bers of the Board of Directors. the plans provide for discretionary grants of 
stock options, restricted stock units, and other stock-based awards. the plans 
are generally administered by the Compensation and organization Committee 
of the Board of Directors, consisting of non-employee directors.

stocK oPtions  stock options are granted at the market price of the 
Company’s stock on the date of grant and have a 10 year term. Generally, 
stock option grants vest ratably between one and four years from the 
date of grant. the expense for stock options granted to retirement eligible 
employees (those aged 55 and over and with 10 or more years of service) 
is recognized by the date they became retirement eligible, or on the date of 
grant if they are already retirement eligible, as such employees may retain 
their options for the 10 year contractual term in the event they retire prior 
to the end of the vesting period stipulated in the grant.

the following describes how certain assumptions affecting the estimated 
fair value of stock options are determined: the dividend yield is computed as 
the annualized dividend rate at the date of grant divided by the strike price 
of the stock option; expected volatility is based on an average of the market 
implied volatility and historical volatility for the five year expected life; the 
risk-free interest rate is based on u.s. treasury securities with maturities 
equal to the expected life of the option; and an eight percent forfeiture rate 
is assumed. the Company uses historical data in order to estimate exercise, 
termination and holding period behavior for valuation purposes.

the number of stock options and weighted-average exercise prices follows:

  2006 2005 2004

  Options price options price options price

outstanding,  
 beginning  
 of year 9,559,604 $34.06 10,507,908 $32.46 10,995,285 $30.14
Granted 934,000 50.44 795,000 47.22 1,697,250 40.90
exercised (1,817,695) 31.44 (1,229,350) 28.89 (957,976) 26.15
Forfeited (219,401) 37.71 (513,954) 33.60 (1,224,651) 29.07
expired – – – – (2,000) 20.16

outstanding,  
 end of year 8,456,508 $36.31 9,559,604 $34.06 10,507,908 $32.46

exercisable,  
 end of year 5,619,112 $32.88 6,259,563 $31.28 5,660,667 $29.89

At December 30, 2006, the range of exercise prices on outstanding stock 
options was $19.34 to $51.84. stock option expense was $8.2 million for 
the year ended December 30, 2006. no stock option expense was recog-
nized in the years ended December 31, 2005 and January 1, 2005 because 
under ApB 25, no compensation cost was recognized for stock options 
when the quoted market price of the stock at the grant date was equal to 
the amount per share the employee had to pay to acquire the stock after 
fulfilling the vesting period.

the fair value of each stock option grant was estimated on the date of grant 
using the Black-scholes option pricing model with the following weighted 
average assumptions used for grants in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively: 
dividend yield of 2.4%, 2.4%, and 2.6%; expected volatility of 26%, 27% 
and 20%; and risk-free interest rates of 4.2%, 4.4% and 3.3%. An expected 
life of five years was used in each period and a weighted average vesting 
period of 2.3 years in 2006 and 2.5 years in 2005 and 2004. the weighted 
average fair value of stock options granted in 2006, 2005 and 2004 was 
$12.03, $11.44 and $6.76, respectively.

At December 30, 2006, the Company had $14.1 million of unrecognized 
pre-tax compensation expense for stock options. this expense will be 
recognized over the remaining vesting periods which is 1.6 years on a 
weighted average basis.

For 2006, the Company received $57.7 million in cash from the exercise of 
stock options. the related tax benefit from the exercise of these options 
is $12.9 million. During 2006, 2005 and 2004 the total intrinsic value 
of options exercised was $35.5 million, $23.3 million and $16.6 million, 
respectively. when options are exercised, the related shares are issued 
from treasury stock.

sFAs 123R requires the benefit arising from tax deductions in excess of rec-
ognized compensation cost to be classified as a financing cash flow rather 
than as an operating cash flow as all such tax benefits were classified under 
earlier accounting guidance. to quantify the recognized compensation cost 
on which the excess tax benefit is computed, both actual compensation 
expense recorded following the adoption of sFAs 123R on January 1, 2006 
and pro forma compensation cost reported in disclosures under the previous 
sFAs 123 standard in earlier periods is considered. An excess tax benefit 
is generated on the extent to which the actual gain, or spread, an optionee 
receives upon exercise of an option exceeds the fair value determined at 
the grant date; that excess spread over the fair value of the option times the 
applicable tax rate represents the excess tax benefit. In 2006, the Company 
reported $4.1 million of excess tax benefits as a financing cash flow.
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outstanding and exercisable stock option information at December 30, 
2006 follows:

 Outstanding exercisable  
 Stock Options Stock Options

    weighted- 
    average weighted-  weighted- 
exercise  Remaining average  average 
price   Contractual exercise  exercise 
Ranges options life price options price

$19.00-$25.00 911,275 3.42 $ 22.22 911,275 $ 22.22

$25.01-$35.00 3,313,942 4.59 $ 30.26 2,683,212 $ 30.04

$35.01-$52.00 4,231,291 7.14 $ 44.09 2,024,625 $ 41.45

   8,456,508 5.74 $ 36.31 5,619,112 $ 32.88

restricted sHare units  Compensation cost for restricted share units 
(‘‘Rsus’’) granted to employees is recognized ratably over the vesting 
term, which varies but is generally four years. non-employee members 
of the Board of Directors receive payment for their service on the Board 
in the form of Rsus which are expensed immediately. Rsu grants totaled 
169,675 shares, 122,891 shares, and 107,293 shares in 2006, 2005 and 
2004, respectively. the weighted-average grant date fair value of Rsus 
granted in 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $49.28, $47.28 and $40.17 per share, 
respectively. total compensation expense recognized for Rsus amounted 
to $4.1 million, $2.5 million and $1.8 million, respectively; and the related 
tax benefit recorded was $1.0 million, $0.6 and $0.6 million, respectively, 
in 2006, 2005 and 2004. As of December 30, 2006, unrecognized compen-
sation expense for Rsus amounted to $9.5 million and this cost will be 
recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.8 years.

A summary of non-vested restricted stock unit activity as of December 30, 
2006, and changes during the 12 month period then ended is as follows:

       weighted  
       Average 
       Grant 
     Restricted   Date Fair 
      share units  Value

non-vested at December 31, 2005    238,850 $ 42.32
Granted    169,675 $ 49.28
Vested    (104,349) $ 38.02
Forfeited    (14,938) $ 45.89

non-vested at December 30, 2006    289,238 $ 46.76

the total fair value of shares vested (market value on the date vested) 
during 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $5.2 million, $0.7 million, and $8.9 
million, respectively.

Additionally, non-employee members of the Board of Directors received 
restricted share-based grants which must be cash settled and accordingly 
mark-to-market accounting is applied. the after-tax expense recognized 
for such grants amounted to $0.8 million in 2006, $0.6 million in 2005 and 
$0.4 million in 2004.

lonG-term stocK incentiVe Plan  the long-term stock Incentive 
plan (‘‘ltsIp’’) provides for grants of awards to senior management 
employees for achieving Company performance measures, specifically 
earnings per share and return on capital employed. Awards are payable 
in shares of common stock, which may be restricted if the employee has 
not achieved certain stock ownership levels, and generally no award is 
made if the employee terminates employment prior to the payout date. 
there are three award cycles in progress: one for the two and one 
half year period ending in December, 2006, the second for the three 
year period ending in December, 2007, and the third for the three year 
period ending in December, 2008. the ultimate issuance of shares, if 
any, is determined based on performance over the three year cycle. 
the Company has accrued for the expected issuance of shares based 
on estimates of future performance in relation to the targets. expense 
recognized for the ltsIp plans amounted to $7.4 million in 2006, $6.4 
million in 2005 and $1.6 million in 2004.

emPloyee stocK PurcHase Plan  the employee stock purchase 
plan (‘‘espp’’) enables substantially all employees in the united states and 
Canada to subscribe at any time to purchase shares of common stock on a 
monthly basis at the lower of 85% of the fair market value of the shares on 
the grant date ($40.37 per share for fiscal year 2006 purchases) or 85% of 
the fair market value of the shares on the last business day of each month. 
A maximum of 6,000,000 shares are authorized for subscription. During 
2006, 2005 and 2004 shares totaling 64,590, 96,683 and 118,544, respec-
tively, were issued under the plan at average prices of $39.26, $33.19 and 
$26.78 per share, respectively and the intrinsic value of the espp purchases 
was $0.6 million, $1.3 million and $1.7 million, respectively. For 2006, the 
Company received $2.6 million in cash from espp purchases, and there is no 
related tax benefit. the fair value of espp shares was estimated using the 
Black-scholes option pricing model. espp compensation cost is recognized 
ratably over the one year term based on actual employee stock purchases 
under the plan and amounted to $0.5 million in 2006. the fair value of the 
employees’ purchase rights under the espp was estimated using the follow-
ing assumptions for 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively: dividend yield of 
2.4%, 2.4% and 3.1%; expected volatility of 23%, 27% and 20%; risk-free 
interest rates of 4.3%, 2.4% and 2.2%; and expected lives of one year. the 
weighted average fair value of those purchase rights granted in 2006, 2005 
and 2004 was $9.70, $11.15 and $7.03, respectively.
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If compensation cost for the Company’s stock option plans had been deter-
mined based on the fair value at the grant dates consistent with the method 
prescribed by sFAs no. 123, ‘‘Accounting for stock-Based Compensation’’, 
net earnings and earnings per share would have been adjusted to the pro 
forma amounts indicated below:

(Millions of Dollars, except for per share data)    2005  2004

net earnings, as reported   $ 269.6 $ 366.9
Add: stock-based compensation  
 expense included in reported income   6.4  4.1
less: stock-based employee  
 compensation expense determined  
 under fair value method,  
 net of related tax effects    12.0  10.8

pro forma net earnings,  
 fair value method    $ 264.0 $ 360.2

earnings per share:
Basic, as reported   $ 3.23 $ 4.47
Basic, pro forma    $ 3.17 $ 4.39
Diluted, as reported   $ 3.16 $ 4.36
Diluted, pro forma   $ 3.09 $ 4.28

Compensation cost relating to the stock based compensation grants made 
in 2005 and earlier periods is recognized ratably over the vesting period 
using the accelerated method. effective with the adoption of sFAs 123(R) 
on January 1, 2006, expense for new grants is recognized on a straight-line 
basis over the vesting period. the expense for retiree eligible employees 
(those aged 55 and over and with 10 or more years of service) is recognized 
by the date they became retirement eligible, as such employees may retain 
their options for the 10 year contractual term in the event they retire prior 
to the end of the vesting period stipulated in the grant.

COMMOn STOCk equiTy heDGe  the Company previously entered 
into equity hedges, in the form of equity forwards on its common shares, to 
offset the dilutive effect of in-the-money stock options on earnings per share 
and to reduce potential cash outflow for the repurchase of the Company’s 
stock to offset stock option exercises. under the former equity hedge con-
tracts, when the price of the Company’s common stock appreciated since the 
last quarterly interim settlement, the Company received its common shares 
from the counterparties. when the price of the Company stock depreciated 
since the last quarterly interim settlement, the Company delivered its com-
mon stock from treasury shares to the counterparties. Interim quarterly set-
tlements were in shares of common stock, not cash, and were accounted for 
within equity. In April 2003, the Company settled $100 million of the contracts 
through a cash repurchase of 3.9 million underlying shares at that time. In 
June 2003, the remaining $113 million in the Company’s common stock equity 
hedge forward contracts were modified to full physical settlement contracts 
with a fixed notional principal of $113 million and 4.1 million of underlying 
shares. As discussed in note I long-term Debt and Financing Arrangements, 
all remaining outstanding principal was repaid during 2005.

L.  ACCUmULATED OTHER  
COmPREHENSIVE LOSS

Accumulated other comprehensive loss at the end of each fiscal year was 
as follows:

(Millions of Dollars)  2006  2005  2004

Currency translation adjustment $ (8.3) $ (74.1) $ (38.9)
pension asset/liability, net of tax  (68.9)  (13.1)  (9.1)
Fair value of net investment  
 hedge effectiveness, net of tax  (9.0)  (0.5)  (3.6)
Fair value of cash flow  
 hedge effectiveness, net of tax  4.4  (3.6)  (3.6)

Accumulated other  
 comprehensive loss $ (81.8) $ (91.3) $ (55.2)

m. EmPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

eMplOyee STOCk OWnerShip plan (‘‘eSOp’’)  substantially all 
u.s. employees may contribute from 1% to 15% of their eligible compensa-
tion to a tax-deferred 401(k) savings plan, subject to restrictions under tax 
laws. employees generally direct the investment of their own contributions 
into various investment funds. An employer match benefit is provided 
under the plan equal to one-half of each employee’s tax-deferred contribu-
tion up to the first 7% of their compensation. half of the employer match 
benefit is invested in the Company’s common stock while the investment 
of the other half is directed by the employee. effective January 1, 2007, 
participants will direct the entire employer match such that no participant 
is required to hold the Company’s common stock in their 401(k) account. 
the employer match benefit totaled $7.9 million, $8.3 million and $7.3 mil-
lion, in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

In addition, approximately 4,000 u.s. salaried and non-union hourly employees 
receive a non-contributory benefit under the Cornerstone plan. Cornerstone 
benefit allocations range from 3% to 9% of eligible employee compensation 
based on age. Approximately 1,500 u.s. employees receive an additional 
average 1.7% contribution actuarially designed to replace previously curtailed 
pension benefits. Allocations for benefits earned under the Cornerstone plan 
were $13.2 million in 2006, $12.3 million in 2005 and $12.6 million in 2004. 
Assets held in participant Cornerstone accounts are invested in a broad-
based u.s. equity security index fund and u.s. government bonds.

shares of the Company’s common stock held by the esop were purchased 
with the proceeds of external borrowings in 1989 and borrowings from the 
Company in 1991 (“1991 internal loan”). the external esop borrowings are 
guaranteed by the Company and are included in long-term debt. shareowners’ 
equity reflects a reduction equal to the cost basis of unearned (unallocated) 
shares purchased with the internal and the external borrowings.
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the Company accounts for the esop under statement of position (‘‘sop’’) 
76-3, ‘‘Accounting practices for Certain employee stock ownership 
plans’’, as affected by the emerging Issues task Force (‘‘eItF’’) 89-8, 
‘‘expense Recognition for employee stock ownership plans.’’ net esop 
activity recognized is comprised of the cost basis of shares released, 
the cost of the aforementioned Cornerstone and 401(k) match defined 
contribution benefits, interest expense on the external 1989 borrowing, 
less the fair value of shares released and dividends on unallocated esop 
shares. net esop expense was $2.4 million in 2006, $2.1 million in 2005 
and $2.2 million in 2004. esop expense is affected by the market value 
of the Company’s common stock on the monthly dates when shares are 
released. the market value of shares released averaged $49.28 per share 
in 2006, $46.41 in 2005 and $43.20 in 2004.

unallocated shares are released from the trust based on current period 
debt principal and interest payments as a percentage of total future debt 
principal and interest payments. Dividends on both allocated and unal-
located shares may be used for debt service and to credit participant 
accounts for dividends earned on allocated shares. Dividends paid on the 
shares acquired with the 1991 internal loan were used solely to pay inter-
nal loan debt service in all periods. Dividends on esop shares, which are 
charged to shareowners’ equity as declared, were $11.7 million in 2006, 
$12.1 million in 2005 and $12.2 million in 2004. Dividends on esop shares 
were utilized entirely for debt service in all years. Interest costs incurred 
by the esop on the 1989 external debt in 2006, 2005 and 2004 were 
$0.3 million, $0.4 million and $0.7 million, respectively. Interest costs 
incurred by the esop on the 1991 internal loan, which have no earnings 
impact, were $9.2 million, $9.5 million and $9.7 million for 2006, 2005, 
and 2004, respectively. Both allocated and unallocated esop shares are 
treated as outstanding for purposes of computing earnings per share. As 
of December 30, 2006, the number of esop shares allocated to partici-
pant accounts was 4,185,747 and the number of unallocated shares was 
5,458,285. At December 30, 2006, there were 33,205 released shares in 
the esop trust holding account pending allocation. the Company made 
cash contributions to the esop totaling $11.2 million in 2006, $13.3 million 
in 2005 and $10.2 million in 2004.

penSiOn anD OTher benefiT planS  the Company sponsors pen-
sion plans covering most domestic hourly and certain executive employees, 
and approximately 7,500 foreign employees. Benefits are generally based on 
salary and years of service, except for u.s. collective bargaining employees 
whose benefits are based on a stated amount for each year of service.

the Company contributes to multi-employer plans for certain collective bar-
gaining u.s. employees. In addition, various other defined contribution plans 
are sponsored worldwide. the expense for such defined contribution plans, 
aside from the earlier discussed esop plans, follows.

(Millions of Dollars)  2006  2005  2004

Multi-employer plan expense $ 0.8 $ 0.7 $ 0.4
other defined contribution  
 plan expense $ 5.4 $ 3.3 $ 3.0

the components of net periodic pension expense (income) are as follows:

 u.S. plans non-u.S. plans

(Millions of Dollars) 2006 2005 2004 2006 2005 2004

service cost $  2.6 $  2.6 $  2.4 $  5.9 $  6.4 $  6.4
Interest cost 8.1 4.7 3.2 13.8 11.7 11.1
expected return on  
 plan assets (7.9) (2.9) (1.0) (16.9) (16.2) (15.3)
Amortization of prior  
 service cost 1.4 1.4 2.0 0.2 1.5 0.6
Actuarial loss 1.1 2.2 0.5 6.4 4.1 1.5
settlement / curtailment  
 loss (gain) – (0.8) – 6.1 0.4 (0.7)

net periodic  
 pension expense $  5.3 $  7.2 $  7.1 $ 15.5 $  7.9 $  3.6

Increase (Decrease)  
 in pension liability  
 included in other  
 comprehensive  
 loss (after-tax) $  (3.4) $  1.4 $  (1.2) $  8.7 $  (5.4) $  1.3

the Company provides medical and dental benefits for certain retired 
employees in the united states. In addition, certain u.s. employees who 
retire from active service are eligible for life insurance benefits. net peri-
odic postretirement benefit expense was $2.7 million in 2006, $2.0 million 
in 2005 and $1.8 million in 2004.
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the changes in the pension and other postretirement benefit obligations, fair value of plan assets as well as amounts recognized in the Consolidated 
Balance sheets, are shown below:

      penSiOn benefiTS  OTher benefiTS

 u.S. plans non-u.S. plans u.S. plans

(Millions of Dollars)  2006  2005  2006  2005  2006  2005

Change in benefit obligation
Benefit obligation at end of prior year $ 154.2 $ 60.8 $ 248.6 $ 243.9 $ 29.0 $ 18.9
service cost  2.6  2.6  5.9  6.4  1.1  0.9
Interest cost  8.1  4.7  13.8  11.7  1.5  1.1
settlements / curtailments  0.1  (0.8)  (0.1)  (0.2)  –  –
Change in discount rate  (4.3)  0.8  0.3  14.5  (1.1)  0.8
Actuarial (gain) loss  (6.0)  4.1  4.2  2.7  0.3  (0.8)
plan amendments  1.9  –  –  0.2  –  –
Foreign currency exchange rates  –  –  30.4  (18.8)  –  –
participant contributions  –  –  0.4  0.7  –  –
Acquisitions  –  86.6  29.4  –  –  9.9
Benefits paid  (8.4)  (4.6)  (20.0)  (12.5)  (3.3)  (1.8)

Benefit obligation at end of year $ 148.2 $ 154.2 $ 312.9 $ 248.6 $ 27.5 $ 29.0

Change in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at end of prior year $ 101.8 $ 17.2 $ 209.7 $ 200.9 $ – $ –
Actual return on plan assets  13.0  3.0  23.3  31.4  –  –
participant contributions  –  –  0.4  0.7  –  –
employer contributions  5.8  7.7  12.7  7.2  3.3  1.8
Foreign currency exchange rate changes  –  –  25.5  (18.0)  –  –
Acquisitions  –  78.5  15.5  –  –  –
Benefits paid  (8.4)  (4.6)  (20.0)  (12.5)  (3.3)  (1.8)

Fair value of plan assets at end of plan year $ 112.2 $ 101.8 $ 267.1 $ 209.7 $ – $ –

Funded status – assets less than benefit obligation $ (36.0) $ (52.4) $ (45.8) $ (38.9) $ (27.5) $ (29.0)
unrecognized prior service cost (credit)  8.1  7.6  1.0  5.1  (1.4)  (1.5)
unrecognized net actuarial loss  3.3  15.5  83.4  83.5  4.2  5.3
unrecognized net transition liability  –  –  1.3  0.6  –  –

net amount recognized $ (24.6) $ (29.3) $ 39.9 $ 50.3 $ (24.7) $ (25.2)

amounts recognized in the  
 Consolidated balance Sheets
prepaid benefit cost (non-current) $ 8.2 $ 7.6 $ 2.7 $ 66.2 $ – $ –
Intangible asset  –  6.1  –  0.8  –  –
Current benefit liability  (2.7)  –  (1.7)  –  (2.3)  (2.0)
non-current benefit liability  (41.5)  (56.7)  (46.8)  (23.8)  (25.2)  (23.2)

net asset (liability) recognized $ (36.0) $ (43.0) $ (45.8) $ 43.2 $ (27.5) $ (25.2)

Accumulated other comprehensive loss (pre-tax):
 prior service cost (credit) $ 8.1 $ – $ 1.0 $ –  (1.4) $ –
 Actuarial (gain) loss  3.3  13.7  83.4  7.1  4.2  –
 transition liability  –  –  1.3  –  –  –

  $ 11.4 $ 13.7 $ 85.7 $ 7.1  2.8 $ –

net amount recognized $ (24.6) $ (29.3) $ 39.9 $ 50.3 $ (24.7) $ (25.2)
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the accumulated benefit obligation for all defined benefit pension plans was $428.1 million at December 30, 2006 and $372.9 million at December 31, 2005. 
Information regarding pension plans in which accumulated benefit obligations exceed plan assets follows:

 u.S. plans non-u.S. plans

(Millions of Dollars)      2006  2005  2006  2005

projected benefit obligation     $ 70.6 $ 154.2 $ 55.5 $ 69.2
Accumulated benefit obligation     $ 67.3 $ 148.7 $ 48.8 $ 62.8
Fair value of plan assets     $ 26.6 $ 101.8 $ 21.0 $ 41.6

Information regarding pension plans in which projected benefit obligations (inclusive of anticipated future compensation increases) exceed plan assets 
follows:

 u.S. plans non-u.S. plans

(Millions of Dollars)      2006  2005  2006  2005

projected benefit obligation     $ 70.6 $ 154.2 $ 256.7 $ 248.6
Accumulated benefit obligation     $ 67.3 $ 148.7 $ 226.8 $ 224.2
Fair value of plan assets     $ 26.6 $ 101.8 $ 210.8 $ 209.7

the Company adopted sFAs 158 as of December 30, 2006. the impact from recognizing the funded status of the defined benefit plans, representing the 
fair value of the plan assets versus the projected benefit obligation, was a decrease to shareowners’ equity of $61.1 million, net of a $26.7 million tax ben-
efit. the Company uses a fiscal year end date to value all its plans. the following table summarizes the impact of adopting sFAs 158 on the Consolidated 
Balance sheet at December 30, 2006:

  Defined  Impact of Defined 
  Benefit sFAs 158 Benefit 
  plans Before Adoption plans After 
  Adoption of  Increase Adoption of 
(Millions of Dollars) sFAs 158 (Decrease) sFAs 158

prepaid benefit cost (non-current)       $ 79.3 $ (68.4) $ 10.9
Intangible asset       $ 7.4 $ (7.4) $ –
Benefit liability       $ 108.1 $ 12.1 $ 120.2
Accumulated other comprehensive loss       $ (7.8) $ (61.1) $ (68.9)

the major assumptions used in valuing pension and postretirement plan obligations and net costs were as follows:

      penSiOn benefiTS  OTher benefiTS

 u.S. plans non-u.S. plans u.S. plans

   2006  2005  2006  2005  2006  2005

weighted average assumptions used to  
 determine benefit obligations at year end:
Discount rate  5.75%  5.5%  4.75%  5.0%  5.25%  5.5%
Rate of compensation increase  6.0%  5.5%  3.75%  3.75%  5.75%  4.0%

weighted average assumptions used to  
 determine net periodic benefit cost:
Discount rate  5.5%  5.75%  5.0%  5.25%  5.5%  6.0%
Rate of compensation increase  5.5%  6.0%  3.75%  3.75%  4.0%  4.0%
expected return on plan assets  8.0%  7.75%  7.0%  7.5%  –  –
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the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets is determined consid-
ering the returns projected for the various asset classes and the relative 
weighting for each asset class as reflected in the target asset allocation 
below. In addition the Company considers historical performance, the opin-
ions of outside actuaries and other data in developing benchmark returns.

the amounts in Accumulated other Comprehensive loss expected to be rec-
ognized as components of net periodic benefit costs during the next fiscal year 
total $9.5 million, representing amortization of $7.8 million of actuarial loss, 
$1.4 million of prior service cost and $0.3 million of net transition assets.

penSiOn plan aSSeTS   plan assets are invested in equity securities, 
bonds and other fixed income securities, money market instruments and 
insurance contracts. the Company’s weighted-average worldwide actual 
asset allocations at December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005 by asset 
category are as follows:

   plan assets
        target 
Asset Category  2006  2005  Allocation

equity securities  56%  67%  50-70%
Fixed income securities  39%  32%  30-50%
other  5%  1%  0-10%

total   100%  100%  100%

the Company’s investment strategy for pension plan assets includes diversifi-
cation to minimize interest and market risks, and generally does not involve the 
use of derivative financial instruments. plan assets are rebalanced periodically 
to maintain target asset allocations. Maturities of investments are not neces-
sarily related to the timing of expected future benefit payments, but adequate 
liquidity to make immediate and medium term benefit payments is ensured.

COnTribuTiOnS   the Company’s funding policy for its defined benefit 
plans is to contribute amounts determined annually on an actuarial basis to 
provide for current and future benefits in accordance with federal law and 
other regulations. the Company expects to contribute approximately $17 mil-
lion to its pension plans and its other postretirement benefit plan in 2007.

expeCTeD fuTure benefiT payMenTS   Benefit payments, inclu-
sive of amounts attributable to estimated future employee service, are 
expected to be paid as follows over the next 10 years:

(Millions of Dollars) Total year 1 year 2 year 3 year 4 year 5 years 6 - 10

Future payments $ 280.3 $  25.1 $  17.8 $  25.7 $  26.5 $  28.7 $ 156.5

these benefit payments will be funded through a combination of existing 
plan assets and amounts to be contributed in the future by the Company.

healTh Care COST TrenDS   the weighted average annual assumed 
rate of increase in the per-capita cost of covered benefits (i.e., health care 
cost trend rate) is assumed to be 10.0% for 2006, reducing gradually to 
6.0% by 2014 and remaining at that level thereafter. A one percentage 
point change in the assumed health care cost trend rate would have an 
immaterial effect on the net periodic postretirement benefit cost and the 
postretirement benefit obligation as of December 30, 2006.

N. OTHER COSTS AND EXPENSES

other-net is primarily comprised of intangible asset amortization expense, 
gains and losses on asset dispositions, currency impact, environmental 
expense and net expenses related to the Mac tools extended financing 
programs, mainly financing receivable losses and interest income.

Research and development costs were $15.3 million, $14.5 million and $13.2 
million for fiscal years 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

O. RESTRUCTURINg AND ASSET ImPAIRmENTS

At December 30, 2006, the restructuring and asset impairment reserve bal-
ance was $63.1 million, which the Company expects to be fully expended by 
the end of 2007. A summary of the Company’s restructuring reserve activity 
from December 31, 2005 to December 30, 2006 is as follows (in millions):

    Acquisition net 
(Millions of Dollars) 12/31/05 Impact Additions usage Currency 12/30/06

acquisitions
severance $ 2.2 $ 68.5 $ 0.4 $ (16.4) $ – $ 54.7
Facility Closure  –  2.7  –  (0.3)  –  2.4
other   0.1  2.0  0.5  (1.1)  –  1.5
2006 actions  –  –  11.9  (9.3)  –  2.6
pre-2006 actions  2.6  –  1.0  (1.8)  0.1  1.9

   $ 4.9 $ 73.2 $ 13.8 $ (28.9) $ 0.1 $ 63.1

2006 actions   During 2006, the Company initiated a cost reduction initia-
tive in order to maintain its cost competitiveness and vitality. severance 
charges of $11.9 million were recorded during the year relating to a reduc-
tion of 728 employees. Approximately $3.0 million of this charge pertained 
to the Consumer products segment; $4.5 million to the Industrial tools 
segment; and $4.4 million to the security solutions segment. of these 
amounts, $9.3 million has been utilized to date, with $2.6 million of reserves 
remaining as of December 30, 2006. In addition to severance, $4.1 million 
for a u.k. pension plan curtailment was recorded in other-net and $1.3 mil-
lion of related consulting costs were recorded in sG&A.

2005 actions   During 2005, the Company initiated a $5.7 million cost 
reduction in various businesses, of which $4.6 million was recorded in 2005 
and $1.1 million was recorded during 2006. the action was comprised of the 
severance of 170 employees and the exit of a leased facility. of this amount, 
$5.0 million has been utilized to date with $0.7 million of accrual remaining 
as of December 30, 2006. Approximately $4.3 million of this charge per-
tained to the security solutions segment; $0.9 million to the Industrial tools 
segment; and $0.5 million to the Consumer products segment.

Pre-2005 actions  In the fourth quarter of 2004, the Company recorded $7.7 
million of restructuring and asset impairment charges – $4 million of restructur-
ing costs in connection with specific personnel actions to streamline/reposition 
certain organizations primarily in the Consumer products and Industrial tools 
segments; and $3.7 million of asset impairment charges primarily associated 
with a 2004 information system strategy decision. As of December 31, 2005, 
the accrual was fully expended. In addition, as of December 30, 2006, $1.2 mil-
lion of reserves remain relating to pre-2004 actions.
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door locking systems, commercial hardware and integrates security access 
control systems. products in the security solutions segment include security 
integration systems, software, related installation and maintenance services, 
automatic doors, door closers, exit devices and locking mechanisms.

the Company’s reportable segments are an aggregation of businesses that 
have similar products and services, among other factors. the following informa-
tion excludes the appliance hinge, u.k. decorator tools, home décor and German 
paint roller businesses, which are classified as discontinued operations as 
disclosed in note t Discontinued operations, unless otherwise noted.

buSineSS SeGMenTS
(Millions of Dollars)  2006  2005  2004

net Sales
Consumer products $ 1,328.5 $ 1,097.8 $ 1,042.7
Industrial tools  1,802.9  1,369.5  1,292.5
security solutions  887.2  818.0  662.2

Consolidated $ 4,018.6 $ 3,285.3 $ 2,997.4

Operating profit
Consumer products $ 210.3 $ 185.2 $ 171.4
Industrial tools  159.1  135.5  133.1
security solutions  133.9  123.8  107.8

total  $ 503.3 $ 444.5 $ 412.3

Restructuring charges  
 and asset impairments  (13.8)  (4.6)  (7.7)
Interest income  4.4  6.6  4.2
Interest expense  (69.3)  (40.4)  (38.6)
other-net  (57.5)  (47.9)  (46.0)

earnings from  
 continuing operations  
 before income taxes $ 367.1 $ 358.2 $ 324.2

Segment assets
Consumer products $ 899.8 $ 892.9 $ 710.8
Industrial tools  1,724.8  914.5  903.3
security solutions  1,097.0  1,041.5  958.9

    3,721.6  2,848.9  2,573.0
Discontinued operations  –  11.0  15.6
Corporate assets  213.8  685.2  262.0

Consolidated $ 3,935.4 $ 3,545.1 $ 2,850.6

Capital and Software  
 expenditures
Consumer products $ 32.9 $ 26.7 $ 22.3
Industrial tools  26.8  27.6  18.5
security solutions  20.8  13.6  10.3
Discontinued operations  –  0.5  3.7

Consolidated $ 80.5 $ 68.4 $ 54.8

Depreciation and  
 amortization
Consumer products $ 40.0 $ 29.7 $ 30.9
Industrial tools  45.1  31.3  33.4
security solutions  36.0  35.2  27.7
Discontinued operations  0.1  0.3  3.0

Consolidated $ 121.2 $ 96.5 $ 95.0

acQuisition related  During 2006, the Company completed a consulta-
tion process with its european works Council regarding the reorganization 
of its Facom and stanley hand tools activities in europe (these “Initiatives”). 
these Initiatives will, among other things, implement growth strategies and 
reduce costs by rationalizing manufacturing, logistics, sales and support 
organizations resulting in the severance of approximately 580 employees, the 
closure of two legacy Facom factories in France, as well as four legacy Facom 
distribution centers located in the united kingdom, Belgium, Germany and 
switzerland. the facility rationalization commenced recently with the sever-
ance of approximately 440 employees, closure of the two French factories 
and exit from the united kingdom distribution center. the Company expects 
to complete these Initiatives during 2007. Cash expenditures to be incurred for 
these Initiatives are estimated at approximately $75 million, of which $59.4 
million has been recorded to the Facom purchase price allocation and $0.7 mil-
lion was reported as a 2006 restructuring charge. As of December 30, 2006, 
$6.6 million has been utilized to date, with $53.5 million accrual remaining. 
Also, $1.4 million of asset impairments were recorded to Cost of sales relating 
to inventory rationalization associated with the plant shut downs.

In connection with its acquisition of national, the Company recorded $8.0 
million in severance costs for 243 employees and $0.3 million for facility clo-
sure costs to the purchase price allocation, and $0.2 million was recorded 
as a restructuring charge. As of December 30, 2006, $5.8 million has been 
utilized with $2.7 million accrual remaining.

Restructuring and asset impairment charges by segment were as follows:

(Millions of Dollars)  2006  2005  2004

Consumer products $ 3.2 $ 0.5 $ 1.3
Industrial tools  5.0  1.0  2.9
security solutions  5.6  3.1  3.5

Consolidated $ 13.8 $ 4.6 $ 7.7

P.  BUSINESS SEgmENTS AND  
gEOgRAPHIC AREAS

the Company reports the following three segments: Consumer products, 
Industrial tools and security solutions. the Consumer products segment man-
ufactures and markets hand tools, consumer mechanics tools, storage units 
and hardware. these products are sold to retailers (including home centers, 
mass merchants, hardware stores, and retail lumber yards) as well as through 
third party distributors. the Industrial tools segment manufactures and mar-
kets professional mechanics tools and storage systems; pneumatic tools and 
fasteners; plumbing, heating, air conditioning and roofing tools; hydraulic tools 
and accessories; assembly tools and systems; electronic leveling and measur-
ing tools; and stanley supply and services (specialty tools). these products 
are sold to customers and distributed primarily through third party distributors 
as well as through direct sales forces. the security solutions segment is a 
provider of access and security solutions primarily for retailers, educational 
and healthcare institutions, government, financial institutions, and commer-
cial and industrial customers. the Company provides an extensive suite of 
mechanical and electronic security products and systems, and a variety of 
security services. the Company manufactures and markets automatic doors, 
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In connection with its recent acquisitions, the Company recorded $21.6 mil-
lion in cost of sales (“inventory step-up amortization”) during 2006 related 
to the initial turn of acquired inventory which was written-up in purchase 
accounting to its fair market value. this non-cash inventory step-up amor-
tization amounted to $8.2 million in the Consumer products segment, $13.3 
million in the Industrial tools segment, and $0.1 million in the security 
solutions segment.

the Company assesses the performance of its reportable business segments 
using operating profit, which follows the same accounting policies as those 
described in note A significant Accounting policies. segment operating 
profit excludes interest income, interest expense, other-net (which includes 
intangible asset expense amortization), restructuring charges and asset 
impairments, and income tax expense. Refer to note o Restructuring and 
Asset Impairments for the amount of restructuring charges and asset impair-
ments by segment, and to note G Goodwill and other Intangible Assets for 
intangible amortization expense by segment. Corporate and shared expenses 
are allocated to each segment. transactions between segments are not 
material. segment assets primarily include accounts receivable, inventory, 
other current assets, property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and 
other miscellaneous assets. Corporate assets and unallocated assets are 
cash, deferred income taxes and certain other assets. Geographic net sales 
and long-lived assets are attributed to the geographic regions based on the 
geographic location of each Company subsidiary.

sales to the home Depot were approximately 10%, 12% and 13% of 
consolidated net sales in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, excluding 
the discontinued operations businesses discussed in note t Discontinued 
operations. For 2006, 2005 and 2004 net sales to this one customer 
amounted to 21%, 26% and 27% of segment net sales, respectively, for 
the Consumer products segment, 5%, 6%, and 7%, respectively, for the 
Industrial tools segment and 2%, 2% and 3%, respectively, for the security 
solutions segment.

GeOGraphiC areaS
(Millions of Dollars)  2006  2005  2004

net Sales
united states $ 2,398.5 $ 2,277.1 $ 2,054.4
other Americas  357.5  263.0  217.6
France  465.4  146.3  149.6
other europe  599.9  412.1  412.7
Asia   197.3  186.8  163.1

Consolidated $ 4,018.6 $ 3,285.3 $ 2,997.4

long-lived assets
united states $ 969.2 $ 1,010.3 $ 824.3
other Americas  164.3  168.5  82.0
united kingdom  204.9  258.9  289.1
France  478.5  14.4  17.9
other europe  226.4  73.1  85.1
Asia   240.4  183.4  174.0

Consolidated $ 2,283.7 $ 1,708.6 $ 1,472.4

Q. INCOmE TAXES

significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities 
at the end of each fiscal year were as follows:

(Millions of Dollars)    2006  2005

Deferred tax liabilities:
 Depreciation   $ 41.7 $ 52.8
 Amortization of Intangibles    96.2  76.9
 Inventories    4.4  4.6
 other    17.7  22.9

total deferred tax liabilities   $ 160.0 $ 157.2

Deferred tax assets:
 employee benefit plans   $ 79.9 $ 49.6
 Doubtful accounts    8.9  8.6
 Accruals    10.4  6.6
 Restructuring charges    2.5  0.3
 operating loss carryforwards    50.2  40.7
 other    0.4  17.9

total deferred tax assets   $ 152.3 $ 123.7

net Deferred Tax liabilities  
 before valuation allowance   $ 7.7 $ 33.5

valuation allowance   $ 26.8 $ 27.2

net Deferred Tax liabilities  
 after valuation allowance   $ 34.5 $ 60.7

Valuation allowances reduced the deferred tax asset attributable to foreign 
and state loss carry-forwards to the amount that, based upon all available 
evidence, is more likely than not to be realized. Reversal of the valuation 
allowance is contingent upon the recognition of future taxable income and 
capital gains in specific foreign countries and specific states, or changes in 
circumstances which cause the recognition of the benefits to become more 
likely than not. the foreign and state loss carry-forwards expire in various 
years beginning in 2007.

the classification of deferred taxes as of December 30, 2006 and December 
31, 2005 is as follows:

 2006 2005

 Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred 
(Millions of Dollars) Tax asset Tax liability tax Asset tax liability

Current $ (35.0) $ 15.2 $ (21.2) $ 9.3
non-current  (90.5)  144.8  (75.3)  147.9

total  $ (125.5) $ 160.0 $ (96.5) $ 157.2
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the Company’s future effective tax rates could be adversely affected by 
earnings being lower than anticipated in countries where the statutory 
rates are lower. the Company is subject to the examination of its income 
tax returns by the Internal Revenue service and other tax authorities. the 
Company evaluates the likelihood of unfavorable adjustments arising from 
the examinations and believes adequate provisions have been made in the 
income tax provision.

undistributed foreign earnings of $436.7 million at December 30, 2006 are 
considered to be invested indefinitely or will be remitted substantially free 
of additional tax. Accordingly, no provision has been made for taxes that 
might be payable upon remittance of such earnings, nor is it practicable to 
determine the amount of this liability.

the American Jobs Creation Act, the ‘‘Act’’, enacted on october 22, 2004 
created a temporary incentive for u.s. corporations to repatriate accumulat-
ed income earned abroad by providing for an 85 percent dividends received 
deduction for certain dividends from controlled foreign corporations. In 
2005, stanley’s Chief executive officer and Board of Directors approved a 
domestic reinvestment plan as required by the ‘‘Act’’ to repatriate $249.6 
million in foreign earnings in fiscal 2005. stanley recorded $15.6 million in 
tax expense related to this $249.6 million dividend. All repatriations under 
the ‘‘Act’’ were completed by December 31, 2005.

R. COmmITmENTS AND gUARANTEES

COMMiTMenTS  the Company has non-cancelable operating lease agree-
ments, principally related to facilities, vehicles, machinery and equipment. 
Minimum payments have not been reduced by minimum sublease rentals of 
$3.4 million due in the future under non-cancelable subleases. In addition, the 
Company is a party to synthetic leasing programs which qualify as operating 
leases, for two of its major distribution centers. Rental expense, net of sub-
lease income, for operating leases was $51.3 million in 2006, $41.4 million in 
2005 and $38.7 million in 2004.

outsourcing and other commitments are comprised of: $17.4 million for 
outsourcing arrangements, primarily related to information systems and 
telecommunications; $13.7 million in marketing obligations; and $0.7 million 
of cash funding commitments pertaining to the Company’s u.s. esop.

Following is a summary of the future commitments for lease obligations, 
outsourcing and other arrangements:

(Millions of Dollars) Total 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 thereafter

operating lease  
 obligations $ 110.6 $  29.4 $  22.4 $  16.0 $  10.9 $   9.5 $  22.4
Material purchase  
 commitments 36.0 9.0 9.0 9.0 9.0 – –
outsourcing 
 and other 31.8 19.3 11.2 1.3 – – –

 Total $ 178.4 $  57.7 $  42.6 $  26.3 $  19.9 $   9.5 $  22.4

Income tax expense (benefit) attributable to continuing operations consisted 
of the following:

(Millions of Dollars)  2006  2005  2004

Current:
 Federal $ 31.9 $ 37.0 $ 32.6
 Foreign  25.9  31.9  25.9
 state  8.8  9.4  3.8

 total current $ 66.6 $ 78.3 $ 62.3

Deferred (Benefit):
 Federal  (6.5)  17.8  20.3
 Foreign  18.4  (8.4)  1.6
 state  (2.1)  (1.2)  3.1

total deferred  9.8  8.2  25.0

total  $ 76.4 $ 86.5 $ 87.3

Income taxes paid during 2006, 2005 and 2004 were $104.5 million, $112.8 
million and $125.4 million, respectively. During 2006, the Company had tax 
holidays with thailand and China. tax holidays resulted in a $3.1 million 
reduction in tax expense in 2006, a $1.7 million reduction in tax expense in 
2005 and $3.0 million in 2004. the tax holiday in thailand is in place until 
2010 while the tax holiday in China varies between 2009 and 2015.

the reconciliation of federal income tax at the statutory federal rate to 
income tax at the effective rate for continuing operations is as follows:

(Millions of Dollars)  2006  2005  2004

tax at statutory rate $ 128.5 $ 125.4 $ 113.5
state income taxes,  
 net of federal benefits  4.2  4.5  4.9
Difference between foreign  
 and federal income tax  (36.0)  (30.3)  (24.4)
extraterritorial income exclusion  (2.0)  (2.7)  (2.5)
Branch activity  0.3  (0.4)  0.7
tax accrual reserve  4.0  (0.6)  (0.2)
u.s. audit settlement  (16.6)  (16.7)  –
Jobs Act repatriation/dividends  (3.7)  15.6  –
other-net  (2.3)  (8.3)  (4.7)

Income taxes $ 76.4 $ 86.5 $ 87.3

the components of earnings from continuing operations before income 
taxes consisted of the following:

(Millions of Dollars)  2006  2005  2004

united states $ 150.7 $ 210.2 $ 179.5
Foreign  216.4  148.0  144.7

total pre-tax earnings $ 367.1 $ 358.2 $ 324.2
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the Company has numerous assets, predominantly vehicles and equipment, 
under a one-year term renewable u.s. master personal property lease. 
Residual value obligations under this master lease were $29.2 million 
at December 30, 2006 while the fair value of the underlying assets was 
approximately $33.6 million. the u.s. master personal property lease obli-
gations are not reflected in the future minimum lease payments since the 
initial and remaining term does not exceed one year. the Company routinely 
exercises various lease renewal options and from time to time purchases 
leased assets for fair value at the end of lease terms.

the Company is a party to synthetic leasing programs for two of its 
major distribution centers. the programs qualify as operating leases for 
accounting purposes, where only the monthly lease cost is recorded in 
earnings and the liability and value of underlying assets are off-balance 
sheet. As of December 30, 2006, the estimated fair value of assets and 
remaining obligations for these two properties were $61.0 million and 
$42.4 million, respectively.

GuaranTeeS  Following is a summary of guarantees as of December 
30, 2006:

    Maximum Carrying 
    potential amount of 
(Millions of Dollars) Term payment liability

Financial guarantees as  
 of December 30, 2006   
Guarantees on the  
 residual values of  
 leased properties up to 6 years $ 71.6 $ –
standby letters of credit Generally 1 year  28.0  –
Guarantee on the 
 external employee  
 stock ownership  
 plan borrowings through 2009  4.8  4.8
Commercial customer  
 financing arrangements up to 5 years  17.6  13.4
Government guarantees  
 on employees 3 years from hire date  0.1  –

 Total  $ 122.1 $ 18.2

the Company has guaranteed a portion of the residual value arising from 
its previously mentioned synthetic lease and u.s. master personal property 
lease programs. the lease guarantees aggregate $94.6 million while the 
fair value of the underlying assets is estimated at $71.6 million. the related 
assets would be available to satisfy the guarantee obligations and there-
fore it is unlikely the Company will incur any future loss associated with 
these lease guarantees.

the Company has issued $28.0 million in standby letters of credit that 
guarantee future payments which may be required under certain insur-
ance programs. shares of the Company’s common stock held by the esop 
were purchased with the proceeds of external borrowings in the 1980’s 
and borrowings from the Company in 1991. the external esop borrow-
ings are guaranteed by the Company and are included in long-term debt. 
shareowners’ equity reflects a reduction for the internal and external 

borrowings. the Company has sold various businesses and properties 
over many years and provided standard indemnification to the purchasers 
with respect to any unknown liabilities, such as environmental, which 
may arise in the future that are attributable to the time of the Company’s 
ownership. no liabilities have been recorded for these general indemni-
fications since there are no identified exposures. the Company provides 
various limited and full recourse guarantees to financial institutions that 
provide financing to u.s. and Canadian Mac tool distributors for their 
initial purchase of the inventory and truck necessary to function as a 
distributor. In addition, the Company provides a full recourse guarantee to 
a financial institution that extends credit to certain end retail customers 
of its u.s. Mac tool distributors. the gross amount guaranteed in these 
arrangements is approximately $17.6 million and the $13.4 million fair 
value of the guarantees issued is recorded in debt and other liabilities as 
appropriate in the consolidated balance sheet.

the Company provides product and service warranties which vary across 
its businesses. the types of warranties offered generally range from one 
year to limited lifetime, while certain products carry no warranty. Further, 
the Company sometimes incurs discretionary costs to service its products in 
connection with product performance issues. historical warranty and ser-
vice claim experience forms the basis for warranty obligations recognized. 
Adjustments are recorded to the warranty liability as new information 
becomes available.

Following is a summary of the warranty liability activity for the years ended 
December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005:

(Millions of Dollars)    2006  2005

Beginning Balance   $ 15.7 $ 14.8
warranties and guarantees issued    21.3  13.1
warranty payments    (20.2)  (12.9)
Acquisitions and other    40.0  0.7

ending Balance   $ 56.8 $ 15.7

S. CONTINgENCIES

the Company is involved in various legal proceedings relating to environ-
mental issues, employment, product liability and workers’ compensation 
claims and other matters. the Company periodically reviews the status of 
these proceedings with both inside and outside counsel, as well as an actu-
ary for risk insurance. Management believes that the ultimate disposition 
of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on operations or 
financial condition taken as a whole.

the Company recognizes liabilities for contingent exposures when analysis 
indicates it is both probable that an asset has been impaired or that a 
liability has been incurred and the amount of impairment or loss can rea-
sonably be estimated. when a range of probable loss can be estimated, 
the Company accrues the most likely amount. In the event that no amount 
in the range of probable loss is considered most likely, the minimum loss in 
the range is accrued.
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In the normal course of business, the Company is involved in various lawsuits 
and claims. In addition, the Company is a party to a number of proceedings 
before federal and state regulatory agencies relating to environmental 
remediation. Also, the Company, along with many other companies, has been 
named as a potentially responsible party (‘‘pRp’’) in a number of administra-
tive proceedings for the remediation of various waste sites, including 15 
active superfund sites. Current laws potentially impose joint and several 
liabilities upon each pRp. In assessing its potential liability at these sites, 
the Company has considered the following: whether responsibility is being 
disputed, the terms of existing agreements, experience at similar sites, and 
the Company’s volumetric contribution at these sites.

the Company’s policy is to accrue environmental investigatory and reme-
diation costs for identified sites when it is probable that a liability has been 
incurred and the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated. the amount 
of liability recorded is based on an evaluation of currently available facts 
with respect to each individual site and includes such factors as existing 
technology, presently enacted laws and regulations, and prior experience 
in remediation of contaminated sites. the liabilities recorded do not take 
into account any claims for recoveries from insurance or third parties. As 
assessments and remediation progress at individual sites, the amounts 
recorded are reviewed periodically and adjusted to reflect additional tech-
nical and legal information that becomes available. As of December 30, 
2006 and December 31, 2005, the Company had reserves of $30.5 million 
and $21.3 million, respectively, for remediation activities associated with 
Company-owned properties as well as for superfund sites, for losses that 
are probable and estimable. of the 2006 amount, $9.2 million is classified 
as current and $21.3 million as long-term. the range of environmental reme-
diation costs that is reasonably possible is $24.6 million to $61.2 million 
which is subject to change in the near term. the Company may be liable for 
environmental remediation of sites it no longer owns. liabilities have been 
recorded on those sites in accordance with policy.

the environmental liability for certain sites that have cash payments that 
are fixed or reliably determinable have been discounted using a rate of 
5.0%. the discounted and undiscounted amount of the liability relative to 
these sites is $5.1 million and $8.1 million, respectively, as of December 
30, 2006 and $5.0 million and $8.1 million, respectively, as of December 31, 
2005. the payments relative to these sites are expected to be $1.0 million 
in 2007, $1.7 million in 2008, $1.0 million in 2009, $0.3 million in 2010, $0.3 
million in 2011 and $3.8 million thereafter.

the amount recorded for identified contingent liabilities is based on esti-
mates. Amounts recorded are reviewed periodically and adjusted to reflect 
additional technical and legal information that becomes available. Actual 
costs to be incurred in future periods may vary from the estimates, given 
the inherent uncertainties in evaluating certain exposures. subject to the 
imprecision in estimating future contingent liability costs, the Company 
does not expect that any sum it may have to pay in connection with these 
matters in excess of the amounts recorded will have a materially adverse 
effect on its financial position, results of operations or liquidity.

T. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

During 2006, the Company disposed of two small businesses, the American 
appliance hinge and u.k. decorator tools businesses, for $1.9 million in cash. 
the related after-tax loss amounted to $1.1 million.

on December 4, 2004, the Company sold its home décor business for $87 
million in a cash sale transaction, resulting in an after-tax gain of $24 mil-
lion. on March 2, 2004, the Company sold its residential entry door business 
for $161 million in cash, and recognized a $95 million after-tax gain thereon. 
Also in 2004, the Company sold Friess, its German paint roller business for 
$6.4 million, and a loss of $3.6 million was recognized thereon.

In accordance with the provisions of sFAs no. 144, ‘‘Accounting for the 
Impairment or Disposal of long-lived Assets’’, the results of operations of 
the appliance hinge, u.k. decorator tools, home décor, residential entry door, 
and Friess businesses for the current and prior periods have been reported as 
discontinued operations. In addition, the assets and liabilities of the appliance 
hinge and u.k. decorator tools businesses were classified as held for sale in 
the Consolidated Balance sheet at December 31, 2005. the divestures of 
these businesses were made pursuant to the Company’s growth strategy 
which entails a reduction of risk associated with certain large customer con-
centrations and better utilization of resources to increase shareowner value.

the American appliance hinge business supplied hardware used to manufacture 
household appliances. the u.k. decorator tools business manufactured brushes, 
rollers and other paint sundries supplied to various retailers. the home décor 
business supplied mirrored closet doors, closet organization products and wall 
décor products primarily through large retailers in north America and europe. the 
residential entry door business manufactured and distributed steel and fiberglass 
entry doors and components throughout north America. the Friess business 
manufactured paint rollers in Germany and sold them into the private label market 
in continental europe. operating results of the u.k. decorator tools, home décor, 
residential entry door, and Friess businesses, which were formerly included in 
the Consumer products segment, and the appliance hinge business, which was 
formerly included in the security solutions segment, are summarized as follows:

(Millions of Dollars)  2006  2005  2004

net sales $ 12.0 $ 38.7 $ 226.4
pretax (loss) earnings  –  (1.2)  20.9
Income taxes  0.1  0.9  6.8

net (loss) earnings from  
 discontinued operations $ (0.1) $ (2.1) $ 14.1

U. SUBSEQUENT EVENT (UNAUDITED)

on January 16, 2007, the Company completed the purchase of hsM electronic 
protection services, Inc. (“hsM”) from Chicago-based private equity firm GtCR 
for $545 million cash. hsM, based in lisle, Illinois provides security alarm monitor-
ing services and access control systems to commercial customers. the Company 
financed the acquisition with proceeds from existing short-term credit facilities 
and a new $500 million 364-day bridge facility entered into on January 8, 2007. 
the Company intends to refinance this transaction in 2007 with a combination of 
available cash, and the issuance of long-term debt and equity-linked securities.
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2006   first  Second  Third  fourth  year

net sales $ 968.7 $ 1,017.9 $ 1,012.7 $ 1,019.3 $ 4,018.6
Gross profit  331.9  376.7  377.8  372.1  1,458.5
Selling, general and administrative expenses  238.8  244.6  231.9  239.9  955.2
net earnings from continuing operations $ 38.5 $ 75.0 $ 90.2 $ 87.0 $ 290.7
net (loss) earnings from discontinued operations  (0.8)  (0.3)  0.3  (0.4)  (1.2)

net earnings $ 37.7 $ 74.7 $ 90.5 $ 86.6 $ 289.5

basic earnings (loss) per common share:
 Continuing operations $ 0.46 $ 0.92 $ 1.11 $ 1.06 $ 3.55
 Discontinued operations  (0.01)  –  –  (0.01)  (0.01)

  Total basic earnings per common share $ 0.46 $ 0.92 $ 1.11 $ 1.06 $ 3.54

Diluted earnings (loss) per common share:
 Continuing operations $ 0.45 $ 0.90 $ 1.09 $ 1.04 $ 3.47
 Discontinued operations  (0.01)  –  –  (0.01)  (0.01)

  Total diluted earnings per common share $ 0.45 $ 0.90 $ 1.09 $ 1.03 $ 3.46

2005   First  second  third  Fourth  year

net sales $ 796.3 $ 814.7 $ 834.9 $ 839.4 $ 3,285.3
Gross profit  287.0  300.7  304.3  289.3  1,181.3
selling, general and administrative expenses  184.4  188.4  179.1  184.9  736.8
net earnings from continuing operations $ 65.8 $ 65.3 $ 76.4 $ 64.2 $ 271.7
net earnings (loss) from discontinued operations  0.8  0.6  0.5  (4.0)  (2.1)

net earnings $ 66.6 $ 65.9 $ 76.9 $ 60.2 $ 269.6

Basic earnings (loss) per common share:
 Continuing operations $ 0.79 $ 0.79 $ 0.92 $ 0.76 $ 3.26
 Discontinued operations  0.01  0.01  –  (0.05)  (0.03)

  total basic earnings per common share $ 0.80 $ 0.79 $ 0.92 $ 0.72 $ 3.23

Diluted earnings (loss) per common share:
 Continuing operations $ 0.77 $ 0.77 $ 0.89 $ 0.75 $ 3.18
 Discontinued operations  0.01  0.01  –  (0.05)  (0.02)

  total diluted earnings per common share $ 0.78 $ 0.78 $ 0.90 $ 0.70 $ 3.16

Quarterly results of oPerations (unaudited)

(Millions of Dollars, except per share amounts) quarter 
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inVestor and sHareoWner information

TranSfer aGenT anD reGiSTrar   All shareowner 
inquiries, including transfer-related matters, should be directed 
to: Computershare Investor services llC, 2 north lasalle st., 
Chicago, Illinois 60602. toll-free telephone (888) 660-5513 or 
(312) 360-4292. www.computershare.com.

COrpOraTe OffiCeS   the Company’s principal corporate 
offices are located at: 1000 stanley Drive, new Britain, Ct 
06053, (860) 225-5111.

annual MeeTinG   the annual meeting of the stanley 
works will be held at 9:30 a.m. eastern time on wednesday, 
April 25, 2007, at the stanley Center For learning And 
Innovation, 1000 stanley Drive, new Britain, Ct. A formal 
notice of the meeting together with a proxy statement has been 
mailed to shareowners with this annual report.

inDepenDenT auDiTOrS   ernst & young llp, 225 Asylum 
street, hartford, Connecticut 06103.

finanCial anD inveSTOr COMMuniCaTiOnS   
the stanley works investor relations department provides  
information to shareowners and the financial community. we 
encourage inquiries and will provide services which include:

>  Fulfilling requests for annual reports, proxy statements,  
forms 10-Q and 10-k, copies of press releases and other  
company information.

>   Meetings with securities analysts and fund managers.

Contact the stanley works investor relations department at  
our corporate offices by calling Gerard J. Gould, Vice president, 
Investor Relations at (860) 827-3833. we make quarterly news 
releases available on-line on the Internet on the day that results 
are released to the news media. the stanley works releases 
and a variety of shareowner information can be found at  
the Company’s website: www.stanleyworks.com. stanley  
shareowners are also able to call toll-free (888) 660-5513 to 
request a copy of the most recent quarterly earnings release.

DiviDenD reinveSTMenT plan anD STOCk  
purChaSe prOGraM  shareowners may invest funds, have 
dividends automatically reinvested in stanley common stock and/
or make optional cash payments to increase their common stock 
investment. Inquiries regarding this service should be directed to 
the Company’s transfer agent, Computershare Investor services 
llC at (888) 660-5513 or (312) 360-5292. 

COMMOn STOCk   the stanley works common stock is listed 
on the new york stock exchange under the abbreviated ticker 
symbol “swk” and is a component of the s&p 500 Composite 
stock price Index.

COMMOn STOCk  (DollARs peR shARe)

 price Dividends
 2006 2005 2006  2005
 high low high low

First Quarter  53.13 47.00 49.14 44.27 $ .29 $ .28
second Quarter  54.59 44.61 48.10 41.51  .29  .28
third Quarter  50.81 41.60 51.75  44.03   .30  .29
Fourth Quarter  53.48 46.58 49.09  43.31   .30  .29

      $ 1.18 $ 1.14

 
DiviDenDS   the stanley works has an impressive and truly 
unique dividend record over the long haul:

>  our record of annual dividend payments is unmatched 
by any industrial company listed on the new york stock 
exchange – 130 COnSeCuTive yearS.

>  our quarterly dividend record is the longest of any industrial 
company listed on the new york stock exchange – 447 
COnSeCuTive quarTerS.

>  our dividends have increased in each of the past 39 
yearS , and during that same period, an investment in 
stanley stock grew at a compound annual rate of 12%.

DiviDenDS (DollARs peR shARe: ADJusteD to ReFleCt stoCk splIts)

$1.18 per share

1968 2006

$.07



EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
JOHN G. BREEN 1, 2, 4

Retired, former Chairman and Chief Executive Officer 
The Sherwin Williams Company

STILLMAN B. BROWN 1, 2, 4

Managing General Partner 
Harcott Associates  

VIRGIS W. COLBERT 1, 3, 5

Retired, former Executive Vice President 
Miller Brewing Company

EMMANUEL A. KAMPOURIS 3, 5

Retired, former Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
American Standard Companies, Inc.

EILEEN S. KRAUS 1, 2, 3

Retired, former Chairman 
Fleet Bank, Connecticut

JOHN F. LUNDGREN 1

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer 
The Stanley Works

KATHRYN D. WRISTON 4, 5

Trustee of various organizations

LAWRENCE A. ZIMMERMAN 2, 5

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Xerox Corporation

Board of Directors (from left to right): Eileen S. Kraus, John G. Breen, Virgis W. Colbert, Emmanuel A. Kampouris, John F. Lundgren, Kathryn D. Wriston, Lawrence A. Zimmerman, Stillman B. Brown 

The two paintings displayed in the boardroom at Stanley’s World Headquarters and shown above are: “Kent Landscape,” by Connecticut artist Eric Sloane, and a portrait
of Frederick J. Stanley (1802-1880), the Company’s founder. The Stanley Works endeavors to follow the lead of its founder by taking an active and visible role in the life
of its community.  

1 Member of the Executive Committee
2 Member of the Audit Committee
3 Member of the Corporate Governance Committee
4 Member of the Finance and Pension Committee
5 Member of the Compensation and Organization Committee

JEFF HUNG-TSE CHEN

President, Stanley Asia
(1983)

HUBERT W. DAVIS

Senior Vice President, Business Transformation
(2000)

JAMES M. LOREE

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(1999)

JOHN F. LUNDGREN

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
(2004)

MARK J. MATHIEU

Vice President, Human Resources
(1997)

DONALD R. McILNAY

Senior Vice President and President,
Industrial Tools Group and Emerging Markets
(1999)

THIERRY PATERNOT

President, Stanley Tools – Europe
(2006)

DONALD ALLAN, JR.

Vice President and Controller
(1999)

JEFFREY D. ANSELL

Vice President and President, Consumer Tools Group
(1999)

BRUCE H. BEATT

Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary
(2000)

JUSTIN C. BOSWELL

Vice President and President, 
Mechanical Access Security Solutions
(1999) (JOINED STANLEY)
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